CYNGOR
Sir Ddinbych
Denbighshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

To: Members of the Planning Committee Date: 24 May 2012

Direct Dial: 01824 712568

e-mail: dcc_admin@denbighshire.gov.uk

Dear Councillor

You are invited to attend a meeting of the PLANNING COMMITTEE to be held at 9.30
am on WEDNESDAY, 30 MAY 2012 in THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNTY HALL,
RUTHIN.

Yours sincerely
G Williams
Head of Legal and Democratic Services

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members to declare any personal or prejudicial interests in any business
identified to be considered at this meeting.

3  APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR

To appoint a Chair of the Planning Committee for the 2012 / 13 municipal
year.

Prif Weithredwr / Chief Executive Mohammed Mehmet PhD BSc
Prif Swyddfeydd Y Cyngor/Council Offices, Rhuthun/Ruthin, Sir Ddinbych/Denbighshire LL15 1YN.
Ffon/Tel (01824) 706234 Ffacs/Fax (01824) 707446




10

APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR

To appoint a Vice Chair of the Planning Committee for the 2012/ 13
municipal year.

URGENT MATTERS AS AGREED BY THE CHAIR

Notice of items which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be considered at the
meeting as a matter of urgency pursuant to Section 100B(4) of the Local
Government Act, 1972.

MINUTES (Pages 1 - 22)

To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Planning
Committee held on the 18 April 2012 (copy attached).

APPLICATIONS FOR PERMISSION FOR DEVELOPMENT (Pages 23 - 96)
To consider applications for permission for development (copies attached).

PLANNING APPEAL: ST. DAVID'S RESIDENTIAL HOME, EAST PARADE,
RHYL (Pages 97 - 98)

To consider a report by the Head of Planning, Regeneration and Regulatory
Services (copy attached) in respect of a planning appeal lodged against a
refusal decision and to appoint two members of the Committee to give
evidence at an appeal hearing.

MAJOR INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS:UPDATE REPORT (Pages 99 -
108)

To consider a report by the Head of Planning, Regeneration and Regulatory
Services (copy attached). Members are requested to note the information and
key dates contained in the report.

BURBO BANK WINDFARM EXTENSION MAJOR INFRASTRUCTURE
PROJECT (Pages 109 - 120)

To consider a report by the Head of Planning, Regeneration and Regulatory
Services (copy attached) to consider the Council’s response to the formal
pre-application consultation.

Prif Weithredwr / Chief Executive Mohammed Mehmet PhD BSc

Prif Swyddfeydd Y Cyngor/Council Offices, Rhuthun/Ruthin, Sir Ddinbych/Denbighshire LL15 1YN.

Ffon/Tel (01824) 706234 Ffacs/Fax (01824) 707446



11 VERSION 2 OF THE PROTOCOL FOR MEMBER TRAINING (Pages 121 -
126)

To consider a report by the Head of Planning, Regeneration and Regulatory
Services (copy attached) in respect of proposed changes to the Protocol for
Member Training on Planning Matters.

12 UPDATED SCHEME OF DELEGATION - VERSION 4 (Pages 127 - 142)

To consider a report by the Head of Planning, Regeneration and Regulatory
Services (copy attached) concerning proposals for minor amendments to the
Scheme of Delegation.

COPIES TO:

All Councillors for information
Press and Libraries
Town and Community Councils

Prif Weithredwr / Chief Executive Mohammed Mehmet PhD BSc
Prif Swyddfeydd Y Cyngor/Council Offices, Rhuthun/Ruthin, Sir Ddinbych/Denbighshire LL15 1YN.
Ffon/Tel (01824) 706234 Ffacs/Fax (01824) 707446



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

WELCOME TO DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY
COUNCIL'S PLANNING COMMITTEE

HOW THE MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED

The note outlines the manner in which the meeting is likely to be run.

Unless the Chair of the Committee advises to the contrary, the order in which the main items will be taken
will follow the agenda set out at the front of this report.

General introduction

The Chair will open the meeting at 9.30am and welcome everyone to the Planning Committee.

The Chair will ask if there are any apologies for absence and declarations of interest.

The Chair will invite Officers to make a brief introduction to items on the agenda.

Officers will outline as appropriate items which will be subject to public speaking, requests for deferral,

withdrawals, special reports, and any Part 2 items where the press and public will be excluded. Reference
will be made to additional information circulated in the Council Chamber prior to the start of the meeting,

including the late representations/amendments summary sheets (blue sheets) and any supplementary or
revised plans relating to items for consideration.

The 'Blue Sheets' contain important information, including a summary of material received in relation to items
on the agenda between the completion of the main reports and the day before the meeting. The sheets also
set out the proposed running order on planning applications, to take account of public speaking requests.

In relation to the running order of items, any Members seeking to bring forward consideration of an item will
be expected to make such a request immediately following the officer's introduction. Any such request must
be made as a formal proposal and will be subject to a vote.

The Planning Committee consists of 30 elected Members. In accordance with protocol, 15 Membe rs must be
present to constitute quorum and to allow an item to be considered and vote to be taken.

County Council Members who are not elected onto Planning Committee may attend the meeting and speak
on an item, but are not able to make a proposal to grant or refuse, or to vote.

CONSIDERING PLANNING APPLICATIONS

The sequence to be followed

The Chair will announce the item which is to be dealt with next. In relation to planning applications, reference
will be made to the application number, the basis of the proposal, and the location.

Page 1



If there are public speakers on an item, the Chair will invite them to address the Committee. Where there are
speakers against and for a proposal, the speaker against will be asked to go first. Public speaking is subject
to a separate protocol.

Where appropriate, the Chair will offer the opportunity for Members to read any late information on the item
on the 'Blue Sheets' before proceeding.

If any Member is minded to propose deferral of an item, including to allow for the site to be visited by a Site
Inspection Panel, the request should be made, with the planning reason. Opportunity will be given for debate
on the request, and a vote shall be taken to determine the course of action.

The Chair will seek propositions and seconders for or against the officer recommendation, or any other
resolutions.

The Chair will invite officers to provide a brief introduction to the item where this is considered to be
worthwhile in view of the nature of the application.

If any application has been subject to a Site Inspection Panel prior to the Committee, the Chair will normally
invite those Members who attended, including the local member, to speak first.

On all other applications, the Chair will permit the local member(s) to speak first, should he/she wish to do
SO.

Members are normally limited to a maximum of five minutes speaking, and the Chair will conduct the debate
in accordance with Standing Orders.

Once a member has spoken, he/she should not speak again unless seeking clarification of points arising in
debate, and then only once all other Members have had the opportunity to speak, and with the agreement of
the Chair.

At the conclusion of Members debate, the Chair will ask officers to respond as appropriate to questions and
points raised, including advice on any resolution in conflict with the recommendation.

The Chair will announce when the debate is closed, and that voting is to follow.

The voting procedure

Before requesting Members to vote, the Chair will announce what resolutions have been made and how the
vote is to proceed. Clarification of resolutions, amendments, additional conditions and reasons for refusal
may be sought so there is no ambiguity over what the Committee is voting for or against.

If any member requests a Recorded Vote, this must be dealt with first in accordance with Standing Orders.
The Chair will clarify the procedure to be followed.

When the Chair is satisfied that the vote can proceed, this will be conducted through the electronic voting
system. The Chair will request officers to set up the voting screen(s) in the Chamber, and members must
vote once the voting screen appears.

Members have 10 seconds to record their votes once the voting screen is displayed.

On failure of the electronic voting system, the vote may be conducted by a show of hands. The Chair will
clarify the procedure to be followed.

On conclusion of the vote, the Chair will announce the decision on the item

Page 2



PLANNING COMMITTEE

VOTING PROCEDURE

Members are reminded of the procedure when casting their vote to
grant or refuse a planning application. The Chair or Officers will
clarify the procedure to be followed as necessary.

Once the display screens in the Chamber have been cleared in

preparation for the vote and the voting screen appears, Councillors
have 10 seconds to record their vote as follows:

On the voting keyboard press the

+ to GRANT permission
- to REFUSE permission
0 to ABSTAIN from voting

Page 3




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



PLANNING COMMITTEE

Minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee held in the Council Chamber,
County Hall, Ruthin on Wednesday 18" April 2012 at 9.30am.

PRESENT

Councillors S Thomas (Chair), | Armstrong, J R Bartley, J B Bellis, B Blakeley,
J Butterfield, W L Cowie (observer), M LI Davies, P A Dobb, M J Eckersley, G C
Evans, R L Feeley, | A Gunning, D Hannam, C Hughes, R W Hughes, T R
Hughes, E R Jones, H LI Jones, M M Jones, G M Kensler, L M Morris, P W
Owen, D Owens, A G Pennington, B A Smith, D | Smith, D A J Thomas, J
Thompson-Hill, C H Williams, E W Williams (observer).

ALSO PRESENT

Head of Planning, Regeneration and Regulatory Services (G Boase), Principal
Solicitor (Susan Cordiner), Development Control Manager (P Mead), Principal
Planning Officer (I Weaver), Team Leader (Support) (G Butler), Customer
Services Officer (J Williams) and Translator (Catrin Gilkes)

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE WERE RECEIVED FROM
Councillors J A Davies & J M Davies

2 DECLARATION OF INTEREST
None

3 URGENT ITEMS: None
4 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 21° March 2012

Resolved that the minutes of 21 March 2012 be confirmed for accuracy.
5 APPLICATIONS FOR PERMISSION FOR DEVELOPMENT

The report by the Head of Planning, Regeneration and Regulatory
Services (previously circulated) was submitted enumerating applications
submitted and required determination by the Committee.

RESOLVED that:-

(a) the recommendations of the Officers, as contained within the report
submitted, be confirmed and planning consents or refusals as the case
may be, be issued as appropriate under the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995, Planning and
Compensation Act 1991, Town and Country Planning Advert
Regulations 1991 and/or Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation
Areas) Act 1990 to the proposals comprising the following applications
subject to the conditions enumerated in the schedule submitted.:-

Page 5 1



Item 1
Application No:  01/2011/0621/PF
Location: The Glyn Lleweni Parc, Mold Road, Denbigh

Description: Siting of 20 holiday lodges with associated access, parking
and installation of a sewage treatment plant

The following additional letter of representation reported:
Ann Jones, 4 The Haybarn, Lleweni

A report of a site visit which took place on Thursday 12" April 2012 was
circulated.

Public Speakers:
Jeni Winstanley (Against)

Ms Winstanley lived near the site. She felt there were too many caravans in
Denbighshire and cited recent problems in policing all the sites.. She referred
to the historic parkland under threat at Lleweni and considered this proposal to
be unsustainable due to the need to travel there by car, the lodges being made
outside Wales and the damage to the countryside.

Mr R Witter (In Favour)

Mr Witter, the applicant, referred to the history of the site, stating that it was on
the location of a walled garden, demolished in 1820. There had been no
access to the site until the 1980’s when the Gliding Field was established and
the conversion of the outbuildings had opened up access into the area.

He felt there was a demand for tourism to such quieter places and said the
lodges were well made and would be enclosed and well screened. Mr Witter
considered the proposal to be a delightful Welsh tourism project.

Members were given time to read the addendum report.

(At this juncture (09.40 am) Councillor M LI Davies arrived and asked for
permission to speak on the debate. Legal Officer Susan Cordiner reminded
Members of the convention which states that Councillors should not vote on an
item unless they were present from the start.)

Councillor R Bartley (local Member) referred to the potential for light and noise
pollution, that it would be naive to think occupants of the lodges would not play
games outside the lodges. He felt committee had a duty to protect the
permanent residents. Councillor Bartley was concerned about the need to
travel by car, the density of the development, whether the water supply would
cope, the loss of trees, whether tourism would truly benefit and the loss of high
grade agricultural land.

Councillor S Thomas referred to the site visit. He commented that it was a long

walk to the site and thought the development would be cramped and the site
may be open to expansion in the future.

Page 6 2



He also felt there was little to safeguard the trees. Councillor Thomas was also
unhappy at the lack of cycleways, the need to use a car and limitations on
parking within on site.

Councillor M LI Davies referred to the change to the location map and asked
why a report had not been requested to discover the grade of the land.

Councillor L Morris asked how this proposal differed from previous applications
with a recommendation to refuse.

Councillor D Hannam asked about the Authority’s chances of winning an
appeal.

Councillor E R Jones referred to the Agricultural Land Grading and stated his
opposition to development on Grade 1 or 2 land.

Councillor R Bartley referred to the presence of bats and Councillor D Owens
asked if a licence was required for a borehole to supply water.

Principal Planning Officer lan Weaver responded:

It would not be reasonable to refuse on residential amenity grounds as the site
is 300m from the nearest dwelling and is well screened.

Highways Officers considered the private track with passing places to be
acceptable. The AONB Committee and Landscape Officer had no objection.
There was an absence of detail for the lodges but it would be possible to
control this by condition. One car space per lodge was considered reasonable
by Highways Officers.

The Environment Agency would need to approve the discharge from the
sewage treatment works into the brook but had raised no objection. DCC
Water Services were satisfied there would be sufficient water available from the
proposed new borehole and it should not affect the supply to the existing
dwellings. The trees are all within the control of the applicant and can be
protected by condition. A condition can also be imposed restricting use of the
lodges to holiday use only.

(At this juncture - 10.15am - Councillor M Eckersley arrived)

Principal Planning Officer, Mr lan Weaver mentioned that CCW and the DCC
Biodiversity Officer had no objection provided mature trees were retained to
reduce disturbance to bats. A tree management condition could be imposed.

He apologised for the inaccurate location plan initially included with the
committee papers. This had been corrected and circulated to all Members prior
to committee.

Finally, the reliance on car travel was a negative factor but in a recent appeal
on nearby land to the north, the Inspector did not feel this should be a
determining issue.

This application should be dealt with on its own merits but the basis of an
Inspector’'s decision on a similar proposal in the locality was a relevant
consideration.

Page 7 3



Proposals:
Councillor J Thompson-Hill proposed that permission be GRANTED
This was seconded by Councillor P Owen

On being put to the vote:

10 voted to Grant

13 voted to Refuse

3 Abstained

(Councillor M Eckersley wished it to be noted that he did not vote as he
had been late arriving)

PERMISSION WAS THEREFORE REFUSED

The decision, being CONTRARY to the Officers’ Recommendation was taken
for the following reasons:

The decision to refuse permission being contrary to recommendation of the
Planning Officer was taken on the basis that the proposals as submitted were
contrary to Unitary Development Plan and Welsh Government Policies on
sustainability, agricultural land quality, and unacceptable layout and parking
details

Officers to draft the full reasons for refusal and consult the local member.

1. It is the opinion of the Local Planning Authority that the proposed layout
of the lodges in the site appear unduly cramped with a number of units
sited in close proximity to one another, to the retained trees, and to the
southern boundary of the site; and it is considered there is inadequate
provision for the parking of vehicles for occupiers of the lodges and
potential visitors. The proposals are therefore considered to be in
conflict with tests of GEN 6 and TRA 9 of the Denbighshire Unitary
Development Plan.

2. The Local Planning Authority do not consider there is sufficient
information with the application to determine whether the proposals
involve development on the best and most versatile agricultural land (of
Grades 1, 2 or 3a), and hence whether the lodge development would be
in conflict with policies ENV 11 and TSM 9 of the Denbighshire Unitary
Development Plan and Welsh Government’s key objective to conserve
the best and most versatile agricultural land, as set out in Chapter4 of
Planning Policy Wales 2011.

3. It is the opinion of the Local Planning Authority that the location of the
proposed development would mean people using the lodges would be
highly dependent on the private car for access, and there is an absence
of safe pedestrian routes linking the site to the public footpath network or
along the A road to Denbigh, all limiting the accessibility of the site;
contrary to key tests in Policies STRAT 1, STRAT 13, GEN 6, TSM 9 of
the Denbighshire Unitary Development Plan, and Welsh Government’s
key policy objective of locating developments so as to minimise the

Page 8 4



demand for travel, especially by private car, as ser out in Planning Policy
Wales Chapter 4 and Chapter 8.

Page 9 5



Item 2
Application No:  13/2012/0259/PO
Location: Land adjacent to Bryn Myfyr Galltegfa, Ruthin

Description: Development of 0.095ha of land by the erection of an
affordable local needs detached dwelling. Detached
garage, installation of a new septic tank, and formation of a
new vehicular access (outline application including access).

The following additional letters of representations were reported:
Denbighshire County Council - Affordable Housing Officer
Nerys Ellis, Llys Awel, Galltegfa, Ruthin

A report of a site visit which took place on 12" April 2012 was circulated.

Public Speakers:
Mr P MacCarter (in favour)

Mr Phil MacCarter told committee that his partner and himself were from the
Ruthin area and had attended local schools. They were presently in rented
accommodation in Pwllglas and were struggling to get a mortgage. Building a
house on this land would help them have their own property and be near his
parents and help on the farm.

Councillor E W Williams (local member) urged committee to approve this
application as he felt it fell within policy HSGS — Galltegfa is a small community
of houses with a chapel. He cited other successful applications which he
considered set a precedent. There had been no other development in Galltegfa
for a number of years and Councillor Williams felt that the committee ought to
support local people.

Councillor R Bartley referred to the site visit and said the plot was in a
picturesque location. He sympathised with young local people but this proposal
was a departure from policy.

Councillor S Thomas also referred to the site visit when they observed that
there was a cluster of houses and a chapel but that this plot was located on its
own. It would require a new access to the road.

Councillors L Morris, C H Williams, H L Jones, D Owens & E R Jones
expressed sympathy and thought the policy should be reviewed. Other
Councillors understood the policy situation but felt it wrong that many houses
can be built in Bodelwyddan, or Officers recommend approval for lodges in the
countryside while a single dwelling for a local family is recommended for refusal.

Councillor D A J Thomas suggested a 106 Agreement be entered into.

Officers explained that the other applications Councillor Williams had referred
to had complied with policy relating to infill conversions as part of a group.

Page 10 6



Policy HSG5 has been used consistently where an identifiable group of six or
more houses in a continuous frontage is involved.

This application relates to a separate plot and therefore in “open countryside”
and does not meet the criteria of HSGS.

Head of Planning, Graham Boase advised members that as this constituted a
departure application he would have to discuss it with the Monitoring Officer if
Committee was minded to grant permission.

Proposals:
Councillor H LI Jones proposed that permission be GRANTED
This was seconded by Councillor D Owens

On being put to the vote:
12 voted to Grant

14 voted to Refuse

1 Abstained

PERMISSION WAS THEREFORE REFUSED

Page 11 7



Item 3

Application No:  17/2012/0207/PR

Location: Llandegla Memorial Hall, Llandegla, Wrexham

Description: Erection of a single storey extension to provide two new
classrooms, community room and formation of a new
playground

Councillor G C Evans felt that parking for parents should have been considered.
Principal Planning Officer, lan Weaver, agreed that parking was inadequate
and the road was narrow but the hard area for play could be used for parking in
the evening.

Highways Officers had raised no objection.

On being put to the vote:

26 voted to Grant

0 voted to Refuse

0 Abstained

PERMISSION WAS THEREFORE GRANTED

Page 12 8



Item 4

Application No:  28/2011/0207/PR

Location: Henllan Centre, Henllan, Denbigh

Description: Reserved matters submission for Phase 2 of development,
including construction of six dwellings and an electrical
substation

The following letters of representation were reported:

Letter from the applicant confirming that the substation had been omitted from
the application.

Councillor C Hughes advised committee that he had discussed this application
with officers and hoped the applicant would market the dwellings locally.

Proposals:
Councillor P Dobb proposed that permission be GRANTED
This was seconded by Councillor D Hannam

On being put to the vote:
25 voted to Grant

0 voted to Refuse

1 Abstained

PERMISSION WAS THEREFORE GRANTED

Page 13 9



Item 5
Application No:  45/2010/1470/PF
Location: 37/39 Pendyffryn Road, Rhyl

Description: Alterations, extension and partial demolition of Plas
Penyddeuglawdd with conversion to 3 residential units and
erection of terrace of 3 single-storey dwellings within
garden and alterations to existing vehicular/pedestrian
access (total site area 0.165ha)

The following additional letters of representation were reported:
Denbighshire County Council Affordable Housing Officer

Public Speakers:
Mr Mark Pearson (Against)

Mr Mark Pearson spoke in objection to both this application and the following
Listed Building application.

Mr Pearson agreed the property should be renovated but questioned whether
six affordable units could be accommodated or would be in keeping with the
locality. He thought it could set a precedent as a number of houses nearby had
large gardens which could be developed.

Councillor | Gunning advised committee that this is the oldest house in Rhyl
and thinks it should be renovated. But he thought it should be a residence and
it was the wrong place for this development.

Councillor J Bellis agreed the Listed Building should be restored but this was
not the place for social housing.

Councillor D A J Thomas stated that permission exists for three units. The new
application is for apartments, not houses and there would be a tight regime for
prospective tenants - no children, interviews and a probationary period to
address anti-social issues. The existing permission does not have such
restrictions. He said this is an “enabling development” to provide funds for the
Listed Building renovation.

Councillor D Hannam supported the renovation of the Listed Building but
objected to the suggestion that someone living in social housing is “anti-social”.

Councillor L Morris referred to a similar conversion of a Listed Building in
Llangollen into three affordable units which proved to be a great success.

Councillor M LI Davies asked whether the older building to the rear could be
retained.

Councillor J Butterfield told of her attempts to buy the property in the 1980s and
regretted that it had deteriorated. Councillor Butterfield also expressed her

Page 14 10



offence at comments about anti-social behaviour and said everyone has a right
to decent housing.

Development Control Manager, Paul Mead, advised that policy allowed
affordable units on this site and agreed that The Willows, Llangollen was a
similar renovation which had been a great success This application was before
committee for determination because of changes made to accommodate
wheelchair access.

Head of Planning, Graham Boase, stated that the social landlord had stepped
in when the open market had failed. There was a need for quality affordable
housing.

Proposals:
Councillor J Butterfield proposed that permission be GRANTED
This was seconded by Councillor C Hughes

On being put to the vote:
21 voted to Grant

4 voted to Refuse

2 Abstained

PERMISSION WAS THEREFORE GRANTED

The decision is subject to the completion of an obligation under Section 106 of
the 1990 Planning Act within 12 months of the date of resolution by the
committee to secure

(@) the provision of 6 affordable housing units and the retention of these
units for affordable purposes

The Certificate of Decision would only be released on completion of the legal
obligation, and on failure to complete within the time period, the application
would be re-presented to the committee and determined in accordance with the
policies of the Council applicable at that time, should material circumstances
change beyond a period of12 months after this committee.

Revisions to conditions

Condition 1:

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of two
years from the date of this permission.

The reasons for the suggested recommended revisions are to ensure the early
commencement and completion of works on the Listed Buildings.

Add new condition

17.  The development shall be carried out strictly in compliance with the
recommendation in the Badger Assessment report dated 21 October
2010 and the Protected Species Survey Report received on 30"
November 2011.

Page 15 11



Reason: To ensure due protection to wildlife in connection with the
development.

Page 16 12



Item 6

Application No:  45/2010/1471/LB

Location: 37139 Pendyffryn Road, Rhyl

Description: Listed Building application for alterations, extension and
partial demolition of Plas Penyddeyglawdd with conversion
to 3 dwelling wunits and alterations to existing
vehicular/pedestrian access

The following additional letters of representation were received:

Public Speaker(against):
Mr Mark Pearson did not take the opportunity to speak separately on the listed
building application.

There was no further debate.

Councillor D A J Thomas proposed that Listed Building Consent be
GRANTED

This was seconded by Councillor M LI Davies

On being put to the vote:

20 voted to Grant

4 voted to Refuse

1 Abstained

LISTED BUILDING CONSENT WAS THEREFORE GRANTED

Page 17 13



Item 7
Application No:  45/2011/1510/PF
Location: 4 Wellington Road, Rhyl

Description: Change of use of ground-floor from shop (Class A1) to
Financial & Professional Services (Class A2)

Councillor J Butterfield felt that this application was premature as the premises
was still trading as a retail shop. She thought there was no need for the
proposed use and the new Town Manager should liaise with owners to retain
retail properties.

Councillor D A J Thomas agreed as he felt there was an over-intensification of
this type of use in the area and gave example of enforcement action being
taken for an unauthorised sign at The Money Shop nearby.

Councillors expressed opinions about “Rhyl Going Forward” encouraging retail
shops rather than money lenders and whether Welfare Rights should be
advised of such applications for change of use. Other Councillors though the
application premature, that Town Centres should be as diverse as possible.
Conversely some felt that internet shopping had changed habits and a realistic
view should be taken.

Councillors D A J Thomas and R W Hughes felt there should be a Town Centre
Policy to ensure a mix of shops, not clustered together by type and Councillor |
Gunning suggested lower business rates for local retailers.

Head of Planning, Graham Boase, explained that the proposed change of use
was acceptable in planning terms. The committee had to judge whether A2 use
(which would include a Bank or Building Society) is suitable in the area or not.
However he felt that “loss of an existing A1 shop” would be possible to justify as
a reason for refusal.

Councillor J Butterfield said she would prefer not to have vacant shops in the
town centre but felt there was already a proliferation of this proposed type of
business in Rhyl and as they cluster together (as do charity shops or Banks)
they create their own areas and atmospheres.

Councillor B Smith suggested that this proposal would be contrary to policy
RET6 and therefore this could be a suitable reason for refusal.

Proposals:
Councillor J Butterfield proposed that permission be REFUSED
This was seconded by Councillor D Hannam

On being put to the vote:
6 voted to Grant

19 voted to Refuse

1 Abstained

Page 18 14



PERMISSION WAS THEREFORE REFUSED
For the following reason:

1. In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority, the change of use from an
existing and operating A1 retail shop to an A2 use in this location would
be unacceptable in that it would contribute to a further dilution of the
retail shopping function in the town centre, as it would not maintain,
enhance or improve the viability and vitality of the centre, contrary to
policy RET6 and RET1 of the Denbighshire Unitary Development Plan,
and to the wider aims of the Council’'s Rhyl Going Forward Strategy and
Delivery Plan.

The decision to refuse permission, being contrary to the recommendation of the
Planning Officer, was taken on the basis that the proposed use of the building
would have a detrimental impact on the viability and vitality of the town centre,
contrary to planning policy.

Page 19 15



Item 8

Application No:  45/2012/0042/PC

Location: Molly Mouse Day Nursery, The Church, Princes Street,
Rhyl
Description: Internal alterations and change of use to provide multi use

community facility including café/food co-op, resource
centre and community meeting venue (retrospective
application)

The following additional letters of representation were reported from:
Chris Ruane MP

Councillor T R Hughes asked whether a flood assessment had been carried out.

Development Control Manager, Paul Mead, explained that as this is an existing
use, the flood assessment policy did not apply.

Councillor J Butterfield gave the history of the property. It had a planning use
for a play centre, limited to Monday to Friday. It was subsequently granted
weekend opening for a café. Pennaf bought it and gave it to the community. At
present the only business operating from the premises is a Company Car
scheme. Change of use is required for D2 use from D1 use as there is a public
entrance to the café.

Councillor G C Evans referred to Rhyl Town Council’s objection on behalf of
local businesses.

Councillor J Bellis suggested adding the conditions requested by Rhyl Town
Council.

Development Control Manager, Paul Mead, noted the Town Council comments
and advised that Highways Officers had assessed parking issues and
considered that it would not exacerbation the present situation.

He suggested imposing a temporary permission to allow the impact to be
monitored.

Councillor J Butterfield said that this was a contentious issue. There are double
yellow lines in the vicinity and although the business had previously had two
parking permits this was no longer the case. Councillor Butterfield understood
the business may move to the town centre in due course, subject to funding.

Councillor J Bellis asked again about the Town Council suggestions but officers
felt the existing conditions sufficiently covered these issues.

Proposals:

Councillor J Butterfield proposed that permission be GRANTED
This was seconded by Councillor | Armstrong

Page 20 16



On being put to the vote:
21 voted to Grant

0 voted to Refuse

2 Abstained

PERMISSION WAS THEREFORE GRANTED

This meeting being the last before the Local Elections, Head of Planning,
Graham Boase, thanked all the Members of Committee and particularly those
Councillors who were not standing for re-election.

He thanked past chair, Councillor M LI Davies, Vice-Chair Councillor R Bartley
and singled out the outgoing Chair Councillor S Thomas, who was not standing
again for Council. He thanked Councillor S Thomas for his professionalism and
fairness and for the unique and lively way he conducted the meetings.

Councillor S Thomas thanked Officers for the support he had received over the
years and wished everyone all the best for the future.

The meeting closed at 12.20pm

Page 21 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



Agenda Item 7

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
PLANNING COMMITTEE 30" May 2012
INDEX TO REPORT

Item Application No Location and Proposal Page

No No

1 02/2012/0241/PF  Land at (Part garden of) Llys Deri Bryn Goodman 25
Ruthin

Alterations to vehicular access previously granted under
Code No. 02/2011/0167 to serve existing dwelling and
proposed new dwelling

2 23/2011/1447/PF  Bryn Morfydd Llanrhaeadr Denbigh 33
Layout and siting of 42 no. holiday lodges, reception and
temporary warden's accommodation including associated
facilities, parking, landscaping, and infrastructure

3 27/2012/0009/PF  Tan Y Fron Farm Tan Y Fron Lane Eglwyseg 51
Llangollen
Erection of an agricultural building for the storing of fodder
and housing livestock

4 43/2012/0143/TP  20c Bryntirion Drive Prestatyn 59
Felling of 2 No. Sycamore trees numbered T41 & T43 and
crown reduction by 25 per-cent of 2 No. Sycamore trees
numbered T40 & T42 on the plan annexed to the Borough
of Rhuddlan (Woodland Park Prestatyn) Tree
Preservation Order No. 3, 1985 and replanting with British
species, i.e. Silver Birch

5 45/2011/1048/PF  Land at Cefndy Trading Estate, Ffordd Derwen and 65
Cefndy Road Rhyl
Development of 1.35ha of land by the erection of 24 no.
dwellings including landscaping, open space and access
and erection of a 1,299 sgm commercial unit including
parking, servicing and access

6 47/2012/0333/PC  Field No. 6105, Bryntirion Farm Rhuallt St. Asaph 81
Continuation of use of land as ancillary play area to main
dwelling and retention of tree house (Retrospective
Application)

7 47/2012/0368/PC  Bryntirion Rhuallt St. Asaph 89
Erection of building to house water storage tank
(retrospective application)

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



CYNGOR Heading:

* o = - 02/2012/0241/PF
'SH m@f}’ﬂ ‘g{%@h Garden at Llys Deri

Den b.i gh‘i’hf e Bryn Goodman, Ruthin
COUNTY COUNCEHE

Graham Boase Application Site N
Head of Planning & Public Protection [’(\
Denbighshire County Council Date 16/5/2012 Scale 1/2500

Caledfryn Centre = 312920 E 358599 N

Smithfield Road This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOGATION of
Denbigh the applicaticn site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
Denbighshire LL16 3RJ it doas not form any part of the application documents, and should ot

he taken as representative cf the proposals to be considered, which are

Tel: 01824 706800 Fax: 01824 706709 : A natve *
available for inspection prior to the meeting.

\\ /////J,/' \.‘\l‘:(\/o/\m ;(5 \\. //,}; e \\\\
T %, 1‘}.\\'\ /:y / N
,5\«%; \%\\ (%:\\\ @ _’ poY ,,?; \ N
It T a

%1;
\a ({ ji@\\? e = =i e .

o " ( Crest /C’\-\ \\‘
) :

ALY
e = \%jfﬂ¥cwgudra3/,/'}‘\\| U L \\
B e s\ e
/1 \ %QL L ”’Lr;\%;i, %‘é/\ Y /’lﬁ “

Sports Field

N ) \c :
s \\‘y,/"‘ X ._ \ ;
L \ Ve E!uwling.
3

o

| r 7
e
'—\_rJ: Hendre cond ;;; “-—“!i \»/ \/\>/¢j/' Feanant o @iﬂi/ a5 .///
o > T
j ’/,,/ \ y

ES— -/” g
2 oton E Dm\’n:ij“

e
‘-.‘_‘__ HRETIL P
. Cuelmor

T
-

A % >
ey \%,\,\\;a{\\,‘x_fs‘ii

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey raterial with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
& Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408, 2011

Atﬂ(nhyrchir ¥ map hwn o ddeunydd gl'r Ordriance Survey gyda chaniatad yr Ordnance Survey ar ran Rhaotwr Llyfrfa £ Mawrhydi
@ Hawifraint y Goron. Mae atgynfiyrchu heb ganiatad yn tefr hawifraint y Goren a gzl hyn arpﬁtﬁﬁad 7@)51105 sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408, 2011.




SEEICY Y HIGRL,
ol ayasodosy
]
ey - - e
¥ gt 2y pOn e

4
. af/t_u 125 W Housg Allodws |, b G 2|pjal 5j8As]

4
oy Usuag ADlodius] [2Aa] 1004 peusig = WE L T44

A

S
T

*HE0 2 Lkh
dlune 0} sloop [ el I8 FUE JWTY 3} 0 SPIOYSRILL [9ATT POl

o
A
c\w“”“ §o= 3
) IEss n aat ety
o
o..»,.o:uo”ouuun
ataniity
‘EpjoyEaIL | a8 i
souds meAyd 16 VEH

aneds eeAlld BLUPUES by WS Ja NG & $PIAal

05 S
So5etiss
Taciiianianiate
3098 ae etya elatinloly!
eagesanteluaiisetaniatesieny
9aaatutad ulasod el on il
atgegetosteiciialecento:
ot‘“‘i“”v %
<3
a3y
¥ty
Sulareitny
LAy
»! 9Ly
RIS R i e
ATty
o2essatstistatast
~asEq Eja.sL0d -iiwoneﬁ e
e

& Un Ayaedea Jop) poE “Xordde hra pEH asnol 1ad U isoduied "eN |

g jeodiing ig Lyih
4

ey epesucy
2 ua Ayoacles Jev) 05| xeudes dpws plab ashol Jad 10 JarAroN L

0

by

2980T,
53 A 1y
s

pEa0as et
SPNE JalEM 1T YA

‘el uERea 18y
| o s s s o = s o svvos oo
|
,

SRR ANbaY [EuR 1L SYAL
|

EUZ 000U OYTIA PISH SSOGH [P ON £
\

aunb 3y FELIAKA 1 SYRA
£002 ** 178€ B8 @1 407 Prag] Soluo Wekilied [P
|

i

B g ot 00 Eoe Bugsae] spjaeid o syl
Plibi]|uIELR 89 JUBLUBOIOIUIR YKk S5ET THRITUS T RiFHaeT 5 FeyS
“Bauiepm RUEOGIUBISS HSO Wt Ackun ]

Pl s o W wseE

EEHZ]
j

‘ﬂ

BupyB Qymaeg 3 anpdg [eng g . .
EETE] V “ !
/

i)

\

“BUpRYs iR o ] poinbisy - vejspnig eoeds

Y

Buiag

AN

“AyALRE[e pUB
Unpshunsuns jeny Arewud yo ashyalf ajelsUIWap oy yun Aeidslp Afeug

[ —
EEE]

pUSBaTHED

/,
\/ X \\\ /
\

A
%
P

y MO 33

]

LY JIYSUOT VY FL

SN
B

\ \\/ .Egr_\a
\/\ ‘\/

Ol
-5 000G D L00) [UaAS.
Y wv edi] 5|1 ebalfbD sa
N
e

[ UGl I sLInDD
3 [F{RUSIFRITEIEN Umm.
biog Buhe pus sBad yn aspid u'play suoigquiow

SIYHEI0DD UD CaMOSD LULLGLY LI ADMaPID
500} SpUyY Ag peAa)
‘eq ups 1o de) Al poyjaus
Eﬂm_um 194no ALy Wl AD
!
\\

7]
i ou o BUBE WIS sl
« WZ pafls &
NoSEi0Hd E.@m
4 / .

=

-
UiDs PUD Uolpien

13 L)

O Apshasug

/\\

SH L] 35VE-Ens AVMIAN




W gt 7075
g fasen/BE |

o

i #Ug precdoag
o3, s % W o

PG iy
i o 3 T

s |9k P G - 13 SE
1] gpamiasetii 2 | gmmrre betLierd|
WO i P g P

5108}y

sapoLS VA fhv m

§ mgueds 8 mpoiu )

SLINOD)
JNE]

SYiS DY) 1D 485 DY UDumg Aot 1odila), D o} aIpal 58T
AR Uouag Aplodulat [saen J 100l PRUSUE = WTLTT4H

Hpgedian

ey
\\onowo-
v raaassieds
2350 257 N

A3e85eS:
36 jake¥ies
e ey a0 )
pisesatetany

Spalatys!
Seacaeet
DAt
s
$afiatanyeiod
Read
i hecetenatania
ol fatezesgenets

i &




ITEM NO:

WARD NO:

APPLICATION NO:

PROPOSAL.:

LOCATION:

APPLICANT:

CONSTRAINTS:

PUBLICITY
UNDERTAKEN:

PDG
1

Ruthin
021201210241/ PF

Alterations to vehicular access previously granted under Code No.
02/2011/0167 to serve existing dwelling and proposed new dwelling

Land at (Part garden of) Llys Deri Bryn Goodman Ruthin
MrR Wilson

PROW
PD Removed

Site Notice - No
Press Notice - No
Neighbour letters - Yes

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2

s Recommendation to grant / approve — 4 or more objections received

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
RUTHIN TOWN COUNCIL

“No objections.”

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES:

HEAD OF HIGHWAYS AND INFRASTRUCTURE:
No objection subject fo conditions.

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:
Letters of representation received from:
Mr. P. H. Helm, Hunters Lodge, Bryn Goodman, Ruthin
R. C. Greening, Meriden, Bryn Geodman, Ruthin
Mr. & Mrs. Aiyar, Oaklea, Bryn Goodman, Ruthin
Ruthin Bowling Club, c/o Bryn Goodman, Ruthin

Summary of planning based representations:
= Impact on highway safety, in terms of additional vehicular movements.
e Loss of residential amenity as a result of proximity to Llys Deri.
e Harm to visual amenity through potential harm to trees and hedgerow.

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 02/05/2012

REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):

additional information required fram applicant

Page 28



PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals
1.1.1 Permission is sought for alterations to an existing vehicular access to allow
the access to serve both an existing dwelling and a dwelling which is currently
under construction on Bryn Goodman, Ruthin.

1.1.2 The works involved include the widening of the existing access, and an
amended layout for the parking and turning area of the new dwelling. (see the
plans at the front of the report).

1.2 Description of site and surroundings
1.2.1 The site is located within a residential area within Ruthin. It is located at the
top of Bryn Goodman, an un-adopted highway which links Greenfield Road
and Rhos Street (A494).

1.2.2 The site is bound by an established beech hedge, and there are a number of
mature trees present.

1.2.3 The area is characterised by a range of dwelling types and accesses.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations
1.3.1 None

1.4 Relevant planning history
1.4.1 Permission was granted in May 2011 for a new dwelling to be erected

adjacent to Llys Deri. That scheme proposed the access to be separate from
the existing access to Llys Deri, by creating a new access across land not in
the ownership of the applicant {see the plan at the front of this report).

1.4.2 Subsequent to the grant of that permission, it is understood the applicant and
the land owner have not been able {o reach an agreement as to a right of
access across that land, and so the applicant has submitted this current
application to gain access from Llys Deri's existing access.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1 The current scheme originally proposed a gated entrance to the new dwelling,
and a more angular approach off Bryn Goodman. In the scheme that is now
being considered, the gate has been removed, and the drive-way iayout
amended to make vehicular movements easier.

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.1 It would appear that the application has been submitted to overcome land
ownership issues, which are not matters of relevance to the determination.
The application should be considered on the planning issues listed under
section 4 of this report.

1.6.2 Some concerns have been raised by residents that construction of the
dwelling is under way. Members are advised that this is at the developers
awn risk prior to the determination of this application. The existing access is
being used to enable the works to continue. This arrangement is not
considered to be a breach of planning control.

Page 29



2.

3.

4.

DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:

2.1 02/2011/0167/PF — Refurbishment, alterations and construction of new vehicular
access to Llys Deri, and the erection of 1 no. detached two storey dwelling within the
garden area. Granted under delegated powers 16" May 2012

RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:
The main planning policies and guidance are considered to ba:
3.1 DENBIGHSHIRE UNITARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN (adopted 3™ July 2002)
Policy GEN 1 — Development Within Development Boundaries
Policy GEN 6 — Development Control Requirements
Policy TRA 6 — Impact of New Development on Traffic Flows
Policy ENV 7 — Landscape f Townscape Features

3.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance
None

3.3 GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE
Technical Advice Note 18 - Transport

MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:
4.1 The main land use planning issues are considered to be:
411 Principle
4.1.2 Impact upon visual amenity
4.1.3 Highway safety
4.1.4 Impact upon residential amenity

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:
421 Principle

The site is located within the defined development boundary of Ruthin where
the general principle of development is acceptable (Policy GEN 1), and it
benefits from an extant planning permissicn for a dwelling. The overall
principle of development is therefore not questioned. The acceptahility of the
proposal should be considered con the basis of its impacts upon the amenity of
the area and highway safety, as detailed below.

4.2.2 |mpact upon visual amenity
Policy GEN 6 contains general criteria which aim to ensure proposals for new
development respect the character and appearance of the area within which it
is located. Proposals which do not meet the criteria should be resisted. In this
instance, given the presence of several mature trees, and established beech
hedge, Policy ENV 7 is also of relevance. Policy ENV 7 seeks to retain
features such as frees which are of substantive value to townscape character.
Development which would harm such features should be resisted unless
adequate mitigation measures are proposed.

The site is located within a residential street which features many vehicutar
accesses onto it. Notable features which add value to the appearance of the
area are the mature trees and beech hedge along the boundary of the site.
The scheme proposes to retain these features. The hard standing for the
driveway would be located 2 metres from the outer edge of the tree stems,
and constructed using geotextile road construction method, (a method which
is intended to prevent root compaction and help ensure the longevity of the
trees). Additional planting is proposed to the front of the existing dwelling.

[t is considered that the proposal will have limited impact upen the

appearance of the existing access. The retenticn of the mature trees is
welcomed and the method of protection adequate. The additional planting

Page 30



4.2.3

424

would add additicnal value to the appearance of the site and surrounding
area. Subject to planning conditions requiring the prior approval of surface
materials, protection of the trees, and landscaping, the proposal is considered
to comply with Policies ENV 7 and GEN & in terms of the impact upon visual
amenity.

Highway Safety
Policy GEN 6 and TRA 6 contain criteria which control the impact of new

development on the safe and free flow of traffic on the highway. Proposals for
development where it can be demonstrated there would be a significant loss
of highway safety should be resisted.

The proposal would utilise an existing entrance onto the highway which
currently serves one dwelling. The access would be widened slightly, to
improve maneuverability into and out of the site. When exiting the site it is
estimated that there would be a visibility distance of approximately 45metres
to the left, and in excess of 70 metres to the right. The proposal has been
examined by the Head of Highways and Infrastructure, and no objection has
been raised. It is noted that the application is solely for the relocation of the
access, and that the principle of additional vehicular movements on Bryn
Goodman has already been agreed with the granting of the previous
permission.

Notwithstanding the fact that the entrance already exists, consideration has to
be given to the adequacy of the access in terms of visibility for its use by two
dwellings. Technical Advice Note 18 advises on stopping distances at certain
speeds. Given the condition of the road {broken, uneven, un-surfaced in
parts}, the residential character of the area, and the presence of a right angle
bend, it is considered that typical vehicular speeds would not, {and could not)
exceed 20mph, in relation to which Table A, Annexe B of TAN 18 indicates
that the required stopping distance is approximately 45 metres at 20mph. Itis
considered that the proposal meets these requirements. With regard to the
advice in TAN 18, and in the absence of an objection from the Head of
Highways and Infrastructure, the proposal is considered to comply with
Policies GEN 6 and TRA 6 and would not have a defrimental impact upon
highway safety.

Impact upon Residential Amenity

Criteria v} of Policy GEN 6 seeks to protect the amenity of residents from
adverse impacts which may arise from development, such as, increased
activity, disturbance and noise, for example. The Lecal Planning Authority
should try to resist proposals which result in a loss of residential amenity.

The proposed access to the new dwelling would, at its closest, be 3.5 metres
from the porch of the existing dwelling, Llys Deri. An area of approximately 2
metres in front of the porch is proposed to be a planting bed. The driveway
would not pass directly in front of any principal windows of Llys Deri.

The increase in the amount of vehicular traffic generated by the additional
dwelling is not considered likely to result in adverse impact upon the amenity
of residents of Liys Deri. The distance between the porch and the drive, with
planting between, is considered adequate to protect the privacy of the
occupants of Llys Deri. It is further noted that the owners of Llys Deri are also
the applicants, and it is unlikely that they would want to undertake a form of
development that would significantly reduce the marketability of either of their
properties. It is considered that the proposal would not have an adverse
impact upon the amenity of local residents, and therefore complies with
criterion v} of GEN 6.

Page 31



5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:
5.1 With regard to the above considerations, and with respect to the concerns outlined, it
is concluded that the proposal would have a limited impact upon the character and
amenity of the area. It is therefore recommended that planning permission is granted.

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT - subject to the following conditions:-

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years
from the date of this permission.
2. Facilities shall be provided and retained within each dwelling for the parking of

vehicles in accordance with the approved plan and shall be completed prior to the proposed
development being brought into use.

3 Full details of the vehicular footway crossings shafl be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Highway Authority before the commencement of any site works and the
accesses shall be completed in accordance with the approved plans before they are brought
into use.

4, None of the trees or hedgerows shown on the approved plans as being retained shall
be felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority.
Any trees or hedgerow plants which die or are severely damaged or become setiously
diseased within five years of the completion of the development shall be replaced with trees
or hedgerow plants of such size and species to be agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority.

5, A full planting scheme of new trees, hedgerows, shrubs or vegetation including
species, numbers and location shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority within one month of the date of this permission, and that scheme shall be
implemented in full prior to the occupation of the new dwelling.

8. Any of the plants, shrubs or trees comprised in the planting scheme which die, are
removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting
season with others of a similar size and species.

7. Details of the materials to be used for the driveway surface shall be approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the laying of the new drive way surface, and
the development shall only proceed in accordance with those details.

8. No gates shall be erected within the access/turning/parking areas hereby approved
other than with the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority as to the detailing.

The reason(s) for the condition(s} is(are):-

1. To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990.

2. To provide for the parking of vehicles clear of the highway in the interest of traffic
safety.

3. To ensure the formation of a safe and satisfactory access in the interests of highway
safety.

4, To safeguard the existing trees and hedges on the site, in the interests of the visual
amenities of the locality.

5. In the interest of amenity.

6. In the interest of amenity.

7. In the interest of visual amenity.

8. In the interest of highway safety and residential amenity.

NOTES TO APPLICANT:

Your atiention is drawn to the attached Highway Supplementary Notes Nos. 1, 3, 4, 5 & 10.
Your attention is drawn to the attached Part N form (New Road and Street Works Act 1891).
Your attention is drawn to the attached notes relating to applications for consent to construct
a vehicular crossing over a footway / verge under Section 184 of the Highways Act 1980.

Page 32



CYNGOR Headi;zlzm 111447
gf} Dd}ﬂ E}Vi‘ﬁ Land at Bryn Morfydd

D{?ﬂ bl gh.ﬁ'bll"{f Llanrhaeadr YC

COUNTY COUNCEL
Graham Boase Application Site N
Head of Planning & Public Protection / \
Denbighshire County Council Date 16/5/2012 Scale 1/5000
Caledfryn Cenire = 307835 E 362985 N
Smithfield Road This plan is intended solely fo give an indiction of the LGCATION of
Denbigh _ the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
Denbighshire LL16 3R it does not form any part of the application documents, and should not

be taken as representative of the proposals to be considered, which are
available for inspectiun prior to the meeting.

Tel: 31824 706800 Fax: 01824 706709

. s T:;:f‘ - L ff ey WM 7’3?/3;\ /"2;
\ «?::?71

& A
A

This map is repraduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controlter of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
© Crown copyright. Unautharized reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may Tead to prosecution or civit proceedings. Denbighshire County Coungil. 100023408 2011.

At nbyrchir y map bwn o ddeun dd r Qrdnance Survey gyda chaniatad %r Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheclwr Livirfa Ei Mawrhydi
awifraint y Goron. Mae atgynnyrchu heh ganiatad yn torm hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn aw@ﬁewﬁ n!%ac%os sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408, 2041,




Key & Noles

- Sho Boundary

Propassd Lodges
Wi fedge rumtiera and
propesed baza levals
Propesed Arseas Raads aed Faotpstha -

To ta surtace whn comperted fiacal)
Limesions.

Progosad Natve Spoces. Hudgerow Plandng -
S04 1abll 7 0d MLOEELEL £2TEL Tl (eiEES.

Exliting tres 1 be cemaved or pflardad
pearon traes arm b idorifid e 28 wih ige

e ‘any fren warks,
Exditing tres 1o bs ratslnad

3o Fakley Troo Suivey

Exfating Mature Woodard

Proposed Netive s Planting -

the shte eg_threugh Lrgroved bolterthy hati:al.
See table 1 ard aseoeioied rotns for Ardhar dotalls.
Proposed Feature Tres =

Seatanle 2 ard assedated noies.

Propased Taeus baccala -
To be phanted 2 Invidu tres 1 supplement v
xising yrw avanue. Tiees to be plarted at 1+1.9m high,

Extsling Footpath

Tablfe 1: Specles Mix Schedule
N Wond land Mbe 1 (NWil?)
Pementega: | Spockes: [
Trea Species: 13 ;’:;‘;“‘“"‘" e
el
@ - o =
Pius et
i (Soris Py Hes
Pt zarn
5% = 0.8%am
patd ey A0-G0c
Shiub Specles: | 5% [ 0-550m
= oo ek
Ta% frstiny 40-80cm
Caioecs ronen
S o 40-60em
=N [t apatom
s ey
T4 e bstem
s
% e ap-am
5% e at-Edom.

Proposed tree and shrub planting - Hew Woodland Mhe 1 (NWM1)

“Tra prmazy obioctive of MW plarding |3 fo srovide splis defintlon e sineiue 5
“he Joye £las. 1n 20cTan, LN planteg Wi nezeass tha wooded axpearanca of
ha local Landseape and @ea‘a new wikdiifa Aabitat. Visual sereening of o

Table 2: Mativa Hedgeraw Planting Schadula

Sno. plants per lmearm {26 Mix
TR

Spoclas:| 1oy B
Haveharm) k4
s el -
ey
ey
{Aah 1n
B
o 10

Proposex Native Hedgerow Planting

This paalng comprees the isrskanting ard tapeing
ot enisting

Softworks Hotes

A plaring ebyui
Lanscaping works @ t=ka place whthin 12 months from tha dats when any el or oar peTrited
i o o

gt [0 s Bengarias ane wilbn the cita lsetf,

s whl 3cssen kocallsec viets Wl 2 sha,
A high percentage of SWAH [sae Species Mix Sciiduls

T selmay obbsclba of s planlng b o provise

and

aDcm hlgh (apart from spades such s
By anuifolum wnich il be pot Grow, pit farsd and supponed with = shiie cnc).
Tha smaZor hips il b Vg fe2 1
seferted slandand Lpes i, supporied by @ foe,

o tha .

Plazzs 40 56 octch planted a5 barzront reesphants at
2 skze of a0-50cm high. Smaler s of Pt w3 ba
proleciedwth naividuel plasbs Gt guars,

and
sacured with a singla rubbes lie, These Faer i dvealty
nith Bt Bkl kit 1 I 307 e,

e ol A plaming w3 ba quantified and ngiamented al a dersiy of T.5m
taveraga spacing) o 0,44 skt pr 5 o, Trees wl e planied b g of
5150 and shiudis wih be plasted shaly of I Fandem grouss. All vees and shaubs Wil
ba plantzd I 3 raburallsdc o avolding stralsht rams.

Pl ] b lesd by 12RbR peond past s s fencig oty dhictaal rabblt
guarts. The tybs of ik protaclon sed wl depacd cn ha speclic charmeletslics cf
ach sma of planig.
e by cidmuring e ppicprian an tha
scalicaon of pat sgrovt i farrglor o

ach p b 3 peiedt of t kaast 3 yaars trom the end of die seasoninutich tha
stook was plantad,

] i b
T5era -200 25gh 2t 5% selsaled startsrd rees - 10-T30m gz,

et haagerms could b [uetectad By rebkR proes ot
st s leowing,

& o be plarzed on 3 dous
o Bl 3 deraly of 5 planta pas lnear erctizvih 3
sacig of 00T betusen 2l

UWaed grtwth 110 e conlrolled by netlce

appliaions where mesesmry, Tof @ perdd of 3 y2ar
irom the eod o e seasen [ whith Bt slock wis

Alptrees, hercig, shmbs and planta tn comply with 85 3958 spectleation fo rarzery slodc Do not

suatiung spscies, variaty and Siod size and cumber of phs whbous fice

agmemert, MGt sttad ahaan 8 rebnlitun.

Al e rees 10 be posHioned In aeoorianc wikh requiemants of lbis 2 B S&37:2005.

Al phariig 1 e waterad &% A ety aRAr plantng, A placls [5 L treg frem pass and
gecd specznans Do ot plant anyrng |n he einshaacw

undier 2 roaf avarhar g,

tandscaps: schedule a
niEn paoe &1 § yeare.
Allorw for e ti

decid b Fits D752 per ireo pil of
gremm orads sl n BS 372,1554,

Stahas to e Gamm cla. mnalised soitiood and golmed 3t ans and, Top of stsss 1o be 560m-n sbova poan
vl et 1 o wilh 3 Ho sudlablc rubbie i, Sake 1 9 [ In grownd, pacdlan stake AL e &l

slontng,

Scilng o be ¢ 3 minieum degeh GF455mm for planing prees ny 150mm i deph for e, 50l p be
prambum grade kpsdd o BS 394

Al st preposason, planting and eaitaranca to comply with 38 4422,1650,

Ay recs, shiuks o hednes pamed
IOy, (2, EECNT Sinett

e,
= or sedzusy  phardg
Feus of htging ik

Ak th pantig ¥

plarted [eam r Fc *

iy repdred 1o b LPA ehy
Korees, shiuba or hatges withln the e hkch e shan 1o e mtzined oa e apovied plars shall ta
Tollod, ugpractod o w2fcly damagud & ettty CL BEK U ariy Wi Of 1A Uit T
warten enrsent ef dha LIEAT any rees, sHuts or hedges mmoved hiscul such corsend o7 g ar belrg
i i cise ez treen |
¥ Tsea, shrubs o vadge
P4 ghies wrkien consonl o any varizton.

size ana speddes Lrfsss e

Page 34

Tabka 3: Feature Trees

Pertentage: | Speciest Size:
Traas Spardes: | 6% (‘;;;:’-‘"W 10-120m
O 810

G
0% ) Wiz

Festure Trees
e e am e paree bohactai, ki cen g 25 1020
2 ke utie e,

Revislons!

e Larch 012 = Rusrhc ot kg reduced Tom 541 43, Lo sheitey
s cries

bourebry wih Hiceibog Tak o imrevm oFeet dsnrs,
im0 3 A01.2-hn STRITATS I i 2 S50 0 s 2L

ur
ety Bt

rart o am s e = Sk i,

Drawing Tidex Landscapa Layout Plan

Breuing Number| - RI2042.100

Projact THa: Bryn Morfydd Lodge Park
Cant Mr & Mrs Jones

Sesler 1:500 @ A1

Date: 112011

Drawm By: SH Crackeany 1 NF




ITEM NO:

WARD NO:

APPLICATION NO:

PJM
2

Llanrhaeadr Yng Nghinmeirch

23/2011/1447/ PF

PROPOSAL: Layout and siting of 42 no. holiday lodges, reception and temporary
warden's accommodation including associated facilities, parking,
landscaping, and infrastructure

LOCATION: Bryn Morfydd Llanrhaeadr Denbigh

APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs Mathew Jones

CONSTRAINTS: PROW
250m Of Landfill Site
Ancient, Semi Natural Woodland

PUBLICITY Site Notice - Yes

UNDERTAKEN: Press Notice - Yes
Neighbour letters - Yes

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:

LLANRHAEADR COMMUNITY COUNCIL —
“The observations of the Llanrthaeadr Community Council to the above planning

application are:-

1. Members feel that only a development of 27 holiday lodges should be allowed for
this application as 54 are far too many.

2. The highway infrastructure is not sufficient (too narrow) to handle the additional
traffic the development would create.

3. The development would create light pollution during the hours of darkness.”

(These comments relate to the revised scheme for 42 lodges also)

COUNTRYSIDE COUNCIL FOR WALES (CCW)

CCW does nct object to the proposals having regard to landscape impact or impacts on
protected species

DWR CYMRU/WELSH WATER
No objections subject to further details of the existing hotel drainage.

ENVIRONMENT AGENCY
No ohbjection, however, if the method of drainage {connection to main sewer) is
amended an Environmental permit would be required.

CLWYD POWYS ARCHAEOLOGICAL TRUST (CPAT)

No archaeological impacts are predicted at this site. The lodges and infrasiructure will
be well screened in long distance and nearby views by woodland and woutld not require
an ASIDOHL Assessment in this case.

COUNCIL FOR THE PROTECTION OF RURAL WALES
Raise concerns about the number of lodges, parking areas, light poliution and
narrowness of access roads leading o and from site.

Page 35




DENBIGH AND DISTRICT CIVIC SOCIETY
Society is pleased to see the development of the site but wishes to see a non-reflective
surface on the roofs of the lodges.

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES

HEAD OF HIGHWAYS AND INFRASTRUCTURE
No objection, given the existing lawful use of the site. Conditions to be imposed
requiring details of parking and furning areas and the proposed visibility splays/access.

HEAD OF HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATION — RIGHTS OF WAY SECTION
As footpath 65 crosses the site, conditions need to be imposed to safeguard this right
of way.

BIODIVERSITY OFFICER

Is happy with the landscape plan but seeks some further information on the impacts on
bats and reptiles on site.

TREE CONSULTANT

Submitted documents are of a high standard and tree survey is thorough. Conditions
needed to protect the Yew Avenue on site and further protection to trees on the
woodland boundary.

WATER QUALITY, POLLUTION AND ENVIRONMENT OFFICER
Details required in relation to claim of harnessing water as a sustainable opportunity to
limit consumption.

LANDSCAPE CONSULTANT

No objection to the revised 42 lodge layout. This scheme addresses previous concerns
about the impact upon the character, Jocal views and additional planting. A landscape
management plan will be required to be submitted before work commences and a no-
dig construction for roads below trees would be needed.

COUNTY ARCHAEOLOGIST
Concurs with views of CPAT that there will be no negative impacts from the proposal.

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:
Letters of representation received from:
In Support

Darren Millar AM (e-mail)

David Jones MP — Clwyd West

D. C. Roberts, Bryn Dyfnog, Llanrhaeadr

Mrs S Cooke, Nant Mawr, Llanrhaeadr

R. & L. Roberts, Coedfa, Llanbedr D.C. (e-mail)

In Objection

Mr. R. Shone, The Lodge, Llanrhaeadr

W. R. Williams, Llewesog Isaf, Lianrhaeadr

Mr. Huw LI. Roberts, Delfan, Llanrhaeadr {(e-mail}

Mr. P. Willlams, 8, Bryn Llan, Llanrhaeadr®

G.M. & B.M. Bitcon, Derwen, Llanrhaeadr Y.C.*

Miss S.M. Armer, J.P., Rhew! Cotiage, Prion™

Ms. 8. Van Der Bijl, Ty Cerrig, Llanrhaeadr

Ms. S. Cook, Ty Mawr, Lianrhaeadr

E. & M. Williams, Siop y Pentre, Llanrhaeadr Y.C., Denbigh

Page 36




Mr. G. Jones, Liwyn Afon, Llanrhaeadr Y.C., Denbigh”

Mr. J. Hill, Llys Erw, Llanrhaeadr Y.C., Denbigh (e-maif)*

Mrs. L.M. & Mr. R. G. Leece, Pen y Bryn Isaf, Llanrhaeadr (e-mail)*
Mr loan A Jones, Ty Mawr, Prion®

Mr. A. Rogers, Parc Coffage, Llanrhaeadr (e-mail)*

Mr. P. & Mrs. J. Bassom, Penbryn Parc, Llanrhaeadr*

R. Wilyman, Jones Peckover, 47, Vale Street, Denbigh*

M. & H. Lucas, Y Fedwen Arian, Llanrhaeadr®

* denotes further objection to revised scheme of 42 lodges.
Summary of planning based concerns/objections:

Highways, parking and accessibility

- the access roads leading to and from the site are too narrow with few useable
passing places.

- There will be an increase in traffic which can not be accommodated by the existing
roads.

- Limited access to public transport, cycle routes or footpaths.

- Concemns over the impact on existing rights of way

- Unsustainable location which relies upon use of the car.

Nature Conservation and biodiversity

- Concerns over impacts on species such as bats and birds. Also pofential
disturbance to livestock, wildlife and game from the increased use of the site by
tourists.

Noise and Nuisance
- Concerns over the increased use of the site and resultant noise, litter and nuisance
caused to a tranquil rural location. Increased risk of crime in the village.

Landscape
- Concerns over the impact on the wider Vale of Clwyd landscape. Potential for light
poliution having negative impacts on the visual amenities of the area.

Welsh Language
- The number of lodges proposed in this rural Welsh village could have a negative
impact on the Welsh Language.

Summary of points in support for scheme:-
Economy
- The regeneration of this derelict former hotel/leisure use will be a welcome boost to
the rural economy with tourists spending money in the village.
- The visual improvements to the site will also enhance the tourist offer locally with
walkers and other visitors enjoying the improved landscape.
Habitat
- The landscape works around the site will enhance the visual appearance and will
preserve natural habitats.
EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 08/02/2012
REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):

o protracted negotiations resulting in amended plans

Page 37




re-consultations / further publicity necessary on amended plans and / or
additional information

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals

1.1.1

113

The application proposes the siting of 42 holiday lodges, a temporary
warden’s lodge, reception lodge and associated facilities, parking,
landscaping and infrastructure at the former Bryn Morfydd Hotel and golf
course, Llanrhaeadr. The site would be accessed via an existing unclassified
road to the north of the site which links to the A525. There is an alternative,
narrower access route from the south of the site it is proposed that vehicles
will be directed to the more direct route from the village using signage.

The supporting information submitted with the application also explains the
applicant's intention to implement a phased restoration of the main Bryn
Morfydd building to create residential use therein. The applicant suggests that
conditions could be imposed o ensure such works are undertaken as the
lodge scheme develops.

The application includes the following documentation:

Design and Access Statement (DAS). The report sets out the basis of the 42 lodge
proposal and emphasises the design principles and concepts. it argues in the section
“Environmental [Sustainability” that the scheme puts the open part of a disused site to
good use, safeguarding woodtand, hedgerows and stone walls. It emphasises that it
poses no threat to habitats around the site. The report goes through other headings
including “Movement to from and within the development”, “*Character”, *Community
Safety”, and “Physical, social, econamic and policy context.” The report concludes
that the scheme forms a highly sustainable form of holiday accommodation which
will benefit the rural economy.

Landscape and Visual Assessment. The report notes that the site lies within
the Vale of Clwyd landscape. It concludes that there would be low levels of
adverse landscape impact by the removal of trees and the introduction of the
lodges, access roads and cars. The report goes on to conclude that the
impacts will be mitigated by the removal of ornamental tree species, the
retention of the Yew Avenue within the site, the removal of the golf course and
the reinstatement of the original landform across the site. Dry stone walling will
be repaired along the nearby lanes with more hedgerow and tree planting.
None of this would be done if not for this regenerative proposal.

Landscape Management Plan. The report sets out proposed woodland
planting; feature tree planting; native species hedgerows; short grasses and
explains the maintenance regimes for each area.

Transport Statement. The report concludes that the development shown will
not have a significantly greater impact than the previous use with adequate on-
site parking available for cars and bicycles.

Planning Supporting Statement. The statement is to be read in coniunction with
a revised and updated DAS as described above.

1.2 Description of site and surroundings

1.2.1

The site lies in an elevated position on the western edge of the Vale of Clwyd
and comprises a sloping golf course area to the north of the former Bryn
Morfydd Hotel complex. Comprising areas of grazed grass and trees, the
presence of the former golf course (designed by Peter Allis) is still apparent

Page 38




1.2.2

123

1.2.4

due to the prominence of a number of ornamental trees and scattered,
contrived landforms which were created to form fees, greens and bunkers.

The central section of the site itself contains a number of mature {rees. To the
western part of the site is a2 hard surfaced tennis court.

To the south of the site, separated by a rural road is the main Bryn Morfydd
site comprising of mainly derelict buildings and large parking areas. To the
north and west of the application site are steeply undulating mainly
agricultural fields located on the scarp slope adjacent to the Vale. These
fields are interrupted by areas of woodland and large mature trees.

Located approximately 400m to the north-west of the site is the village of
Llanrhaeadr. Around 700m to the south is Pentre Lianrhaeadr. A public
footpath 65 crosses the site with the Hiraethog Trail running to the south and
west.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations

1.3.1

The site lies within the non-statutory Vale of Clwyd Landscape of Outstanding
Historic Interest. It is located outside any development boundary in the
Unitary Plan. There are no known flood risk issues in this location.

1.4 Relevant planning history

1.4.1

There have been a number of planning applications relating to the main hotel
complex involving extensions and alterations. There has not been any
relevant holiday lodge proposals at this site before but see "Other relevant
background information” below.

1.5 Developments/changes since the eriginal submission

1.5.1

The original scheme proposed 54no. holiday lodges on the site. The
application was lacking some supporting information in respect to the DAS
and other key areas. Following a meeting with the applicants a new agent
was appointed. This resulted in the scheme being amended to reduce the
number of lodges to 42 and to re-site them. Further information was then
submitted with the revised scheme providing a more detailed landscape and
visual assessment, a landscape management plan and supplementary
supporting information on the proposed temporary warden’s accommeodation
on site.

1.6 Other relevant background information

1.6.1

1862

Members will be aware of similar sized proposals for holiday lodges at sites in
Badfari recently. Whilst not wholly comparable to this proposal those
applications are of relevance to the assessment here. A Planning Appeal was
dismissed at a site known as the Blue Hand Field in Bodfari in April 2010.
That scheme sought permission for some 60 [odges in an open countryside
location with similar historic/general landscape characteristics. The Inspector
dismissed this appeal on the basis of the loss of the best and most versatile
agricultural land. Other issues such as the sustainability of the site, reliance
on the use of the car, pedestrian mobility etc were considered negative
factors but were nof considered sufficient reasons in themselves to dismiss
the case.

More recently Members refused a smalter scheme at the April 2012
Committee for 20 no. holiday lodges on a site adjacent to the Blue Hand site
at The Glyn, Lleweni, Bodfari. Members were concerned about the cramped
najure of the development, sustainability issues relating to the reliance on the

Page 39




2.

3.

car and insufficient information to assess the significance of high quality
agricultural fand.

1.8.3 Officers feel it justified to mention the above cases but would remind
Members that this case should be dealt with on its merits having regard to the
material considerations set out later in this report.

DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:

2.1 None of direct relevance to this proposal. However, there was a permission to further
extend the main hote! building involving an adjacent stable block back in 1991. This
scheme was commenced but was never completed. This could have a bearing,
however, on the future renovations and extensions to the main buifding as possibie
conditions of any permission.

RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:
The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:
3.1 DENBIGHSHIRE UNITARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN (adopted 3™ July 2002)

Strategic Policies 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 8, 9, 11,12, 13, 14, 16

Policy GEN 3 — Development Outside Development Boundaries
Policy GEN 6 — Development Control Requirements

Policy GEN 8 — Planning Obligations

Policy GEN 10 — Supplementary Planning Guidance

Policy ENV 1 — Protection of Natural Environment
Policy ENV 2 — Development affecting the AONB/AOB
Policy ENV 6 — Species Protection

Policy ENV 7 — Landscape/Townscape features
Policy ENV 8 — Woodlands

Policy ENP 3 — Water resources

Policy ENP 4 - Foul and Surface water drainage

Policy TSM 1 ~ Tourism Development
Policy TSM 9 — Static Caravan and Chalet Development

Policy TRA 1 — Public Transport

Policy TRA 5 - Improvements to primary/strategic highway networks
Policy TRA 6 ~ Impact of new development on traffic flows

Policy TRA 8 — Parking and Servicing Provision

Policy TRA 10 - Public Rights of Way

Policy TRA 11 - Walking and Cycling routes

3.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance
SPG 2 — Landscape in New Developmenis
SPG 6 — Trees and Development
SPG 8 — Access for All
SPG 15 — Archaeology
SPG 18 — Nature Conservation and Species Protection
SPG 20 - Static Caravan and Chalet Development
SPG 21 - Parking

Other Council Documents

Denbighshire Local Biodiversity Action Pian 2003
A Countryside Strategy for Denbighshire 1998
Denbighshire Landscape Strategy 2003

Page 40




Denbighshire — Access for all Guide

3.3 GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE
Planning Policy Wales, 2011
TAN 5 — Nature Conservation and Planning
TAN 6 — Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities, 2010
TAN 11 — Noise
TAN 12 — Design
TAN 13 — Tourism
TAN 15 — Development and Flood Risk
TAN 18 — Transport

Circulars and Statutory Instruments
Circular 35/95 — Use of Planning Conditions in Planning Permission
Circular 03/99 — Non-Mains sewerage systems

4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:
4.1 The main land use planning issues are considered to be:
411 Principle
4.1.2 Scale of Development
41.3 Impact on Residential Amenity
414 The capacity of the highways network and impact on highway safety
415 Impact on nature conservation, including protected species
416 Flood risk and drainage issues
417 Impact on water supply
4.1.8 Impact on archaeology
4.1.9 Impact on landscape and trees
4.1.10 Inclusive access

Other Issues
Occupancy of lodges
Economic considerations

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:
4.2.1 Principle

The Unitary Development Plan reaffirms the support for susiainable
development. Strategic policies STRAT 1 — 16 highlight those considerations
necessary in relation to such development; referring to considerations
relevant to the location of development; regeneration; energy efficiency;
minimising waste; integrated transport systems and design quality. Briefly, in
terms of specific strategic issues; STRAT 1 sets the main sustainable
development approach with preference for maximising the use or re-use of
derelict, vacant and under used land and buildings for development as
opposad fo greenfield sites; and requires that development is located so as to
minimise the need for travel by private car and utilise existing infrastructure,
facilities and services; the protection of biodiversity; protecting the best and
most versatile agricuitural land. STRAT 5 highlights the need for high quality
design including the need to protect the character of the locality and respect
local styles. STRAT 6 states that development in the open countryside will
only be permitted in exceptional circumstances, whilst STRAT 7 considers the
impact of proposals on the [andscape/built heritage, nature conservation,
biodiversity and environmental issues. Specifically for Tourism, STRAT 9
“Tourism’ permits tourism development proposals in the form of either i)
tourism projects in the coastal resorts of Rhyl and Prestatyn as part of Major
Mixed Development Areas or allocated sites at Rhuddlan and Corwen and ii)
smal scale built or natural environment based tourism projects in the
countryside and rural settlements, where they provide appropriate
infrastructure, accommodation and attractions and which consolidate and

Page 41




diversify the tourism industry without unacceptably affecting social, highway,
amenity, heritage or environmental interests. The strategic policies would
therefore allow for tourist related developments subject to consideration of
impact tests set out in the General policies of the Unitary Plan.

in relation to the General policies -

Policy GEN 3 — Sets out possible exceptions for development outside
development boundaries. These include housing for farm/forestry workers,
infill housing within clearly identifiable groups of dwellings, conversion of rural
buildings, affordable housing exceptions, replacement dwellings and
development associated with agriculture, tourism and leisure, set against a
number of provisos and to be read in conjunction with other policies in the
plan.

TSM 1 focuses on the principle of new tourism development within
development boundaries, and permission elsewhere subject to strict criteria,
with priority for those that are accessible by a variety of means of travel. In
relation to new build it highlights three criteria; that the proposal is small scale
and ancillary to an existing tourism development and well related to existing
buildings; the proposal is of a scale, type and character which respects the
site and surroundings, and no unacceptable harm to designated and non
designated features, including best and most versatile land.

Policy TSM 9 and SPG 20 set tests and detailed considerations relevant to
caravan and chalet proposals. The policy tests relate to: the accessibility and
availability of a choice of means of transport; whether the site is unobtrusively
sited and can be assimilated in to the landscape, and impact on various
tandscape and wildlife designations, good agricultural land and historic
landscapes/gardens. The explanatory text to Policy TSM 9 notes that “the
County is already well served, if not over provided on the coast by such uses,
many of which present a conspicuous and unsightly appearance and “ltis
highly unlikely that even the inland areas the case could be justified for new
sites” SPG 20 includes a checklist of environmental and landscape
considerations including scale; locational preference for the larger
developments to be within or adjacent to settlements; with small scale and
sensitive proposals only for rural locations; and use of unobtrusive locations.
There is no requirement in these policies to establish a ‘need’ for a lodge
development.

At national level, Planning Policy Wales and TAN 13 set out a strategic
approach for Tourism development. PPW highlights that in rural areas in
particular, the scale and nature of such development must be sensitive to the
local environment and that development for tourism, sport and leisure uses
should, where appropriate, be located on previously used land. In
determining planning applications for tourist developments PPW requires
local planning authorities to consider the impact of proposals on the
environment and local community. TAN 6 advises that support should be
given to diversification of the rural economy as a way of providing local
employment opportunities, increasing local economic prosperity and
minimising the need to travel for employment, but at the same time,
minimising impacts on the local community and the environment.

Taken together the Unitary Plan policies and National Guidance do allow for
tourist refated development in open countryside, but in all cases subject to
assessment of localised impacts.

To assist consideration of the application, the fellowing section assesses the

Page 42




proposal against the tests of policy TSM 9 and the guidance set out in
SPG20.

Test (i) — TSM 9

Accessibility of site to the highway network and different means of fransport
The sustainability themes of PPW, TAN 16, Strategic Policies 1 and @ of the
Unitary Plan, and the main tests of STRAT 13 seek to reduce reliance on the
private car, to encourage use of public transport and safe conditions for
pedestrians and cyclists. SPG 20 provides detailed criteria to be considered.
Concerns have been raised locally as to the sustainable transport credentials
of the proposal. The applicant has pointed out that a haif hourly bus service
operates through Llanrhaeadr and Llanrhaeadr village. The Clwydian Ranger
bus service is a comprehensive service which provides an alternative to car
usage for those visiting the site. The applicant also points out that the network
of footpaths in proximity to the site would enable those persons staying at the
tourist site to quite easily walk into the village to visit the pub or other facilities.

Given the existing standard of roads and footpaths in proximity to the site it
could be argued that visitors to the lodges would be fikely to use their cars for
even short journeys. The roads around the site are not lit and walking into the
nearby village may not be an attractive proposition during hours of darkness.

In Officers’ opinion the accessibility situation is a negative factor in refation to
the application as it would rely and perpetuate the use of motor cars as the
main means of obtaining access to/from the site.

Whether this is a standalone ground for refusal is however questionable as
the Inspector in the ‘Blue Hand’ appeal, mentioned above, concluded that
this consideration in isolation, was not sufficient reason to refuse the
proposals, although it is a material consideration in assessing the
acceptability of developing a tourist facility in this location. Other material
considerations may consequently override concerns over site accessibility.
These matters are covered in the other tests of policy TSM 9, and the other
considerations covered in the report.

Test (i)
Landscape Impact
Test i requires development to be fully assimitated into the landscape.

The site is clearly located within an extremely attractive and elevated open
countryside location. The development of holiday lodges in such an
environment will clearly have some impacts upon the landscape. However, it
is important fo assess whether such impacts will be so significant as to
warrant refusal of the application. The Council’'s specialist Landscape
Consultant has been involved in detailed discussions as various parts of the
application process. This has resulted in the revised scheme of 42 lodges
being presented in the [ayout seen at the front of this report. The Consultant
concludes, in general agreement with CCW and CPRW, that the landscape
impact of the proposal will be limited.

The site was a former golf course which enjoys existing screening from a
variety of vantage points. The lodges will be sited so as to take advantage of
existing screening and their design and use of materials can be controlled so
as to help assimilate them into this landscape. Conditions can also be
imposed to minimise light intrusion with a landscape management plan
setting out fuiure maintenance of the site.

Overall, Officers do not consider the submitted 42 lodge scheme will have

Page 43




4272

423

any significant negative impacts on the existing landscape.

Test (i)

Impact on designations and site features

Test iii reflects considerations in other policies of the Unitary Plan, including
Unitary Development Plan policy CON 12 on the need to have regard fo the
character of historic landscapes. The site lies within the non-statutory Vale of
Clwyd Historic Landscape. The Council’s Landscape Consultant however,
confirms that the site does not appear to contain historic landscape features
which would be adversely affected by the proposal.

Otherwise, the site is not within the AONB/AOB, a Conservation Area, site of
Wildlife Interest or SSSI. Issues of Agricultural land quality have also been
considered but given the golf course use of the site and the existing land
quality classification this is not considered to be an issue in this case.

Scale of Development

Policy STRAT 9 of the Unitary Plan permits “small scale” built or natural
environment based tourism projects in the countryside and rural settlements
where they provide appropriate infrastructure, accommodation and
attractions, where they consolidate the tourism industry without unacceptably
affecting social, highway, amenity or environmental interests. The policy
does not define what would constitute “small scale”. STRAT 7 sets a specific
requirement to safeguard the countryside and environment.

Officers consider that the proposed scale of the development here (42
lodges) must be looked at in the context of the previous uses at the site and
recent appeal guidance which was contained within the Blue Hand field
decision.

The term ‘scale’ is not defined in any detail in current planning policy or
guidance, but appeal Inspectors have dealt with this in terms of the general
‘capacity’ of a locality in terms of landscape, highway network and visual and
social impact, to absorb the particular extent of caravan development. At the
Blue Hand Field appeal, the Inspector accepted a 60 lodge static caravan
development extending over 9 hectares, under 2km from the AONB, would
not conflict with the capacity considerations in the Unitary Development Plan.
Given this ‘guide’ and the extent of the proposed lodge site, officers do not
consider there is a strong argument to oppose this proposal on the basis of
inappropriate scale.

In addition, regard should also be had to the previous golf course usage, and
the comments from landscape specialists who have acknowledged the scale
of development will be readily assimilated into the existing landscape.

Impact on Residential Amenity

GEN 6 — Development Control Requirements, TSM 10, ENP 1 and TAN 11
“Noise” require consideration of the impact on residential amenity, and seek
to limit and control potentially adverse impact by way of noise and
disturbance to the amenities of occupiers of adjacent properties.

Sporadic residential properties exist outside of the main settlement in
Llanrhaeadr but they are around 250-300m away from the site. Clearly the
area generally will experience an increase in activity associated with holiday
lodge development and occupation. However, the application indicates a
warden would be responsible for site management and given the distances to
nearby dwellings there should not be any significant direct impacts from noise
and disturbance.

Page 44




424

425

426

Controls would need to be imposed on bin storage, litter collection and site
management generally.

It is hoped that in imposing such controls impacts on nearby residential
amenity will be minimised. The activity associated with a tourist use, however,
should hopefully benefit nearby villages in terms of economy and the
regeneration of a derelict site.

The capacity of the highway network and impact on highway safety

Policies TRA 6 — Impact of New Development on Traffic Flows ;TRA 7 — Road
Design; TRA 9 — Parking and Servicing Provision ; GEN 6 criteria v } and vii)
are the main highways policies relevant to assessing the application.

There have been a number of objections received based on the inadequacies
of the nearby road network and the subsequent impacts upon highway safety.
The Highway Officer has examined the submitted transport statement and
has taken account of the previous authorised uses and the nature of the
nearby roads and junctions. When in full use, the hotel, restaurant and golf
course would have generated a number of vehicle movemenis. Admittedly,
these may have been at specific times and on specific days. The proposed
use will potentially be all year round. This could be looked at in two ways.
This could potentially put increased pressures on the road network throughout
the year or it could spread the intensity of the use throughout the year thus
avoiding extremely busy periods. The Highway Officer feels, subject to
conditions on parking areas and access, that the use can be accommodated
and the local roads will cope.

In Officers’ opinion, given the Highway officer's comments, it is not
considered there are reasonable highway grounds on which to oppose the
scale of development proposed.

Impact on nature conservation, including protected species

PPW, together with TAN 5, states that the presence of a species protected
under European or UK legislation is a material consideration when a local
planning authority is considering a development proposal which is likely to
resuilt in disturbance or ham to the species. it also highlights the process
involved in requiring derogations from the provisions of the Habitats Directive,
and obliges local planning authorities to take this into account in planning
assessments, as ‘competent authorities’. These requirements are reflected in
Policies ENV 1 and ENV 6 of the Unitary Plan, and SPG 18.

The Council's Biodiversity officer and CCW have assessed the proposal and
the submitted supporting documents. See comments at the start of the
report).

In officers’ opinion the ecological issues can be addressed by suitable
conditions to retain mature trees, together with an overall management/bat
habitat conservation approach for surrounding woodland, which would ensure
that that the proposal is consistent with the guidance and policies with specific
reference to protected species.

Flood risk and drainage issues

Policies GEN 6 criteria x); ENP 1 Pollution, criteria i) ENP 4 — Foul and
Surface Water Drainage, together with policy ENP 6 — Flooding, seek to
control and avoid unacceptable harm to the environment /locality in terms of
flooding and drainage implications. ENP 4 highlights that development will not
be permitted unless satisfactory arrangements can be made for the disposal
of foul sewage and surface water. TAN 15 guides development in respect of

Page 45




viinerability and the degrees of flood risk.
There are no flood risk issues associated with this elevated site.

In terms of how the foul and surface water will be dealt with as part of the
development, the applicant intends to discharge foul water into a private
sewer connection with surface water taken to a soakaway system The
applicant also indicates the intention to harness water as a sustainable
opportunity. These details will need to be fusther agreed, however, the
general arrangements for foul and surface water are acceptable subject to
conditions.

427 |mpact on Water Supply
Policies GEN 6, ENP 1 and 3 seek to ensure there is no unacceptable harm
to ground water and that there are adequate water resources to serve a
development.

The Water Quality Officer of Denbighshire has assessed the proposal as
acceptable but has advised the applicant to contact her further to discuss
ideas for harvesting water from the development in a sustainable way.

42.8 Impact on archagology
Policy CON 11 and SPG 15 require consideration of the potential for
archaeological impacts of new developments.

Both the County Archaeologist and Clwyd Powys Archaeological Trust have
raised no objections and in this regard, the proposal accords with the
guidance and policies in relation to archasology.

4,2.9 Impact on woodlands and trees
Policy ENV 7 seeks fo protect features which have landscape and nature
conservation value, such as frees, and explains that development should
ensure their sensitive integration, by appropriate management, through
conditions and obligations. ENV 8 Woodlands highlights the need to avoid
harm to woodlands, especially Ancient Semi — Natural Woodlands, given their
conservation value. SPG 6 provides further guidance on how to achieve these
aims.

The Council's tree consultant has assessed the scheme and its likely impact
upon trees and the nearby woodland. Whilst acknowledging that the
information supplied is of a high quality he has suggested conditions which
would seek to retain several trees on the woodland boundary. Further
conditions would be required to ensure protection of the yew avenue within
the site (an existing line of yew trees in the central area).

4210 Inclusive Access
Policy GEN 86, criteria vi) sets a requirement to consider the access needs of
persons with disability, with additional guidance provided in SPG 8. TAN 12
and 18, together with the Council's document ‘Planning and Inclusive design’
provides further detail and advice.

The submitted detailing is limited in explaining the adopted policy or approach
to inclusive design in terms of the development plan and guidance; or how
specific issues which might affect access to the development may be
addressed.

Whilst noting the submitted level of information and details, it is feasible to

Page 46




cover inclusive access issues by appropriate conditions, to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented in conjunction with the development.

Other Issues

Occupancy of lodges

A number of objections/concerns refer to issues of occupancy and monitoring
of holiday caravans and chalet sites, including the need to ensure adequate
conirols over the actual use of units on a site, to address concerns over use
for residential purposes.

In respecting the concerns raised, it is suggested that the Local Planning
Authority has taken a critical and positive approach to the wording of
conditions involved with similar proposals, given confusion over the use of
planning conditions and separate site licence conditions to secure controls.
Recent examples of the Council’s ‘new’ approach to restrictive conditions on
caravan permissions have related primarily to static caravan sites (Thatched
Cottage, Trefnant, Liwyn Afon, Llanrhaeadr: Woodlands Hall, Bontuchel,
Cwybr Fawr, Rhyl), touring caravan sites (Ffynnon y Berth Llanferres, and
Oakleigh House, Waen). A caravan appeal (siting of 21static caravans on
land at the Croft, Upper Denbigh Road, St. Asaph) confirmed the
Inspectorate’s acceptance of the wording of the Council’s ‘without prejudice’
condition and criteria:

“The units shall be occupied for holiday purposes only and not as a person’s
sole or main place of residence. The owner of each unit and the sife operator
shall maintain an up —to- date register of the names of the owners and
occupier of each caravan on the site, their main home and addresses, the
dates each caravan has been occupied, and by whom. The information shall
be made available for inspection at alf reasonable times on written request
form the local planning authorily”.

in the event of the planning permission being granted, officers suggest a
suitable condition, on the basis of the above condition, would need o be
considered to control use in line with national guidance on simitar
development.

Economic Considerations

Support has been given by locals and peliticians who have highlighted the
economic benefits which a fourist scheme of this fype would provide. Whilst
Officers cannot attach significant weight to the wider potential benefits as no
detailed evidence or information has been supplied in this regard, the Tourism
Officers of the Council have given their full support to the scheme as meeting
the strategic tourism aims for Denbighshire.

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:

5.1 The report outlines a range of planning policy and guidance relevant to the
consideration of holiday lodge applications. Strategic policies of the Unitary Plan do
allow for such tourist related development in the County, but subject {o consideration
of detailed impact assessments, and the specific effects of the proposals at any site.
These have been assessed in the bedy of this report.

5.2 Members will have noted the responses of a number of consultees and private
individuals to the proposals. There are concerns aver elements of the scheme from
the Community Council and local residents, but limited objection from many of the
‘technical’ consultees on matters such as impacts on highways, landscape, wildlife

Page 47




and drainage/water supply.

5.3 Invariably, with applications of this nature there are negative and positive factors to
balance in reaching a conclusion. In favour of the proposals are general support in
planning policy and national guidance for tourist related development on a small
scale, and there is little in the comments of technical consultees to support a refusal
based on factors referred to in para 5.2 above. On the negative side, there are
sustainability/accessibility questions over a development in a refatively remote
location, which is inevitable given holiday lodge developments are likely to be
proposed in such areas to atiract visitors.

5.4 In reaching a difficult conclusion here, officers are inevitably aware of the same basic
issues having been rehearsed in the course of progressing a 80 lodge development
on land nearby at the Blue Hand Field, Bodfari. The Planning Inspector dealing with
the appeal against the Council's refusal of permission reached a number of relevant
conclusions including that the principle of lodge development was compatible with
planning policies, the scale of development was appropriate, there were no
compelling landscape, drainage or wildlife issue concerns. The refusal appeal was
dismissed on the narrow issue of use of land of high agricultural land quality {a flat 9
hectare site on Grade 2/3 land), with reference 1o accessibility to the site being a
consideration but not a determinant factor in the opinion of the Inspector. The
agricultural land quality issue does not apply here.

5.5 Having regard to all the responses on the application, and to the basis of the Blue
Hand Field appeal decision, officers respectfully conclude that there is limited
planning policy or technical support for a refusal of permission, and that it would not
be appropriate to rely solely on the accessibility concerns as a ground for resisting
the development. The recommendation is therefore for grant of permission subject to
conditions to address detailed matters arising from consultees responses. The
conditions will also need to have regard to the phased renovation of the existing
derelict building on site and its beneficial fuiure use.

6. RECOMMENDATION — GRANT subject to compliance with the following conditions:-

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years
from the date of this permission.

2. No mare than 42 holiday lodges shall be stationed on the land at any time.

3. The units shall be occupied for holiday purposes only and not as a person's sole or

main place of residence. The owner of each unit and the site operator shall maintain an up-
to-date register of the names of the owners and occupier of each lodge on the site, their main
home addresses, the dates each lodge has been occupied, and by whom. The information
shall be made available for inspection at all reasonable times on written request from the local
planning authority.

4. PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITION

Notwithstanding the submitted plans, no development shall take place until there has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority a detailed scheme of hard
and soft landscping. The scheme shall include details of the number, species and location of
proposed new trees, hedgerows, shrubs to be planted; the propesed levels and materials to
be used on the internal roads, paths and other hard surfaced areas; the finished contours of
earthworks and grading of land and their relationship to existing vegetation and fand form;
and, the position, design materials and type of boundary treatment. The scheme shall indicate
relevant protection to trees within the yew avenue and several trees on the woodland
boundary as agreed.

5. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of l[andscaping shall
be carried out no later than the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of
the first lodge. Any trees or plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the
development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in

Page 48




the next planting season with others of similar size and species, uniess the local planning
authority gives written approval to any variation.

6. PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITION

No development shall take place until a schedule of landscape maintenance for a minimum
period of five years has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority. The schedule shali include details of the arrangements for its implementation.
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved schedule.

7. All trees and hedges which are to be retained in accordance with the approved
scheme referred to in Condition 4 shall be protected in accordance with a scheme that has
been submitted to and approved in wriing by the local planning authority before any
equipment, machinery or materials are brought on to the site for the purposes of the
development, and shall be mainiained until all equipment, machinery and surplus materials
have been removed from the site. Nothing shall be stored or placed in any area fenced in
accordance with this condition and the ground levels within those areas shall not be altered,
nor shall any excavation be made, without the written approval of the local planning authority.
8. PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITION

Notwithstanding the requirements of Condition 4, no development shall take place until there
has heen submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority a woodland
management plan. The scheme shall include maintenance works required o be carried out
on the trees and hedgerows to be retained.

9. No unit shall be brought onto the site until the written approval has been obtained
from the local planning authority to the location, size, design and colour of each unit. The
development shall thereatter be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

10. Details of all external lighting shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
local planning authority before the use hereby permitted begins. Development shall be
carried out in accordance with the approved details.

11. PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITION

No develepment shall take place until a scheme for the ecological enhancement of the site,
inciuding provision for bats and reptiles has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
local planning authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details.

12. PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITON

No development shall commence until the detailed schemes for foul and surface water
drainage have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The
approved schemes shall be implemented prior to the construction of any impermeable
surfaces draining to the system.

13. PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITION

Development shall not begin until a scheme indicating the provision to be made for disabled
people to gain access within the site shall have been submitted to and apgproved in writing by
the local planning authority. The scheme shall include details of gradients of access ways,
surfacing, lighting and signage. The agreed scheme shall be implemented before the
developmenti hereby permitied is brought into use.

14. Facilities shall be provided and retained within the site for the loading, unloading,
parking and furning of vehicles in accordance with a scheme to he agreed with the L.ocal
Planning Authority, and which shall be completed prior to the proposed development being
brought into use.

15. PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITION

Before any work starts on site the full details of the detailed layout, design, drainage, visibility
splays and construction of the vehicular access shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority in and the access and associated works shall be completed to
the written approval of the Local Planning Authority before the any construction work begins
on the lodges approved.

16. Nane of the lodges shall be permitted to be occupied until the formal written approval
of the local planning authority has been obtained fo the details of the proposed arrangements
for the storage of waste arising from the development.

17. PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITION

Before any works commence on site a phasing strategy and plan shall be submitted to and
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Autherity. The strategy shall include details of the

Page 49




removal of the warden's tenoirart accommodation unit within 3 years of the first occupation of
that unit and the phased renovation of the former Bryn Morfudd hotel buildings. Only those
details subsequently agreed shall be implemented thereafter.

The reason(s) for the condition{s) is{are}).-

1. To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1890.
2. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure lodge numbers do not exceed the approved

numbers at any time.

3. To ensure the use of the lodges is for holiday purposes.

4, In the interests of visual amenity.

5. To ensure suitable protection of trees during site works.

8. To ensure suitable protection of trees during site works.

7. To ensure suitable protection of trees during site works.

8. To ensure there are suitable measures for the enhancement and management of
adjoining woodland.

9. In the interests of visual amenity.

10. in the interests of visual amenity.

11. To ensure there are suitable measures for the enhancement and mitigation of impact
on wildlife.

12. To ensure satisfaciory drainage arrangements.

13. To ensure adequate provision for access for persons with disability.

14. In the inferesis of highway safety.

15. In the interests of highway safety.

16. To ensure satisfactory waste storage facilities in connection with the development.
17. To ensure the existing derelict buildings on site are renovated and used concurrently
with the phased development of the holiday lodge scheme and to prevent the provision of a
permanent residential unit in the open countryside (warden's unit) contrary to local and
national policies and guidance,

NOTES TO APPLICANT:

In refation to protected species matters, you are advised that if in implementing the
permission and recommendations of the Ecological report, any statutory protected species
are found within the boundaries of the application site, all works should cease immediately
and the Countryside Council for Wales should be consulted for further advice before
proceeding further.You are advised to contact the Council's Senior Scientific Officer with
regard to the water supply proposals as there is separate legislation applying to the provision
of boreholes.

Page 50




LY NGOR Heading:
, Sir Didinbvch 27/2012/0009

] . - . Tan y Fron Farm.
Den bi Sh 5 hi’ e Eglwyseg, Liangollen
CEINTY CEOFNTEL

Graham Boase Application Site /N
Head of Planning & Fublic Protection ) /{__\
Denbighshire County Council . Date 16/5/2012 Scale 1/2500
Caledfryn Centre = 320797 E 345842 N
Smith_ﬁeld Road This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of
Denbigh the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
Denbighshire LL16 3RJ It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not

Tel 01824 705800 Fax: 01824 706709 be taken as representative of the proposals to be considered, which are

T

available for inspection pricr to the meeting.

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnanee Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office
@ Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead fo prosecution or civii proceedings. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408 2011

At]c{?( hlyrch\r y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Cronance Survey gyda chaniatad ér Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheolwr Liyfria £ Mawrhydi
@ Hawlfraint ¥ Goron. Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatad yn tom hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn arwa:n at ertyniad neu achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408, 2011,

Page 51




FECENED

e

Site Plan AL(02)

Page 52



Ay £ aequny Bumog

NOBJ A NyL ™ o
YLEL/VL/TY awquiny elald

ELEVATION

FOZOGLHEBLD i
Yokquipalls ‘usmIoD
‘WS ufig #pg3 JA

avd v aireTr

SIHSMH ¥ L "uK
ey

ONITTING TYRNLINDloY

J3RYed T¥LN0d 13315
uond,ioteq oalaid

NITICaNYTY
DISAM 13
NOYS A Nyl

g

o | wea | 8 | A

NY1d J007d

NCLLYATTT 1SV

O O e Ao vt

SIEWO0Y %0l

(5zaet) onia e noje)
BUIpRELD B93S PemOld IEbeTE

NOLLYATTZ 1S3M

ORHZE

NN PN TN NN NN NI N AN AN NN

{6z} enig AeIs unoe)
Buippeln (2915 PalyoLd J[eualer

Kol WBI Jneion
e §jEUoUDT j8eD Bl |

ABs B :

e 8)BI0UGT 158D Bl feusiE

e

(6zasr) ania m_m; 000

Bujppe|o [pels peold BuslEN

NCILYATTI HIHON

NOHYATII HLNOS

1nojon

{62egl) enig stEis LoD
BUIPPBIa oS PAINOI 1eperEl

0898

96¥S

i

ONIJTINgG d3s0d404d

Paage B3
\AU\J I




ITEM NO:

WARD NO:

APPLICATION NO:

PROPOSAL:

LOCATION:
APPLICANT:
CONSTRAINTS:

PUBLICITY
UNDERTAKEN:

DXR
3

Llangollen
27/2012/0009/ PF

Erecticn of an agricultural building for the storing of fodder and housing
livestock

Tan Y Fron Farm Tan Y Fron Lane Eglwyseg Llangollen
Mr Trefor Hughes

AONB

Site Notice - No

Press Notice - No
Neighbour letters - Yes

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2

s Application submitted on behalf of County Councillor

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
LLANTYSILIC COMMUNITY COUNCIL
‘No objection’

AONB JOINT ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Supportive of appropriate agricuitural development. Support use of slate coloured
cladding. Suggest landscaping scheme to mitigate landscape impact. Emphasise
importance of ensuring nearby public footpath not adversely affected.

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY: None

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 08/03/2012

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals

1.1.1

The proposal is for the erection of an agricultural building at Tan-y-Fron,
Eglwyseg, on an area of hardstanding to the north of the existing farm
complex.

The proposed building would measure 22.9m in length, 13.7m in width and
5.8m in height and would be finished in slate blue cladding. The application
indicates the building is required for the storage of fodder and winter livestock
accommodation.

1.2 Description of site and surroundings

1.2.1

The site is related to an existing farm complex approximately 4km to the north
of Llangoilen and approximately 600m fo the east of the Ab42. The complex
consists of a farmhouse and associated detached cutbuildings.

Page 54



2,

3.

4,

1.2.2 A stone outbuilding to the south of the proposed agricultural building has an
extant permission for conversion to a residential property, and would be
approximately 27m away on land elevated above the agricultural building. A
single track road runs between the site of the proposed building and the stone
outbuilding.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations
1.3.1 The site is located within the Area of Cutstanding Natural Beauty and Vale of
Llangotten and Eglwyseg Historic Landscape. A right of way runs along the
southern boundary of the application site, but is not affected by the
development.

1.4 Relevant planning history
1.4.1 The section’s records show the application for the conversion of the
outbuilding granted permission at Planning Committee 27/07/2011.

1.5 Developments/changes since the criginal submission
1.5.1 Additional information has been submitted in order to supplement the
evidence to demonstrate an agricultural need for the building.

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.1 The application is reported to Committee as the applicant is a Member of the
County Council.

DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:

2.1 Conversion of existing bam into single dwelling with associated external works,
formation of vehicular access and installation of new septic tank GRANTED at
Planning Committee 27/07/2011.

RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:
The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:
3.1 DENBIGHSHIRE UNITARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN (adopted 3™ July 2002)
Policy GEN 3 - Development Qutside Development Boundaries
Policy GEN 6 - Development Control Reguirements
Policy ENV 2 - Development affecting the ACNB
Policy EMP 13 - Agricultural Development
Policy CON 12 - Historic Landscapes, parks and gardens
Policy TRA 6 - Impact of New Development on Traffic Flows

3.2 GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE
Pianning Policy Wales (February 2011)

MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

4.1 The main land use planning issues are considered to be:
4.1.1  Principle
4.1.2 Visual and landscape impact
4.1.3 Residential amenity

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:
421 Principle

Palicy GEN 3 allows for certain types of development outside development
boundaries. Criterion vi) permits agricultural development providing there is
no unacceptable impact on the social, natural and built environment. EMP 13
relates specifically to agricultural development, and aims to ensure
agricultural development has no unacceptable impact on the environment.
Proposals must comply with four tests relating to; i} the need for the
development, ii) the use of alternative existing buildings, iii) the impact of

Page 55




4272

423

development on the character and appearance of the countryside and iv) the
siting relating well to the existing complex.

The applicant’s case is that the proposed building is required to house ewes
during the winter period, and there are no redundant buildings existing on the
farm complex that could fulfil this requirement. Supporting information states
that the existing outbuilding to the south of the site does not meet the
requirements for modern agricultural purposes and additionally the floor
space provided by ihe existing outbuilding is significantly less than the
building proposed. The proposals are therefore considered to be acceptable
in relation to criteria i} and ii) of Policy EMP 13, and acceptable in principle.

Visual and landscape impact

The site lies within the Clwydian Range and Dee Valley AONB and the Vale
of Llangollen and Eglwyseg Historic Landscape. Policy ENV 2 states that
development will only be permitted where it would not detract from the
character and appearance of the AONB. Policy CON 12 requires that
development does not unacceptably harm the character of a historic
landscape. The general requirement to assess the landscape and visual
impact of agricultural development are set out in criteria iii) and iv) of Policy
EMP 13.

The proposed building would measure 22.9m in length, 13.7 in width and
5.5m to the ridge and would be finished in slate blue profiled steel cladding
and light grey pre-cast concrete panels. The proposed location of the building
is set down below the existing farm complex on a level area of hardstanding.
The AONB JAC have supported the use of slate blue profiled steel cladding
and have suggested that additional landscaping should be included.

It is considered that the scale, design, location and the relationship with
existing buildings would not have an unacceptable impact, including on the
wider landscape, subject to satisfactory landscaping. An appropriately
worded condition can be attached in order to ensure acceptable landscaping
is provided. For the above reasons i is considered that the proposals would
not have an unacceptable visual and landscape impact and would comply
with the requirements of Policy ENV 2, CON 12 and EMP 13.

Residential amenity

Policy GEN B v} sets a requirement to ensure new development does not
unacceptably affect the amenities of local residents, by virtue of noise,
activity, fumes, etc.

The proposal is for a building to house livestock. Excluding the farmhouse
associated with the proposed building, the nearest dwelling is approximataly
200m away. There is an extant permission relating to an outbuilding within
the ownership of the applicant for conversion to a separate dwelling. This
outbuilding is approximately 27m away from the proposed building. The
proposed agricultural building would be set below the outbuilding due to the
topography of the land, and is separated by a single track lane.

in relation to the outbuilding which has extant permission for conversion to a
separate dwelling, Officers consider that a separation distance of 27m for a
livestock building from a private dweiling would pose questions over
acceptability in terms of impact on residential amenity, but as the conversion
scheme is yet to be undertaken and the outbuilding is within the ownarship of
the applicant, in this instance, it is considered that this would not justify
refusal. The recommendation is based on the above and the separation

Page 56



distances from other residential dwellings, and it is considered that the
proposals are acceptable in relation to residential amenity and comply with
criteria v) of Policy GEN 6.

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:
5.1 The development is considered fo comply with the relevant policy tests and is
therefore recommended for grant.

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT - subject to the following conditions:-

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years
from the date of this permission.
2. PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITION

No development shall take place until there has been submitted to, and approved in writing,
by the Local Planning Authority a detailed scheme of landscaping for the site.

3. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall
be carried out no later than the first planting and seeding season following the occupation of
the first unit. Any trees or plants which within a period of 5 years from the completicn of the
development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in
the next planting season with others of similar size and species, unless the local planning
authority gives written approval to any variation.

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is{are):-

1. To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990.

2. In the interest of landscape visual amenity.

3. In the interests of landscape visual amenity.

NOTES TO APPLICANT:

The landscaping scheme submitted should include suitable mature/semi mature native
hedgerow and tree planting in order to provide an effective natural screening of the building.

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 58



CYNGOR
s S1v Tydin E:fygﬁ
Denbi ghshire

COUNTY COUNCHL

Graham Boase

Head of Planning & Public Protection
Denbighshire County Councll
Caledfryn

Smithfield Read

Denbigh

Denbighshire LL16 3RJ

Tel: 61824 706800 Fax: 01824 708709

Heading:
43/2012/0143/TP
20¢ Bryntirion Drive
Prestatyn

Application Site

N
,\
Date 16/5/2012 Scale 1/1250
Centre = 306855 E 382152 N
This plan is intended sclely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of
the applicaticn site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
it does not form any part of the application documents, and should not
he taken as representative of the proposals to be considered, which are
available for inspection pricr to the mesting.

LaCasita

o
444“7‘

This map Is repreduced from Crdnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Cffice,
© Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproductien infringes Crown copyright and may fead fo prosecution or eivil proneedings. Denbighshire County Couneil, 100023408, 2011.

Afgynhyrchir y map hiwn o ddeunydd %r Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatad yr Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheohwr Liyfrfa Ei Mawrhydi

© Hawlfraint y Goron, Mag atgynhyrc!

Y
u heb ganiatad yn torri hawlfraint y Geren a gall hyn anvain at edyniad nal achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408, 2011.

Page 59




; ' ! —— b
L e lus Group ’
_Z; ’f
i 48230793
+3542 +35.06

35,37

+35.95

20B

OAK HILL LAN
LANE

<

BRYNTIRION DRIVE
g
i

Y 7
%, e f;ﬁg

e

LAYOUT PLAN. <1m c,)
. ' 25" ® COPYRIGHT DO NOTSCALE CHECK DI

e, PLAN G BER
TR arry

T‘._\ g O\ @@U’ ! 20 0 &* T ; f ¥ PROIECT THLE
P | | Hos ho-5 7o off Bryntirion_Drive,

.g_
Site Layout gs Existing

Page 60

L
4 Bridge Street, Denbi




DXR

ITEM NO: 4

WARD NO: Prestatyn Central

APPLICATION NO: 43/2012/0143/ TP

PROPOSAL: Felling of 2 No. Sycamore trees numbered T41 & T43 and crown reduction

by 25 per-cent of 2 No. Sycamore trees numbered T40 & T42 on the plan
annexed to the Borough of Rhuddlan (Woodland Park Prestatyn) Tree
Preservation Order No. 3, 1985 and replanting with British species, i.e.

Silver Birch
LOCATION: 20c Bryntirion Drive Prestatyn
APPLICANT: Mr Peter Bramwell
CONSTRAINTS: Tree Preservation Crder

Article 4 Direction

PUBLICITY Site Notice - No
UNDERTAKEN: Press Natice - No
Neighbour letters - Yes

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TQO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2

¢ Recommendation to grant — Town Council objection

CONSULTATICN RESPONSES:
PRESTATYN TOWN COUNCIL
‘Only dangerous, diseased or trees causing structural damage should be removed. Any
reduction work should be done after nesting season”

FORESTRY AND WILDLIFE ADVISORY GROUP (FWAG)

Accepts that this is an area with an abundance of mainly mature trees and that the
removal of a couple of trees will not have a major impact. This is an opportunity to
establish some young trees which will help to ensure some degree of continuity of tree
cover in the long term.

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 29/03/2012

REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):

° re-consultations / further publicity necessary on amended plans

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL.:
1.1 Summary of proposals
1.1.1  The proposals are for the felling of 2no. Sycamores to be replaced by 2no.
Silver Birch and the crown reduction of 2Zno. Sycamores which are all subject
of Tree Preservation Orders. The trees are within a private garden of a
property on the junction of Bryntirion Drive and Oak Hill Lane.

Page 61



1.1.2  The covering letter and forms argue that the trees are out of scale for their

position in the garden, and seriously inhibit the growth of other planting and
grass in their vicinity.

1.1.3 The proposals are to replace the Sycamores with trees native to Britain,
hence the choice of Silver Birch.

1.2 Description of site and surroundings

1.2.1 The trees are within a garden of a residential property in an established
residential area of Prestatyn.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations
1.3.1  The trees are subject of Tree Preservation Orders.

1.4 Relevant planning history

1.4.1  The sections records indicate various applications for crown reduction of the
protected frees.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1  The criginal application was to fell all 4no. trees, but this has been amended
following consuitation with the tree specialist (FWAG).

1.6 Other relevant background information

1.6.1 The application is presented to Committee due to Town Council's objections
to the proposals.

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:

2.1 Erection of three detached two storey four bedroom dwelling houses Granted
28/07/1987

2.2 25% reduction of 2 no. Sycamore and 1no. Maple GRANTED 02/06/2005.

3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:
The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:
3.1 DENBIGHSHIRE UNITARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN (adopted 3™ July 2002)
Policy ENV 7 - Landscape/Townscape Features

3.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance
SPG 6 - Trees and Development

3.3 GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE
Technical Advice Note 10 - Tree Preservation Orders (1997)
Flanning Policy Wales (February 2011)

4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:
4.1 The main land use planning issues are considered to be:
411 Principle
4.1.2  Impact on visual amenity

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:
421 Principle
No specific issues of principle are involved here as the relevant legislation
requires that assessment of proposals for works to trees must be made on
visual amenity grounds only.

Page 62




422 Impact on visual amenity
Policy ENVY requires that development should be designed {o retain features
such as trees and development which would harm these features will only be
permitted where appropriate mitigation measures are taken.

Concarns have been raised by the Town Council that only trees which are
dangerous, dying or causing structural damage should be removed and these
concerns are duly noted. The case for removal of 2no. and crown reduction of
2 others is based on the size of trees and impact on other planting, which are
legitimate grounds for consenting to the works. As advised above,
assessment must be made against the impact on visual amenity. Itis
considered by FWAG that the removal of the 2no. Sycamores presents an
opportunity to provide a degree of continuity of tree cover over time due to
the proposed replanting, based on the extent of tree cover already
established in the locality. The adequacy of this replanting, e.g. ensuring
sufficiently mature replacements, could be reasonably secured by condition.

Officers consider that the opportunity to establish continuity in tree cover in
the long term would provide satisfactory mitigation subject to adequate
maturity of reptanting being secured by appropriately worded condition. [t is
also considerad that the extent of crown reduction is reasonable and will have
no unacceptable impact in relation to visual amenity. The proposals are
therefore not considered likely to have an unacceptable impact in terms of
visual amenity, in particular given the existence of a number of protected
trees in close proximity.

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSICNS:
5.1 It is not considered that the proposed works would have an unacceptable impact in
relation to visual amenity and they are therefore recommended for grant, subject o
inclusion of a condition to secure adequate replacements.

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT - subject to the following conditions:-
1. Full details of the replacement trees including the exact location and size shall be

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be planted in
the first planting season after felling.

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is(are).-

1. in the interests of the visual amenities of the locality.

NOTES TO APPLICANT:
All works should be undertaken in accordance with BS 3998:2010 - Tree Work

Recommendations and all works shaould be undertaken outside of bird nesting seasons in
accordance with this guidance

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 64



CYNGOR Heading:

B e T8ty bnered 45/2011/1048
. &d} Bdlﬂ g?j%) Ek Land at Cefndy Trading Estate

' Denbi ghsfliﬂ? Rhyl

CGUINEY COUNTIEE

Graham Boase Application Site N
Head of Planning & Public Protection ,’k
Denbighshire County Council . Date 16/5/2012 Scale 1/2500

Caledfryn Centre = 301398 E 380526 N

Smithfield Road

This plan is infended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATICN of
the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not
Tel: 01824 706300 Fax: 01824 706709 e tlalken as r-epreseptatlvg ofthe propos_als to be considered, which are
available for inspection prior io the meeting.

Denbkigh
Denbighshire LEL16 3RJ

")’/‘,\;"‘Q}‘ \(\/\, P ///}{‘//‘\,V{:/:/://ﬁu . A
o %, g\;/ ‘ s

>

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
& Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction Infringss Grawn copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Denbighshire County Couneil. 100023408, 2011,

Atﬁ'nhlyrchir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatad yr Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheglwr Liyfra Ei Mawrhydi .
@ Hawlffraint y Coron. Mae atgynhyrehu heb ganiatéd yn ford hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn arwain at erlyniad neu achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408, 2011,

D o
Page 0o




Le7 20 1948l PR

Page 66




ELEVATIONS OF
COMMERCIAL
UNMITS

-VEHIGLE GATE

RS

PALADIN FENCE : SOUTH EAST ELEVATION

EXISTING FENGE FETAINED AND WMADE GOGD

UNITS 1-3 : NORTH WEST ELEVATION

1808

UNIT 1 : SQUTH WEST ELEVATION UNIT 3 ; NORTH EAST ELEVATION

Page 67



PJM

ITEM NO: 5

WARD NO: Rhyl South West

APPLICATION NO: 45/2011/1048/ PF

PROPOSAL: Development of 1.35ha of land by the erection of 24 no. dwellings including

landscaping, open space and access and erection of a 1,289 sqm
commercial unit including parking, servicing and access

LOCATION: Land at Cefndy Trading Estate, Ffordd Derwen and Cefndy Road Rhyl
APPLICANT: Anwyl Construction Co. Lid.
CONSTRAINTS: C1 Flood Zone

Tree Preservation Order

PUBLICITY Site Notice - Yes
UNDERTAKEN: Press Notice - Yes
Neighbour letters - Yes

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:

RHYL TOWN COUNCIL

“Objection unless the application is amended to provide or conditions applied to:

1. The operations of commercial units should be restricted to prevent vehicle
deliveries/departures hetween the hours of 2100hrs and 0808hrs in the interests of
the amenities of adjacent residential properties.

2. Appropriate parking restrictions/signage to be included preventing the parking of
vehicles an the feeder road and Ffordd Derwen limiting the parking in the
residential part of the development to residents only. The reason for this condition
is that the Town Council are aware of issues which have occurred in neighbouring
areas (Marsh Road/Fforddlas) whereby commercial cperators (particularly
businesses involved in car maintenance activities) have utilized neighhouring
residential roads for the parking and storage of customer and staff vehicles to the
inconvenience and disadvantage of local residents.

3. The Open Space should include for CCTV installation by the developer to avoid it
becoming an area which attracts anti-social behaviour to the detriment of the
amenities currently enjoyed by residents of Golden Grove, Meredith Crescent and
the new development. The new development should accord with the provisions of
Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998.

4. The Open Space to include suitably sized fencing on all four sides to take account
of ball games and other activities likely to occur. The close proximity of adjoining
gardens from Golden Grove and Meredith Crescent are likely to result in
recreational objects (such as footbalis} entering adjoining private gardens. Due to
the layout of the streets persons seeking to recover such items are unlikely to
follow the road system to recover the footballs but instead climb over the boundary
fences and enter the private gardens. Similarly the layout provides for 8 parking
spaces in close proximity to the open space which will result in vehicles being
vulnerable to damage from mis-hit objects from the open space. The inclusion of
the fence will also help prevent an informal access from the open space being
developed from the Golden Grove boundary.”

Page 68



WELSH WATER

No objection subject to foul and surface water discharges being drained separately
from the site. Welsh Water has also accepted that the surface water being taken to the
Brickfield pond with only part of the water entering their system is an acceptable
compromise.,

ENVIRONMENT AGENCY

Have suggested conditions in relation to dealing with possible land contamination. In
relation to flood risk the Agency have explained that is for DCC to assess the
acceptabhility or otherwise of the flood risk mitigation proposed in terms of the bund wall.
The Agency requires 100 years Lifetime of Development criteria to be met.

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES

HEAD OF HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATICN
No objection subject to conditions to deal with parking, estate road designs and the
provision of additional parking restrictions along Ffordd Derwen.

ENVIRONMENT OFFICER {Contamination)
Recommends similar conditions to those suggested by the Environment Agency in
relation to ground testing.

AFFORDABLE HOUSING OFFICER
Response to be reported

RESPCNSE TO PUBLICITY:
Objections received from:-
Brian Jones, Managing Director, Thorpe DT, Cafndy Rd, Rhyl, LL18, 2TT

Summary of planning based representations:
Concerns over the impact of existing manufacturing on the new housing development

in terms of noise and logistics. Also concerns over the impact of the development on
the existing highway network and parking availability.

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 31/10/2011

REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION {(where applicable):

. additional information required from applicant
. protracted negotiations resulting in amended plans
. re-consultations / further publicity necessary on amended plans and / or

additional information

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals
1.1.1 The application proposes the development of 1.35ha of land by the erection
of 24no. dwellings including landscaping, open space and access and the
erection of a 1299 sg.m commercial unit including parking servicing and
access. The site is located to the south of Rhyl within the development
boundary and within an allocated Employment Site as set out within the
adopted Unitary Development Plan.
1.1.2 The application includes the following documentation:

Page 69




Design and Access Statement — The report outlines the vision for the site
acknowledging its location in an Employment area and on brownfield land.
The conclusions of the DAS make reference to a well designed mixed use
development sensitive to and well connected to its surrounding area. |t
emphasises that the scheme is susfainable creating on site open space and
play areas in compliance with the principles of national and local guidance.
Sustainability documents — The submission includes a BREEAM document
highlighting that the proposed commercial unit can achieve a very good
rating against the set criteria. The submission also includes a compliance
statement for the Code for Sustainable Homes highlighting a level 3
compliance.

Flood Conseguences Assessment — The Assessment highlights that part of
the site is located within a flood zone and that the applicant has discussed
mitigation options with the Environment Agency. The Lifetime of
Development criteria has been included within this assessment as well as
arrangements for the disposal of surface water.

Marketing Report — The submission includes details from Legat Owen of how
the site has been marketed for employment purposes. The report concludes
that the site has been rejected by almost all national trade counter operators.
There is, however, interest from a single operator who require 8,000 sq.ft of
space and the developer is willing to promote a scheme to include a further
6,000 sq.ft of speculative space. The conclusion of the report is that this is
the best employment level which could be achieved in this locaticon.
Affordable Housing Questionnaire — The submitted document highlights that
the developer seeks to meet the adopted Council Policy of 30% affordable
units within the 24no. proposead. This would give 7no. units.

1.2 Description of site 2nd surroundings

1.2.1

The site has been cleared in the past few years and is a relatively flat,
rectangular shaped area of land. The site had provided an employment offer
for over 80 years and is in an area of Rhyl characterised by family housing
supported by a variety of commercial premises. The site is located at the
junction of two important thoroughfares, Cefndy Road and Ffordd Derwen.
The site adjoins a flourishing commercial sterage and manufacturing business
to the north-west corner of the junction with a builder's merchants and light
industrial estate located to the south side of Ffordd Derwen. To the north-2ast
and south-east of the site are established residential estates. The site is
bounded by fencing and has vehicular access points off Cefndy Road and
Ffordd Derwen.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations

1.3.1

The site is located within the development boundary of Rhyl and in an area
allocated for Employment uses as set out in the Unitary Development Plan
(EMP 2). The site is located within a C1 flood zone as set out within the Flood
Advice maps.

1.4 Relevant planning history

1.4.4

The most relevant planning record for this site is the application reference
45/2009/1595 which sought the development of the site by the erection of 34
dwellings (Class C3) and 6no. independent living apartments (units for the
residential accommodation and care of people in need of care — Class C2),
together with associated open space, a 800 sq.m industrial unit and the
construction of a new vehicular and pedestrian access off Ffordd Derwen.

Page 70



1.4.2 The above application was the subject of a planning inquiry held in August
2010. The Planning Inspector dismissed the planning appeal and the relevant
issues pertaining to this decision will be discussed at length later in the report.

1.6 Developments/changes since the original submission

1.5.1  During the course of the application the applicants submitied some revised
and additional plans which attermpted fo deal with some drainage and flood
risk concerns. The plans were revised to show how the flood risk
acknowledaed on part of this site would be dealt with by the construction of a
flood defence wall around part of the site. Plans indicating relevant levels
around the site were also included to highlight the flood risk mitigation
measures. A drainage appraisal plan was also submitted highlighting the
applicants’ intentions to take foul water to the public sewer and take surface
water in part to the combined sewer with a proportion pumped to the
Brickfields Pond.

1.6 Other refevant background information
1.6.1 The proposed discharge of some storm waters from the site into the
Brickfields Pond requires agreement from the Council as land owner. The
applicant has agreed {o pay for this and has suggested that this money can
be used towards the Rhyl Cut scheme.

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:
2.1 The following are considered of relevance to this application:

Code 45/2009/1595/PF — Development of 1.35ha of land by the erection of 34no.
dwellings (Class C3}, 6no. supported living apartments (Class C2), together with
associated open space, a 800 sgq.m industrial unit and the construction of a new vehicular
and pedestrian access off Ffordd Derwen. — REFUSED by PLANNING COMMITTEE
AND DISMISSED ON APPEAL 15/9/10.

3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:

The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:

3.1 DENBIGHSHIRE UNITARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN (adopted 3" July 2002)
Policy STRAT 1 - General
Policy STRAT 5 - Design
Policy STRAT6 - Location
Policy STRAT 8 - Employment
Policy STRAT 15 - Housing

Policy GEN 1 - Development within Development Boundaries
Policy GEN 6 - Development Control Requirements

Palicy HSG 10 - Affordable housing within development boundaries
Policy EMP 2 - Main Employment Areas

Policy EMP 10 - Protection of employment land/buildings

Policy REC 2 - Open Space requirements in new developments

Policy ENP 1 ~ Pollution

Policy ENP 4 — Foui and surface water drainage

Policy ENP 6 - Flooding

Policy ENP 8 - Contaminated Land

Policy TRA 6 — Impact of new development on traffic flows
Policy TRA 9 — Parking Provision

3.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance

SPG 2 — Landscaping
SPG 4 - Recreational Public Open Space

Page 71



SPG 7 — Space Standards in new developments

SPG 8 — Access for All

SPG 18 ~ Nature Conservation and Species Protection
SPG 21 ~ Parking

SPG 22 — Affordable Housing

3.3 GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE

Planning Policy Wales, 2011

TAN 1 — Joint Housing Land Availability

TAN 2 — Planning and Affordable Housing
TAN 8 — Renewable Energy

TAN 11 — Noise

TAN 12 — Design

TAN 15 — Development and Flood Risk

TAN 16 — Sport, Recreation and Open Space
TAN 18 — Transport

TAN 22 — Sustainable Buildings

4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:
4.1 The main land use planning issues are considered to be:

4.1.1  Principle

4.1.2 Impact on residential amenity

4.1.3 Impact on visual amenity

414 Highway and parking impacts

4.1.5 Flood risk and drainage issues

4.1.6 Land contamination issues

4.1.7 Afiordable Housing Provision

4.1.8 Open space

4.1.9 Biodiversity/Protected Species

4.1.10 Design and access/Sustainability Code/Access for all

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:

421 Principle
The Unitary Development Plan reaffirms the support for sustainable

development. Strategic Policies STRAT 1-18 highlight those considerations
necessary in relation to such development; highlighting considerations
relevant to location of development, regeneration, energy efficiency,
minimising waste, integrated transport systems and design quality. Briefly, in
terms of the specific strategic issues; STRAT 1 sets the main sustainable
development approach with preference for maximising the use or re-use of
derelict, vacant and under used land and buildings for development as
opposed to greenfield sites; and requires that development is located so as to
minimise the naed for travel by private car and utilise existing infrastructure,
facilities and services; the protection of biodiversity; protecting the best and
most versatile agricultural land. STRAT 5 highlights the need for high quality
design including the need to protect the character of the locality and respect
local styles. STRAT 6 states that development should be primarily located in
existing settlements and employment areas as opposed to open countryside.
STRAT 8 stresses that any land allocated for industry and business will
generally be retained and protected for those purposes. STRAT 15 highlights
that there is a need to make provision for affordable housing in developments.

The Strategic policies would generally support the principle of commercial
development on an allocated Employment site and housing (containing
affordable units) within the development boundary of Rhyl. The key test in this
application is whether a mixed use {commercial/residential) at the proportion
proposed would meet the strategic aims of the Plan.

Page 72




422

In relation to General policies in the Plan the most relevant to this case are:-
Policy GEN 1 — This policy supports the proposal as the development will be
located within an existing settlement.

Policy GEN B — This is a generic policy which sets out a number of
development control criteria against which proposals are assessed. The main
thrust of the Policy is to ensure developments respect the site and
surroundings in terms of siting of buildings and land uses, protect [andscape
features, protect the amenity of existing residents, provide safe and
convenient access for persons with disabhilities, pedestrians and cyclists and
avoids cengestion and highway dangers.

The above General policies would support the scheme but certain criteria
would be need to be examined further. These criteria are locked at further in
this report.

The key specific policy in the Plan is Policy EMP 10 which seeks to protect
existing employment land and buildings. The proposal as submitted clearly
seeks to develop housing on part of the allocated Employment site. The
relevant EMP 10 Policy contains four criterta against which development
proposals must be assessed. In summary these criteria are: the availability of
other sites for the proposed development; the capability of the site to provide
acceptable employment accommodation; whether the loss of the site would
prejudice the ability of an area to meet a range of local employment needs;
and the potential to relocate a non-conforming use.

All of the above criteria were examined in detail in the 2010 Planning Appeal
outlined at para 1.4.2 above.

It is considered helpful to highlight the key issues of the aforementioned
appeal as the proposal then had similarities to the proposal before Members
now. In essence the previous scheme attempted to provide a praportion of
the site for employment purposes with the other area shown for housing uses.
The proportion offered at that appeal was roughly 4-1 of the site in favour of
housing.

At the appeal parties had to accept that the location of the site, marketing
attempts, the current economic climate and the proximity of existing nearby
residential dwellings meant that the redevelopment of the whole site for an
industrial use would not be viable. However, the Inspector commented that:-
".....the mixed scheme assessed by the parties, i.e. a ratio of 4:1 in favour of
industrial floor space, would not be likely to be viable. However, this position
leaves a marked gap in information on the potential viability of a scheme that
would provide a mix of uses that would lie bhetween the two ratios that have
been examined.”

In essence, the Inspector was inviting a revised scheme which provided less
housing and more industrial floor space. We now have a scheme with less
housing (24 as opposed to 34}, the removal of the previous supported living
unit and more commercial floorspace at 1299sq.m as opposed ta 900sg.m.

Officers consider that, having regard to the marketing exercise carried out
since the appeal, the assessment of the viability of the scheme by the
Council's Viability consultant and the general improvements made to the
layout of the scheme the mix of residential and industrial space is acceptable
in principle.

Impact on residential amenity
Policy GEN 6 of the UDP seeks to ensure new development does not

Page 73



423

424

unacceptably affect the amenity of local residents, other land and property
users or characteristics of the locality by virtue of increased activity,
disturbance, noise, dust, fumes and hitter, and provides satisfactory amenity
standards in itself,

The site has historically been used for industrial purposes since the 1950’s.
Such uses have operated at the site in proximity to residential dwellings
nearby. The 1289 sq.m commercial units are shown to be sited to the Ffordd
Derwen end of the site abutting the existing industrial use at Thorpe Bros.
The proposed units would be some 45m away from the nearest residential
dwelling which fronts onto Ffordd Derwen. The units would be further away
from existing residential units than previous industrial buildings on the site.
This is considered to be an improvement to the levels of residential amenity
previously experienced. The hours of operation of the commercial units can
be controlled threugh condition as will the retention of parking areas for the
commercial unit users. This will further reduce the potential for any negative
impacts upon residential amenity.

Officers have assessed the location of the proposed 24no. residential
dwellings, their floor levels in comparison fo existing dwellings and the
distances afforded between proposed and existing dwellings. The siting, scale
and design of these dwellings would meet the adopted standards within the
UDP in terms of space hetween dwellings, room and garden sizes. Officers
are content, therefore, that the scheme will have no significantly detrimental
impact on residential amenity.

Impact on Visual Amenity

Policy GEN 6 of the UDP also seeks to ensure that the form and character of
the surrounding area is not harmed by any new developments ensuring that
the development respects the site in terms of siting, layout, scale, form,
design, density, materials and aspect.

The new industrial unit would have a maximum height of 8.5m which is
commensurate with other previous industrial buildings on this site. It would be
located some 45m from the nearest residential dwelling and set back from the
main Ffordd Derwen road. The use of modern rocfing and cladding materials
on this building would not harm the visual amenities of the site or
surroundings.

The residential units proposed are all designed to be two storeys in height.
This would match those existing nearby on Meredith Crescent. The materials
used on the properties would be brick and render and would not be out of
characters with those in the area generally. The layout of the scheme affords
space around the buildings with garden sizes meeting the adopted SPG
guidance.

Officers do not consider that the industrial units or the residential dwelling
layout, scale or design would have an unacceptable impact on the visual
amenities of the area.

Highway and parking impacts

Policies TRA 6 — Impact of new development on traffic flows; TRA 7 — Road
design; TRA 9 — Parking and Servicing Provision; GEN & criteria v) and vii)
are the main highway policies relevant to assessing the application.

Highway Officers have assessed the proposed development as acceptable.
The industrial unit will 27 car parking spaces (including 2 disabled spaces) as
well as cycle parking. The residential element provides parking on-site with
each property in accordance with the adopted standards in the relevant SPG.

Page 74



4.2.5

426

427

Subject to conditions which will require additional parking restrictions fo be
provided on Ffordd Derwen to prevent parking on junctions the scheme is
acceptable in highway and parking terms.

Flood risk and drainage issues

Policies GEN & criteria x); ENP 1 Pollution, criteria i) ENP 4 — Foul and
Surface Water Drainage, together with policy ENP 6 — Flooding, seek to
control and avoid unacceptable harm to the environment /locality in terms of
flooding and drainage implications. ENP 4 highlights that development will not
be permitied unless satisfactory arrangements can be made for the disposal
of foul sewage and surface water. TAN 15 guides development in respect of
vulnerability and the degrees of flood risk.

The applicant has worked closely with Officers, Welsh Water and the
Environment Agency in seeking an acceptable scheme for the disposal of foul
and surface water drainage. Revised plans have been worked up which show
a compromise position involving some surface water discharge being allowed
into the combined public sewer and some being taken over fo the nearby
Brickfields Pond. Drainage Officers and Officers responsible for the
Brickfields Pond see this as acceptable and will ensure that no contaminants
enter the pond. The water discharged to the pond will be storm water and this
provides a sustainable way of dealing with such discharge.

In terms of flood risk the Environment Agency had raised concerns about the
residential development being located within a C1 Flood zone. The applicant
has attempted to address the required 100 year Lifetime Homes criteria set
out by the agency by proposing a small flood mitigation boundary wall around
the perimeter of the lower part of the site. This is considered a reasonable
mitigation measure by the Council subject to planning conditions to secure
the future maintenance of the wall at the developers expense.

Land contamination issues

Policy ENP 8 of the UDP relates fo Contaminated Land issues emphasising
that development will not be permitted on or close to contaminated land
unless it can be demcnstrated that there is no unacceptable risk to life, the
environment, water resources or property.

Both the Environment Agency and the Council's own Contaminated Land
Consultant (Conwy CBC) have assessed the proposals having regard to any
nearby landfill sites and the historic uses on this site. They have concluded
that subject to conditions which deal with site investigations the proposed
development is accepted in principle. There will have been the potential for
historic industrial processes on this site contaminating part of the land.
Suitably worded planning conditions can deal with this and further details will
then need {o be agreed with the EA.

Affordable Housing Issues _

The requirement for provision of affordable housing in connection with
housing developments within development boundaries is set out in Policy
HSG 10 of the Unitary Plan, supplemented by guidance in SPG 22 -
Affordable Housing in New Development. The thresholds for provision are
sites of 0.1 hectare or more andfor where more than 3 units are proposed. In
this instance 24 units of accommaodation are proposed in total, 30% of which
are required to be affordable in the guidance.

The applicants have confirmed that they intend to make 7 units available as
affordable within the scheme. This would be secured through a 5.106 legal
agreement. The units are spread throughout the site and will be consistent

Page 75



4238

429

4210

with the design of the open market units. To this end there is no conflict with
the adopted policies and guidance and the scheme is supported by the
Affordable Housing Officer of the Council.

Open Space/Play

Policy REC 2 of the Unitary Plan sets out how new development (of 10
residential units or more) should provide landscaped amenity areas and open
space. The Policy explains that the open space requirement is calculated
dependent on the intended occupancy of the development. The space must
be provided so that it is of benefit to the occupants of the new development.
The first preference for this provision would be on-site or in certain instance
off-site, providing it was close to an accessible from the development. Where
the above options are not feasible a commuted sum may be considered.

The applicants intend to provide 929 sq.m of on-site community recreational
open space to the east part of the site providing a buffer between some
existing dwellings on Golden Grove and the new development. The remainder
of the open space/play area provision would be given by way of a commuted
sum.

This issue was examined at the previous planning appeal at this site. The
Inspector accepted that, given the size and location of the site, it would be
unviable to try to accommadate all open space and play provision on site. He
noted the potential to contribute towards improvements to nearby play
areas/open space at Brickfields Pond, Ffordd Derwen and at Meredith
Crescent by way of a commuted sum,

Having regard to the previous appeal decision and the fact that an on-site
play facility can be provided Officers feel that the proposal would comply with
the intentions of the adopted policies and guidance.

Bicdiversity/Protected Species

There are no known issues relating to any protected species on this site. The
site is hard surfaced throughout and has been cleared of all buildings some
years ago.

Design and access/Sustainability Code/Access for all

Guidance in TAN 12 Design and TAN 22 Sustainable Buildings has
introduced an obligation on applicants to demonstrate the approach fo a
range of design considerations, including how inclusive design and standards
of environmentai sustainability are to be achieved. These reflect general
requirements in the strategic policies of the Unitary Plan at STRAT 1 and
STRAT 13 to ensure sustainable development principles are embodied in
schemes.

In the case of this submission, the Sustainahility Code requirements of
Planning Policy Wales, TAN 12 and 22 are considered to have been
satisfactorily addressed. The Code for Sustainable Homes pre-assessment
report indicates that the commerciai development will attain a BREEAM rating
of very good and the residential development will achieve the required
number of credits under “Ene-1 —Dwelling Emissicn Rates and a Code Level
3. In line with advice contained within TAN 22, suitably worded conditions are
proposed io ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
Code.

Page 76



5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:

5.1 The site lies within the development boundary of Rhyl. The site has historically been
used for commercial/industriai uses which have operated in close proximity to
residential uses. Whilst a scheme of 100% employment use cn this site would fully
comply with the adopted Policy of the UDP, a previous planning appeal has strongly
suggested that a mix of commercial and residential would be the only viable scheme
for the site.

5.2 To this end the applicant has addressed previous concerns raised as to the ratio of
commercial to residential development and attempted to provide more commetrcial
space, more open space and fewer dwellings.

5.3 The scheme would provide some much needed employment/commercial space and
also contribute towards an affordable housing need. The density of the development
would not lead to an unacceptable relationship with existing properties nearby and
the space provided between dwellings and within plots meets the adopted policies
and SPG standards.

5.4 Planning conditions would need to he imposed which would deal with parking,
access, land contamination, landscaping, hours of operation for the commercial unit,
noise controls and play facilities. A

5.5 The recommendation is subject to the completion of an obligation under s.106 of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 within 12 months of the resolution of this
Cemmittee to secure:

a) The provision of 7 affordable housing units and the retention of these for
affordable purposes.

b) The paying of a commuted sum for the provision of off-site open space and
children’s play areas.

¢} The provision and maintenance of on-site play areas.

d) The retention and maintenance of a flood mitigation wall as shown in the
approved plans.

5.6 The Certificate of Decision would only be released on completion of the legal
obligation. Should such an obligation not be completed within 12 meonths of this
Committee resolution the application would be represented back to Planning
Committee and determined in accordance with the Policies applicable at that time,
should material circumstances change.

RECOMMENDATION: - GRANT subject to the following conditicns:-

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of two years
from the date of this permission.
2. Facilities shall be provided and retained within the housing estate and the industrial

unit site for the parking, turning, loading and unloading of vehicles in accordance with the
approved plan and which shall be completed prior to the proposed developments being
brought into use.

3. PRE-COMMENCEMENT

The detailed layout, design, means of traffic calming, street lighting, signing, drainage and
construction of the internal estate road and associated highway works shall be submitted to
and approved by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway Autherity prior
to the commencement of any work on site and the work shall be constructed as the approved
drawings before any dwelling is occupied.

4. The parking restrictions on Ffordd Derwen shall be extended in accordance with
details to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and the order shall be in place
before any work starts on site.

Page 77




5. PRE-COMMENCEMENT

No development shall take place until there has been submitted to, and approved in writing
by. the Local Planning Authority, a detailed scheme of hard and soft landscaping for the site,
and such scheme shall include details of:

(a) all existing trees, hedgerows and other vegetation on the [and, details of any to be
retained, and measures for their protection in the course of development.

(b) proposed new trees, hedgerows, shrubs or vegetation, including confirmation of
species, numbers, and location and the proposed timing of the planting;

(c) proposed materials to be used on the driveway(s), paths and other hard surfaced
areas;

(d} proposed earthworks, grading and mounding of land and changes in levels, final
contours and the refationship of proposed mounding to existing vegetation and surrounding
landform;
(e) Proposed positions, design, materials and type of boundary treatment.
6. All planting, seeding, turfing, fencing, walling or other treatment comprised in the
approved details of landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons
following the completion of the development and any trees or plants which, within a period of
five years of the development, die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased
shall be replaced in the next planting seascn with others of similar size and species.
7. Each new dwelling hereby permitted shall be constructed to achieve a minimum Code
for Sustainable Homes [Level 3] and achieve a minimum of [6 crediis] under category 'Ene1 -
Dwelling Emission Rate’ in accordance with the requirements of the Code for Sustainable
Homes: Technical Guide [May 2009]. The development shall be carried out entirely in
accordance with the approved assessment and certification.
8. Construction of any dwelling hereby permitted shall not begin until an 'Interim
Certificate’ has been submitted to the Local Planning Authority, certifying that a minimum
Code for Sustainable Homes [Level 3] and a minimum of [6 credits] under 'Ene1 - Dwelling
Emission Rate', has been achieved for that individual dwelling or house type in accordance
with the requirementis of the Code for Sustainable Homes: Technical Guide [May 2009].
9. Prior to the occupation of each dwelling hereby permitted, a Code for Sustainable
Homes 'Final Certificate” shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority cerlifying that a
minimum Code for Sustainable Homes [Level 3] and a minimum of |6 credits] under 'Ene1 -
Dwelling Emission Rate', has been achieved for each dwelling in accordance with the
requirements of the Code for Sustainable Homes: Technical Guide [May 2009].
10. PRE-COMMENCEMENT
Prior to the commencement of development, approved by this planning permission (or such
other date or stage in development as may be agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority}, the following components of a scheme to deal with the risks associated with
contamination of the site shall each be submitted to and approved, in writing, by the local
planning authority:
(i} A preliminary risk assessment which has identified:

a) all previous uses

b) potential contaminanis associated with those uses

c¢) a conceptual model of the site indicating sources, pathways and receptors

d) potentially unaccepiable risks arising from cantamination at the site

ii) A site investigation scheme, based on (1} to provide information for a detailed assessment
of the risk to all receptors that may be affected, including those off site.

iii} The site investigation results and the detailed risk assessment (2) and, based on these, an
options appraisal and remediation strategy giving full details of the remediation measures
required and how they are to be undertaken.

iv) A verification plan providing details of the data that will be collected in order to
demonstrate that the works set out in (3) are complete and identifying any requirements for
longer-term monitoring of pollutant linkages, maintenance and arrangements for contingency
action.

Any changes to these components require the express consent of the local planning authority.

Page 78



The scheme shall be implemented as approved.

11. PRE-COMMENCEMENT

Prior to commencement of development, a verification report demonstrating completion of the
works set out in the approved remediation strategy and the effectiveness of the remediation
shall be submitted to and approved, in writing, by the local planning authority. The report
shall include results of sampling and monitoring carried out in accerdance with the approved
verification plan to demenstrate that the site remediation criteria have been met. [t shall also
include any plan (a "long-term monitoring and maintenance plan"} for lenger-term monitoring
of pollutant linkages, maintenance and arrangements for contingency action, as identified in
the verification plan, and for the reporting of this to the local planning authority.

12. Reports on monitoring, maintenance and any contingency action carried out in
accordance with a long-term menitoring and maintenance plan shall be submitted to the local
planning authority as set out in that plan. On completion of the monitoring programme a final
report demenstrating that all long-term site remediation criteria have been met and
documenting the decision to cease monitoring shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the local planning authority.

13. If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present
at the site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the local
planning authority) shall be carried out until the developer has submitted, and obtained written
approval from the local planning authority for, an amendment to the remediation strategy
detailing how this unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with.

14. PRE-COMMENCEMENT

No development shall take place until there has been submitted fo, and approved in writing
by, the Local Planning Authority, a detailed phasing strategy and construction method
statement for the development of the site. Such a strategy shall include details of how the
commercial units shall be constructed concurrently with the residential units and include
details of timing and routing of constructions traffic, site compound details and all mitigation
measures required during construction. Only those details subsequently approved shall be
implemented thereafier,

15. Prior to their use in the development details of the precise materials and finishes for
the commercial units and residential dwellings shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. Only those details subsequently approved shall be used
thereafter.
16. Foul and surface water discharges shall be drained separately from the site.
17. PRE-COMMENCEMENT
No development shall take place untit a scheme for the comprehensive and integrated
drainage of the site showing how foul water, surface water and land drainage will be dealt
with has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Only
those details subsequently agreed shall be implemented thereafter.
18. Prior to the construction, laying out and equiping of any formalised play areas within
the site details of such areas shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The details shall include fencing types, security measures, signing and
landscaping all of which shall be implemented and maintained thereafter in accordance with
the approved details.
19. The commercial units hereby permitted shall be used for Class B1 or B8 useage only.
20. There shall be no outside storage of any materials associated with the commercial
units hereby permitted unless in areas agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Only
those areas agreed shall be used thereafter.
21. All parking areas associated with the commercial units shall be kept available for that
purpose at all times with apprepriate signing provided to ensure this is managed. Such car
parking management methods for the commercial units shall be submitted to and approved in
writing prior fo the areas first being used for that purpose.
22, The commercial units hereby permitted shall not be operational or open to the public
outside of the following hours:-

Monday - Friday - 0700 - 2000hrs

Page 79



Saturday - 0700 - 1800hrs
Sunday and any Bank Helidays - 0900 - 1300hrs

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is(are):-

1. To ensure the early redevelopment of this prominent, vacant development site.
2. To provide for the parking of vehicles clear of the highway and to ensure that
reversing by vehicles into or from the highway is rendered unnecessary in the interest of
traffic safety.

3. In the interests of the free and safe movement of all user of the highway and to
ensure the formation of a safe and satisfactory access.

4, In the interest of the free and safe movement of traffic on the adjacent highway and to
ensure the formation of a safe and satisfactory access.

5. Tao ensure in the interests of visual amenity a satisfactory standard of [andscaping in
conjunction with the development.

6. To ensure a satisfactory standard of development, in the interests of visual amenity.
7. To comply with the provisions of TAN 22: Planning for Sustainable Buildings.

8. To comply with the provisions of TAN 22: Planning for Sustainable Buildings.

9. To comply with the provisions of TAN 22: Planning for Sustainable Buildings.

10. For the protection of controlled waters. Given the past use of the site, it is possible

that there have been unrecorded leaks from tanks and/or pipes leading fo a persistent loss of
fuel over time which could result in a source of contamination being present in the ground.
11. Faor the protection of controlled waters. Given the past use of the site, it is possible
that there have been unrecorded leaks from tanks and/or pipes leading to a persistent loss of
fuel over time which could result in a source of contamination being present in the ground.
12. For the protection of controlled waters. Given the past use of the site, it is possible
that there have been unrecorded leaks from tanks and/or pipes leading {o a persistent loss of
fuel over time which could result in a source of contamination being present in the ground.
13. For the protection of controlled waters. The past uses of the site have not been fully
defined, but they are noted as being commercial/industrial, which could potentially give rise to
unsuspected contamination.

14, To ensure employment provision on this allocated site is provided in conjunction with
the residential development and to ensure the construction of the site proceeds without
detriment to the surrounding areas.

15. In the interests of visual amenity.
16. To protect the integrity of the public sewerage system.
17. To ensure that effective drainage facilities are provided for the proposed

development, and that no adverse impact occurs to the environment of the existing public
sewerage system.

18. In the interests of visual and residential amenity.

19. For the avoidance of doubt and to protect the amenity of nearby residential dwellings.
20. In the interests of visual amenity.

21. In the interests of highway safety and to prevent the parking of vehicles on the nearby
access roads.

22 In the interests of residential amenity.

NOTES TO APPLICANT:

None

Page 80



YNGR Heading:

| Si:f' i) & fﬁ g{}ffh 471201210333

N Bryn Tirion Farm
Denbi ghﬁhwﬁ‘ Rhualit

COUNEFY OOUNCEE

Graham Boase Application Site N
Head of Planning & Public Protection )/,k
Denbighshire County Council Date 16/5/2012 Scale 1/2500

Caledfryn Cenire = 308603 E 375045 N

Smithfield Road This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of
Denbigh the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
Denbighshire LL16 3RJ It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not

be taken as representative of the proposals to be considered, which are

Tel: 01824 706800 Fax: 01824 706709 ) ) ) ; A
available for inspection prior to the meeting.

| Pannand st i i\
| \ [
R

A N

b

S

r

\

Bryniirlan Farm
-
4
~

E\\V\/

This map is reproduced from Crdnancs Survey material with the pemmission of Crdnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Cffice,
© Crown copyright. Unawthorized reproduction Infringes Crown copyright and may lead to grosecution or civil procesdings. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408 2011,

At%?nhlyrchir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatad ér Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheolwr Liyfrfa Ei Mawrhydi
© Hawlfraint y Goron. Mae atgynhyrehu heb ganiatéd yn torr hawlfraint y Goren a galt hyn arwain at erfyniad neu achos sifil. Cynger Sir Ddinbych. 100023408. 2011.

Dacmra—01
Page ol




Ergdsias by
% Oreanee
L Loy

LOCATION

ROMt ROAD

N
PROPOSED PLAY AREA

Bryntiricn Faem

.
\-‘.’-__‘H“—__A.A,_—
¢ Fl

Description: Soaler

PROPOSED CHANGE OF USE OF LAND TO PROVIDE ANCILLARY 1:2500

PLAY AREA TO MAIN DWELLING AND THE ERECTION

OF A TREE HOUSE.

Location: Date:
BRYNTIRION FARM, RHUALLT, ST ASAPH. 18 Febrpary 2012

LOCATION PLAN Page 82 Drwing No. W.1208 /2



L/ 80ELM

Z)02 ‘4ed &1 el

“UdBeY g WENU LLE | uonRuAIg

“asnoH

881 © J0 UoRYaIg ey} pue Buemg
ulEpy 0} BRI ABld AIB|IIOUY SPIACIY
0] pue jo as(i jo ebuay) pesodald
ko ax

usiem SN N

ans

SR AUNLIN- MiCdLMA
RV Ut oo R | aenokaveac B

VEIENO0 HOLEI0 TnLIRIHOLY _

FIVINY T B

BIUEY BIIRA R 9T TUNSIE

NV1d 400714 1Sl

\ 2sSnoH @il

i:e%ﬂﬁj (159 )
e :

NOLLYAZT3 3dIS

(uyinog )

NOILYATTTI LNOYH

(1s23) NOILVAI13 3AIS

NV1d 40014 ANNCHO

eod [

(umoN)

~ 1At [ !
,,,,,,,,, —O)
3 —
0]
]
(@))]
@
o
NOILYAZT3 dvdd

L LEL ]

“AUBBOLER PALIEES - JBOLR Pas|EUEL
ONHOAT

“RUBBOE PALIBIS - POOMIDS
Hood

“AuraBageR 299150 - SN
SAOONIA

“gte] esel]w ussld
Ho0Y

*Aupfiolep pauteg - Bujppem deydjys Jo5wil [eTozpol]
BTV

STVIHILYIW TWVNEALE

PR - T A A

.l/

605




ITEM NO:

WARD NO:

APPLICATION NO:

PROPOSAL:

LOCATION:
APPLICANT:
CONSTRAINTS:

PUBLICITY
UNDERTAKEN:

DXR
6

Tremeirchion
47/2012/0333/ PC

Continuation of use of land as ancillary play area to main dwelling and
retention of tree house (Retrospective Application)

Field No. 6105, Bryntirion Farm Rhuallt St. Asaph
Mr M VWalsh

AONB

Site Notice - No

Press Notice - No
Neighbour letters - Yes

REASON(S} APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2

¢ Retrospective application recommended for refusal, and enforcement action

recommended

CONSLULTATION RESPONSES:
TREMEICHION, CWM AND WAEN COMMUNITY COUNCIL

“Objection

The application does not fall within the curtilage of the residential property”

AONB JOINT ADVISORY COMMITTEE

*The JAC deplores the retrospective nature of this proposal and regrets that a number
of applications on this site have been submitted retrospectively in recent years. The
stand of trees in which this substantial structure is located is a prominent and attractive
feature in the surrounding landscape. The site is in the open countryside unrelated to
an existing residential curtilage and the tree house introduces an incongruous and
inappropriate feature inte the rural scene and, in this context, the JAC objects fo the

application.”

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:
Letters of representation received from:
K.M. & B.T.M. Groves, Pennant Uchaf, Rhuallt

Summary of planning based representaticns:

Principle - not related to existing residential dwelling

Visual and landscape impact - impact on AONB, Siting away from existing buildings,
height of structure

Impact on residential amenity - noise disturbance and loss of privacy

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 14/05/2011

Page 84



PLANNING ASSESSMENT:

1.

THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals
1.1.1 The proposal is for the continuation of the use of an area of land for anciltary
residential purposes and the retention of an existing tree house. The area of
tand is approximately C.1ha, and is comprised of a stand of trees.

1.1.2 The free house measures 4.1m x 2.5m in plan and is on a substantial weoden
platform of irregular shape secme 3m above ground level. The maximum
height of the tree house is 5.9m measured from ground level. Materials
include stained mahogany cladding and green mineral felt roofing. The
detailing is shown on the plans at the front of the report

1.2 Description of site and surroundings
1.2.1 The tree house is within a stand of trees in an area of agricuitural grazing
tand, associated with the property known as Bryntirion. It is approximately
170m away from the main dwelling. The distance io the nearest residential
dwelling is approximately 150m.

1.2.2 The site is on an elevated area of land within an agricultural holding. A copse
of trees is located within the site.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations
1.3.1 The site is located in open countryside outside of any development boundary
as defined in the Unitary Development Plan.

1.3.2 The site is located within the Clwydian Range and Dee Valley Area of
Outstanding Natural Beauty.

1.4 Relevant planning history
1.4.1 The section records reveal various applications for the residential
development of a former farm complex and applications for agricuttural
buildings relating to existing agricultural activity.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1 None

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.1 The application is presented to Committee as the application is retrospective
and permission to take enforcement action is sought.

DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:

2.1 47/2001/0877/PF Demolition of dwellings and erection of new dwelling and detached
garage. Delegated decision. GRANTED 8th November, 2001

2.2 47/2004/1013/PC Retention of triple garage, attached kennel block, entrance gates,
pillars and CCTV columns. Continuation of use of land as extension to residential
curtilage for extended drive and additional vehicular access (Retrospective
application) Committee decision. GRANTED 31st August, 2005

2.3 47/2005/0431/PF Demolition of building and erection of swimming pool enclosure.
Delegated decision. GRANTED 3rd March, 2005

2.4 47/2008/813/PF Erection of detached equipment store. Delegated decision. Refused
13" May 2010. Appeal submitted against decision. Appeal dismissed. Inspector
considered development would impact adversely on AONB

2.5 47/2010/332/PF Single storey and two storey extension to the rear. Committee
decision. GRANTED 13" May 2010

2.6 47/2011/0768/PF Erection of agricultural building (lambing shed) GRANTED under
delegated powers 19/10/2011

Page 85



3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:

4,

The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:
3.1 DENBIGHSHIRE UNITARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN (adopted 3" July 2002)
Policy STRAT 6 - Location
Policy GEN 3 - Development cutside development boundaries
Policy GEN 6 - Development control requirements
Policy ENV 2 - Development affecting the ACNB
Policy HSG 16 - Extensions to domestic gardens

3.2 GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE
Planning Policy Wales (February 2012)

MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

4.1 The main land use planning issues are considered to be:
411 Principle
4.1.2 Visual and landscape impact
41.3 Residential amenity impact

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:

421 Principle
Policy STRAT 6 states that development will only permitted outside of

development boundaries in exceptional circumstances._Policy GEN 3 allows
for certain types of development outside development boundaries. Policy

HSG 16 permits limited extensions to domestic gardens.

The proposal includes the change of use of an area of wooded land to

ancillary residential l[and. Concerns have been raised over the introduction of
a residential structure away from the main dwelling in an open countryside
location. The wooded area is outside of any development boundaries and is
surrounded by agricultural land. The application states that the tree house is
to be ancillary to the dwelling known as Bryntirion, which is approximately

170m away.

It is considered that the change of an isolated area of land to residential use
would not be in principle in relation Policy GEN 3. [t is also considered that
the proposal is not an acceptable extension to residential curtilage in relation
to Policy HSG16 due to the physical detachment from the existing residential
curtilage. For the above reasons it is considered that the change of use of the
land is unacceptable in principle and does not fall within the ‘exceptions’ for

rural development in Policy STRAT 6 and GEN 3.

422 \Visual and landscape impact

The general requirement to assess landscape and visual impact are set out in
policy GEN 6. Policy ENV 2 states that development affecting the Area of
Outstanding Natural Beauty will be assessed against the primary planning
abjective to conserve and enhance the natural beauty of the area and small
scale development will only be permitted where it would not detract from the
character and appearance of the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. This
reflects national policy which states that great weight should be afforded to

conserving and enhancing designated tandscapes.

Concerns over the landscape/visual impact and the impact on the Area of
CQutstanding Natural Beauty have been raised. The AONB JAC have stated
“The stand of trees in which this substantial structure is located is a prominent
and aftractive feature in the surrounding landscape. The site is in the open

Page 86



countryside unrelated to an existing residential curtilage and the tree house
infroduces an incongruous and inappropriate feature into the rural scene”

In Officers’ opinion, the elevated position, scale and siting of the tree house,
the introduction of an isolated formalised residential space within former
grazing land, and the use of land for activity associated with residential use
would detract from the character and appearance of the Area of Qutstanding
Natural Beauty. It is considered that the introduction of the structure and the
residential use impact adversely on the open nature of the site. The proposals
are therefore considered unacceptable in relation to Policy ENV 2 and criteria
of Policy GEN 6.

423 Residential Amenity Impact

Policy GEN 6 v) sets a requirement fo ensure new development does not
unacceptably affect the amenities of local residents, by viriue of noise,
activity, fumes, etc.

Concern has been raised over the impact of increased disturbance from use
of the land and tree house. The nearest unrelated residential dwelfing is
approximately 150m away.

The concerns over disturbance caused by increased activity are noted,
however it is considered that the separation distances from the nearest
residential dwelling means that the development is unlikely to unacceptably
impact on residential amenity.

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:

5.1 The use of an isolated area of land for purposes incidental to a dwelling is
considered unacceptable in principle, and it is considered the tree house
structure and the use of land have an unacceptable impact on the character
and appearance of the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. The development
is therefore recommended for refusal and permission is sought to take
enforcement action to require the removal of the structure and to return the
land to agricultural use.

RECOMMENDATION - REFUSE: - for the following reason:-

1. It is the opinion of the Local Planning Authority that the construction of the tree house
has created an isolated and sporadic form of development which has an adverse impact on
the open character the area, which is in open countryside within a designated Area of
Outstanding Natural Beauty. It is considered that the development detracts from the character
and appearance of the Area of Quistanding Natural Beauty and therefore fails to comply with
the requirements of Policy ENV 2 and Policy GEN 6 of the Denbighshire Unitary Development
Plan.

2. it is the opinion of the Local Planning Authority that the use of land in association with
a dwelling over 170m away does not meet the any of the 'exception’ criteria outlined in Policy
GEN 3 of the Denbighshire Unitary Development Plan, and due to the physical detachment
and separation from the existing residential curtilage can not reasonably be considered an
extension to a domestic garden under Policy HSG 16. The development is therefore
considered unacceptable in principle and is contrary to Policy STRAT 6 and Policy GEN 3 of
the Denbighshire Unitary Development Plan.

NOTES TO APPLICANT:

None

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 88



CYNGOR Heading:

Sir Ddinbyvch 47/2012/0368

* . = Bryntirion Farm
Denbighshire Rhual
COUNTY COUNCHL

Graham Boase Application Site N
Head of Planning & Public Protection /,\
Danbighshire Ceounty Council Date 16/5/2012 Scale 1/2500

Caledfryn Cenfre = 308867 £ 375002 N

Smithfield Read This plan is intended solely ta give an indiction of the LOCATION of
Denbigh the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
Denhighshire LL16 3RJ It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not

ke taken as representative of the proposals to be considered, which are

Tel: 01824 706800 Fax: 01824 708709 . : . . B
available for inspection prior to the meeting.

Y R SO, —
o =
- N \ 7 o i/ NNt

mel L
- ! ! o \ B e P
\\ \\&/\ - s \\r -\Q?am Kl >// B :
‘\'\,\ \ 0 /r_,./'?:o‘\\ -~ \\ o
. LT b T .
S // \ S ’///'
e //'/
-~ -

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey matenial with the permission of Qrdnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office,
© Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosscution or civil proceedings. Denbighshire County Council, 100023408 2014,

Af%ynhlyrchir y map hwn o ddeunyddogr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatad yr Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheolwr Liyfriz B Mawrhydi
© Hawlfraint y Goren. Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatad yry torm hawlfraint y Goren a galf hyn arwain at erfyniad neu achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408. 2071




e e

L) worws  NYId ALIS

[te AL LR YA Qg

By Biguac

yelesyy 15 “ETy "uueg uoknudig
lie] SBEDIS Jatap

asnoH o} Bulpimg pasedo.d

MNYL IDOVHOLS
HILYM ISNOH OL
f ONITIINE d380d0dd

BujpumpepieH

a3HS ONITAY

elg

‘NOILYATTI 3AiS

NY1d

Uzaics ae Jayuoa-lugseg

1o Butiseras Bugsped

EUYS

NOILYAZ3 3dIS

FOOAUSS
oo

e paged (AU Lkt PRGSITY jRot jely
H00Y

“wnaiD 2AC payed

Japua1igea ow g KRLITINE Taysi
B} LR 3 10AV{SRIG P EELYITIG £
Eeaa L)

SIWMALYIN TYNEFLXS

(U5:4

NOILVATAE dv3y




ITEM NO:

WARD NO:

APPLICATION NO:

PROPOSAL:

LOCATION:
APPLICANT:
CONSTRAINTS:

PUBLICITY
UNDERTAKEN:

PDG
7

Tremeirchion
47/2012/0368/ PC

Erection of building to house water storage tank (retrospective application)

Bryntirion Rhuallt St. Asaph
Mr M Walsh

AONB

Site Notice - No

Press Notice - No
Neighbour lefters - No

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2

¢ Referral by Development Conircl Manager

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
TREMEIRCHION/CWM/WAEN COMMUNITY COUNCIL:
Response to be reported. The Officer has been advised by the Clerk that a response is due

on 16™ May.

CLWYDIAN RANGE AND DEE VALLEY AREA OF QUTSTANDING NATURAL BEAUTY
JOINT ADVISORY COMMITTEE:

“The JAC deplores the retrospective nature of this proposal and regrets that a number
of applications on this site have been submitted refrospectively in recent years. Several
new buildings and extensions have been erected or are currently under construction at
Bryntiricn Farm and the JAC considers that any necessary water storage should be
incorporated into the adjoining lambing shed which it is primarily intended to serve
rather than through the erection of yet another freestanding building in this ever
expanding complex of buildings in the open countryside.”

RESPCNSE TO PUBLICITY:

None received

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 29/05/2012

REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):

Page 91



PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals

1.

1.1.1

Permission is seught for the retention of a building which houses a water
storage tank. The water storage tank is to serve a lambing shed located
approximately 20 metres from the water tank building.

The building measures 4.9 metres by 2.7 metres and has a flat roof at a
height of 2.8 metres. It is constructed of rendered block-work (painted green)
with a mineral felt flat roof.

The submitted design and access statement indicates that the proposed shed
is required to provide adequate shelter for the water tank and help prevent it
from freezing during the winter months. The water tank would serve a recently
approved lambing shed.

The building is sited immediately to the south of the existing complex of
buildings known as Bryntirion Farm (formerly Toledo Farm) and, contrary to
statements in the submitted Design and Access statement, is oufside of the
existing residential curtilage.

1.2 Description of site and surroundings

1.2.1

1.2.2

1.2.3

1.2.4

The site is located in an area of open countryside designated as an Area of
QOutstanding Natural Beauty. Accordingly the area features the typical
characteristics of the Vale of Clwyd, with open fields, divided by hedgerows
and mature trees and a few well dispersed dwellings.

Surrounding the site is well maintained grassland immediately adjacent to the
associated residential curtilage and outbuildings of Bryntirion Farm. Within the
residential curtilage of Bryntirion Farm are a triple bay garage, a dog kennel,
and swimming pool/gymnasium building. The site on which the building
stands is an area of concrete hard-standing upon which machinery and
equipment is stored.

A public right of way runs along the southern boundary of the site,
approximately 30 metres from the proposed building. This boundary is made
up of a mixture of native species and leylandii. A public highway runs north to
south, 70 metres from the proposed building. The public highway is screened
from the site by a dense 3 metre high laurel hedge.

The site is open to view from the north-west across land in the applicant's
ownership.

1.3 Relevant planning constrainis/considerations

1.3.1

The site is located within the Clwydian Range Area of Cutstanding Natural
Beauty.

1.4 Relevant planning history

1.4.1

The site has been subject to a number of applications in the past for
equipment sheds, all of which were refused, and successfully defended at
appeal, as detailed below.

Page 92



142

14.3

1.4.4

The previous refusals focused on the lack of an existing farm enterprise in
this [ocation, and the scale and design of the building being to large for this
prominent location in the AONB.

In relation to the appeal lodged against the 2008 refusal for an eguipment
store, the Inspector commented that there was justification for a building
within the site to assist the maintenance of the applicants land. Howaver, the
appeal was dismissed on the grounds that the building propesed would result
in injury to the character of the AONB.

Subsequent to that appeal, the applicant has gained planning permission for
a detached equipment store adjacent to the other buildings at Bryn Tirion
Farm, and a detached lambing shed, which would receive iis water supply
from the building in question.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission

1.5.1

None.

1.6 Other relevant background information

1.6.1

None.

DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:
47/2011/0768/PF — Erection of agricultural building (lambing shed). Granted 19"
QOctober 2011.

2.1

2.2

23

2.4

2.5

47/2010/1272/PF — Erection of equipment store. Granted 16" February 2011.

47/2008/0813/PF - Erection of detached equipment store refused on 117
September 2008, and subsequent appeal dismissed. The reasons for refusal
were as follows:

1.

The proposed building, detached and unrelated to any farm or agricultural
complex, would result in a sporadic form of development contrary to Policy
EMP 13 of the Denbighshire Unitary Development Plan.

The proposed building, by virtue of its size and siting, would result in an
intrusive feature in the open countryside and the AONB contrary to Policy
GEN 3, criterion i) of Policy GEN 6 and Folicy ENV 2 of the Denbighshire
Unitary Development Plan.

47/2007/0834/PF — Erection of detached equipment store. Refused 25 October
2007.

47/2006/1278/PF — Erection of agricultural equipment shed. Refused 21st
December 2006.

RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:
3.1The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:

DENBIGHSHIRE UNITARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN (adopted 3™ July 2002)
Policy GEN 3 — Development outside Development Boundaries

Policy GEN 6 — Development Centrol Requirements

Poticy EMP 13 — Agricultural Development

Policy ENV 2 — Development Affecting the AONB

3.2 GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE

Planning Policy Wales 4 — (February 2010)

Page 93



Technical Advice Note 6 — Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities (July 2010)
4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

4.1 The main land use planning issues are considered to be:
411 Principle
41.2 Impact upon the AONB/visual amenity

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:

421 Principle
Policy GEN 3 allows for certain types of development outside development
boundaries and criterion vi) permits agricultural development providing there
is no unacceptable impact on the social, natural and built environment. EMP
13 relates to specifically to agricultural development, and the aim of this policy
is to ensure agricultural development has no unacceptable impact on the
environment. Proposals must comply with four criteria relating to; the need for
the development, the use of alternative existing buildings, the impact of
development on the character and appearance of the countryside and the
siting relating well io the existing complex. The building is required to house a
large water storage tank to provide water for the lambing shed and provides
necessary insulation to prevent the water from freezing; given the elevation
and exposed position of the site, this is not considered unreasonable. It is
therefore considered that the proposal complies with criteria i) and i} of
EMP13.

42.2 |mpact upon the AONB/visual amenity
Policy GEN 3 requires development in conjunction with agricultural uses to
not impact unacceptably upon the natural or built environment. Policy GEN 8
contains a raft of criteria which aim to protect the character and appearance
of the area from inappropriate development. Policy ENV 2 specifically aims to
enhance and preserve the natural beauty of the area. Small scale
development, such as that involved in the proposal, is only be permitted by
Policy ENV 2 where it would not detract from the character and appearance
of the AONB.

The shed would be located within 20 metres of the existing buildings at
Bryntirion Farm and is close to existing planting along the site boundary. The
building is 4.9 metres by 2.7 metres and has a flat roof at a height of 2.8
metres. It is constructed of rendered block-work {painted green) with a
mineral felt flat roof. The AONB Joint Advisory Committee express concerns
over another free standing building in this area.

in Officer’s opinion, public views of the building would be limited to those from
the Public Right of Way, adjacent to the south of the site. The materials and
colour generally match and compliment the surrounding planting, and further
help to reduce the impact of its appearance. In terms of scale, the proposed
building is considered commensurate with the stated need. Given the size of
the site, the amount of land in the applicant’s ownership, and scale of existing
development, the proposal is not censiderad to represent an
overdevelopment of the site. Therefore, the preposal is considered
acceptable in terms of impact upon visual amenity, and is not in conflict with
the aims of Policies GEN 3, GEN 6 and ENV 2.

5 SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:
5.1 The principle of development in connection with agriculture is acceptable in this
location. The main issue is considered to be the impact upon the visual amenity of the

Page 94



area, and the character of the AONB. With regard to the detailing, the proposal is
considered to comply with planning policy, and it is therefore recommended that
permission be granted.

RECOMMENDATION: - GRANT -~

1. No conditions imposed.

NOTES TO APPLICANT:

None

Page 95



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 96



Agenda Iltem 8

PLANNING COMMITTEE
30" MAY 2012

REPORT BY THE HEAD OF PLANNING, REGENERATION, AND REGULATORY SERVICES

PLANNING APPEAL

ERECTION OF 60 BED CARE HOME TO REAR OF EXISTING HOME, CONSTRUCTION OF NEW CAR
PARK AND NEW VEHICULAR ACCESS FROM EAST PARADE AND SERVICE DRIVE FROM

22

2

2.3

TARLETON STREET
ST. DAVID’S RESIDENTIAL HOME, EAST PARADE, RHYL

APPLICATION 45/2011/0572/ PF

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 This report relates to a refusal decision of the Planning Committee against which a formal appeal has
subsequently been lodged. The appeal will be dealt with by way of a Hearing.

1.2 The report will provide Members with the relevant background information and request that Members
appoint two representatives to give evidence at the hearing in accordance with Para. 9.3 of the
Planning Appeals and Member Involvement Protocol.

BACKGROUND

2.1 The planning appeal has arisen from the decision of the Committee to refuse to approve an application

to erect a 60 bed care home, with associated access and parking works, at St David’s Residential
Home, East Parade, Rhyl.

The application was submitted in May 2011 and was considered at Planning Committee in September
2011. The officer recommendation was to GRANT permission. The Committee resolved to REFUSE
permission for the following reasons:

1. “The Local Planning Authority considers that the proposed level of provision for off road parking, and
the access arrangements for service and emergency vehicles for a linked development of the existing
St David’s Home and the proposed Care Home would be unsatisfactory and likely to perpetuate
problems arising from the use of Tarleton street as a service road and for parking of staff and visitors
vehicles. Tarleton street is considered to be an inadequate highway to serve the development, being
characterised by a limited carriageway width, on street parking, and a narrow and unusable footway on
one side only. The proposals are considered to conflict with tests vi and vii of Policy GEN 6, test v of
Policy CF5, and Policies TRA6 and TRA9 of the Denbighshire Unitary Development Plan, and the
parking guidelines in the Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance Note No 21 — Parking
Requirements in New Developments, which seek to ensure adequate parking and servicing
arrangements in new developments”

“The Local Planning Authority considers the proposals would give rise to an over intensification of

development on the site, resulting in a cramped form of development and inadequate provision of open
space for the residents of the two Care Homes, contrary to tests I, ii, and iii of Policy GEN 6 and test iv
of Policy CF5 of the Denbighshire Unitary Development Plan’.

The sole resolution at Committee was to grant permission, but the vote was 13 — 7 to refuse. Members
who spoke against the grant of permission were Councillors Bellis, Bartley, and Pennington.

Page 97



2.4  The formal Certificate of Decision was dated 6" October 2011.

2.5 The Planning Inspectorate notified the Council of the appeal on 21° February, 2012. They have
advised that the appeal will be dealt with at a Hearing, and that the date of the Hearing will be Tuesday
June 19", 2012.

2.6 The Council’'s Statement on the appeal, and any further comments by third parties, was sent to the
Planning Inspectorate by their deadline of 3™ April, 2012.

2.7 As the refusal decision was contrary to the Planning Officer's recommendation, it is necessary to follow
the adopted Protocol for dealing with Planning Appeals and Member Involvement.

Paragraph 9.3 states:

“Members of the Planning Committee will be required to give evidence at inquiry or informal hearing in
appeals where an officer recommendation has been reversed. The Planning Committee shall appoint
representatives to give evidence at the hearing/inquiry (normally the proposer and the seconder of the
proposal)”

2.8 Officers presented a similar report to the March 2012 meeting of Planning Committee, and it was
resolved at the time that Councillors Bellis and Hannam should represent the Council alongside the
Development Control Manager at the Hearing, subject to re-election on May 3. As neither have been re-
elected, Officers therefore have to seek a further resolution from Committee on Member representation, in
accordance with the protocol.

3. RECOMMENDATION

3.1 That the Planning Committee appoints two representatives to give evidence at the Hearing on 19" June
2012

GRAHAM H. BOASE
HEAD OF PLANNING, REGENERATION AND REGULATORY SERVICES

Page 98



Agenda Iltem 9

PLANNING COMMITTEE
30" MAY 2012

INFORMATION ITEM

REPORT BY THE HEAD OF PLANNING, REGENERATION AND REGULATORY SERVICES
MAJOR INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS

UPDATE REPORT
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 Members will recall previous reports focusing on major infrastructure projects in Denbighshire.

1.2 This report seeks to update Members on:
- changes to the planning process for major infrastructure projects introduced by the Localism Act 2011;
- the statutory framework for major infrastructure projects; and
- the current status of major infrastructure projects in Denbighshire.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 Major infrastructure projects are large scale developments such as new harbours, power stations (including wind
farms), and electricity transmission lines, which require a type of consent known as ‘development consent’ under
procedures governed by the Planning Act 2008 (as amended by the Localism Act 2011).

2.2 Previously major infrastructure projects were dealt with by the Infrastructure Planning Commission (IPC). Under
the Localism Act 2011, the IPC was abolished and from the 1 April 2012the Planning Inspectorate became the
agency responsible for operating the planning process for major infrastructure projects. In Wales the Planning
Inspectorate examines applications for energy and habour development, subject to detailed provisions in the
Planning Act 2008 (the ‘2008 Act’).

2.3 The 2008 Act sets out thresholds above which certain types of infrastructure development are considered to be
nationally significant and require development consent. For energy projects in England and Wales, it includes:

- Electricity generation power stations with an installed capacity over 50 megawatts onshore and 100
megawatts offshore. This includes generation from fossil fuels, wind farms, biomass, energy from waste and
nuclear; and

- High voltage electricity power lines at or above 132,000 Volts.

2.4 Any developer wishing to construct a major infrastructure project must first apply for consent to do so. For such
projects, the Planning Inspectorate examines the application and will make a recommendation to the relevant
Secretary of State, who will make the decision on whether to grant or to refuse development consent.

2.5 The 2008 Act places a duty on the project developer to undertake extensive consultation with prescribed
consultees and local communities before submitting an application for development consent to the Planning
Inspectorate. The prescribed list of consultees is contained in Schedule 1 to The Infrastructure Planning
(Applications: Prescribed Forms and Procedure) Regulations 2009; Local Authorities and relevant Town and
Community Councils are defined as prescribed consultees.

2.6 There is no statutory obligation placed on the Local Authority to respond to pre-application consultation or
participate in the examination process.

2.7 However, Part 8 of the 2008 Act confers an enforcement function on the Local Authority; the Council will

Page 99



therefore have the power to take enforcement action post consent should the development be in breach of the
provisions set out in the Development Consent Order.

2.8 When making a recommendation or a decision on an application for development consent, the Inspector(s)
appointed to examine the application must have regard to any relevant National Policy Statement; any Local Impact
Report submitted by a relevant Local Authority; and any other matter which the Inspector(s) consider important or
relevant.

2.9 Welsh Government policy and local planning policy are material considerations, however it is for the Local
Authority or other interested parties to identify relevant policies and put forward a case during the examination of the
application to demonstrate why weight should be apportioned to a particular policy.

2.10. Given the scale of development in Denbighshire and the impact this will have on our local communities,
Officers feel it is incumbent to fully participate in the process; in this respect key activities include responding to pre-
application consultations, submitting written representations and producing a Local Impact Report. A report will be
put to the Communities Scrutiny Committee (date to be confirmed) to ratify the level of involvement the Council
should have with regards to major infrastructure projects.

2.11 Appendix 1 summarises the statutory stages in the planning process for major infrastructure projects which
affect the Local Authority and the local community.

3. MAJOR INFRASTRCUCTURE PROJECTS IN DENBIGHSHIRE

3.1 There are five major infrastructure projects currently in the pre-application stages which affect Denbighshire.
This includes offshore and onshore windfarms and new high voltage electricity power lines. In addition, the Gwynt y
Mor offshore windfarm is currently under construction. Details of all major infrastructure projects affecting

Denbighshire are detailed below:
Offshore major infrastructure projects

3.2 The offshore windfarm developments off the North Wales coast are classed as major infrastructure
developments and affect Denbighshire in terms of visual, landscape and seascape impact. Offshore windfarms also
need an onshore connection point to feed the power generated into the electricity grid. Onshore grid connection
works are likely to be subject to a separate planning application, where the determination body is the relevant local
planning authority rather than the Planning Inspectorate.

3.2.1 Gwynt y Mor offshore windfarm

- The applicant for the project is RWE Renewables Ltd.

- The proposal is for a 576 megawatt (MW) offshore windfarm in Liverpool Bay, around 18km off the North
Wales coast.

- The development will consist of 160 no. 3.6MW turbines each with a tip height of 150m.
- The offshore windfarm will have a grid connection point at St Asaph.

- The Department for Energy and Climate Change (DECC) granted consent for the windfarm in December
2008 and Denbighshire County Council granted planning permission for the onshore grid connection works
in early 2009.

- The development is currently under construction.

3.2.2 Burbo Bank Extension offshore windfarm

- The applicant for the project is Dong Energy.

- The proposal is to extend the existing Burbo Bank offshore windfarm in Liverpool Bay, approximately 7km
north of Hoylake on the Wirral and 12.2km from the Point of Ayr in Flintshire.

Page 100



3.2.3

The proposed installed capacity will be approximately 250MW and the windfarm will consist of a maximum of
75 turbines with a maximum tip height of 225m.

The windfarm extension has been offered a grid connection point at St Asaph. and the onshore grid
connection works will require planning permission from Denbighshire County Council. The onshore grid
connection route is yet to be finalised. None of the current route options require overhead lines. All the

cabling from the shoreline to St Asaph will be underground, however a new substation will be required.

The development is in the pre-application stages. Statutory pre-application consultation commenced on 16
April 2012 and will run until 1 June 2012.

The developer intends to submit the applications to the Planning Inspectorate and Denbighshire County
Council in early 2013.

Irish Sea Zone offshore windfarms

In 2008 the Crown Estate began a competitive tender process to develop offshore windfarms in nine
specified zones around Britain in its third round of offshore windfarm leasing (known as Round 3). This

included the Irish Sea Zone.

The Crown Estates awarded Centrica the development rights to the Irish Sear Zone in January 2010. In
March 2012, Centric and Dong Energy announced the creation of a joint venture partnership to develop,
construct and operate windfarms in the Irish Sea Zone.

A Zonal Appraisal and Planning programme has been completed which identifies three Potential
Development Areas where windfarm development could be located within the lrish Sea Zone.

The scheme is in the early pre-application stages and the development programme is currently being
devised.

Onshore major infrastructure projects

3.3 The following onshore developments affecting Denbighshire are classed as major infrastructure developments:

3.3.1

3.3.2

Clocaenog Forest windfarm

The applicant for the project is RWE Npower Ltd.

The proposal is for a 32 turbine windfarm and associated infrastructure in the Clocaenog Forest. Each
turbine would have a generating capacity of between 2 — 3MW and would have a maximum tip height of 145
metres.

The site is wholly within the Clocaenog Forest Strategic Search Area identified in Welsh Government
Technical Advice Note 8. The Welsh Government seeks to direct large scale wind farm development to
within Strategic Search Areas.

The development is in the pre-application stages. Statutory pre-application consultation was carried out in
September 2011 and the application is expected to be submitted to the Planning Inspectorate in summer
2012.

Mynydd Mynyllod windfarm

The applicant for the project is Scottish Power Renewables Ltd.

The proposal is for a windfarm of up to 25 turbines and associated infrastructure on Mynydd Mynyllod,
approximately 5km south west of Corwen. Each turbine would have a generating capacity of 2 -3MW and
would have a maximum tip height of 145 metres.

The site is outside of the Clocaenog Forest Strategic Search Area identified in Welsh Government Technical
Advice Note 8. The Welsh Government seeks to direct large scale wind farm development to within Strategic
Search Areas.

Page 101



- The development in the pre -application stages. Consultation on preliminary environmental information was
carried out in Autumn 2011 and formal pre-application consultation is expected to commence in June 2012
(the consultation period will last 42 days).

3.3.3 North Wales wind farm Connections

- The applicant for the project is Scottish Power Energy Networks (Scottish Power MANWEB) who are the
distribution network operator for the North Wales area.

- The electricity grid connection infrastructure to connect the consented windfarms in the Clocaenog Forest
Strategic Search Area and the proposed Clocaenog Forest windfarm is classed as a major infrastructure
development as it will include new 132,000 Volt power lines from Clocaenog Forest to St Asaph. The exact
route and type of infrastructure is yet to be defined but it is envisaged that overhead lines will be required.

- Any new substations would require planning permission from Denbighshire County Council.

- The development is in the early pre-application stages. Early consultation with local communities is expected
to be carried out in spring/ summer 2012 to help the developer refine the route options. Once the preferred

route is identified, the developer will consult with the Council on the provisions of the Statement of Common
Ground and formal pre-application consultation is expected in Summer 2012.

3.3.4 National Grid North Wales grid connection

- The applicant for the project is the National Grid.

- The National Grid North Wales grid connection project is classed as a major infrastructure development and
will affect the whole of North Wales. This is a separate development from the North Wales wind farm
connections project being progressed by Scottish Power Energy Networks.

- The proposal is to upgrade the existing North Wales National Grid electricity power lines to increase the
capacity on the transmission network (this is the existing very high voltage lines on large pylons which
stretches across North Wales). All North Wales local authorities will be affected by this project, however the
current options are only proposing to re-power the existing lines which cross through Denbighshire; no new
infrastructure is proposed in the county (however new power lines and infrastructure are proposed in other
North Wales counties).

- The development is in the early pre-application stages and is yet to be registered as a project with the
Planning Inspectorate.

3.4 The lead officer within the planning section for major infrastructure projects is Denise Shaw, who is the
Renewable Energy Schemes Planning Officer based in the Caledfryn office, and would be please to answer any

questions relating to these matters..

3.5 Further information on these projects can be found on the developer’'s websites. Appendix 2 contains contact
details and website addresses for the major infrastructure projects referred to above.

4. RECOMMENDATIONS
4.1 The report is mainly for information purposes, but Members are requested to note the key dates identified in
Section 3 of this report. Useful advice notes and further information can be found on the Planning Inspectorate’s

dedicated National Infrastructure Planning website

http://infrastructure.planningportal.gov.uk /

GRAHAM H. BOASE HEAD OF PLANNING, REGENERATION AND REGULATORY SERVICES

Page 102



ajeosaul) Aiojnjejs oN

‘pPUNOIS uowWoy) Jo Juswale)s e buieaibe pue

suoiebijqo buiuueld pue sjuswadinba ‘suoisiroid (0OQ) 18pJO Jussuo) juswdojorsdg
Jelp ayj uo bBunuawiwoo spnjoul Aew siy "uoneaidde ey bunuigns o} doud
Ajuoyiny 12207 8Y) Y)M SUOISSNISIP OJul 18 Jud Siadojensp SpusluwIooa. saljoeid jseg

SUoISSNoSIp
UOISSILWLIQNS-8id

a|eosawly Alojnje}s oN

ssao0.d ay} ul sebejs payoads
1e siadedsmau |e20| pue |euoljeu ul joafoid ayy asiuaApe 0} palinbal s Jadojansp ay |

(81 uonoeg)
Ayoignd

a|eosawi) Alojnjels oN

0DO0S 8y} ul Ino }8s sjesodoud
8y} UM 8oUeplodde Ul Ajjunwwod [eoo] ay} yym abebus o} palinbal s| Jadojansp sy

(Lt uonoag)

uolneynsuo)
Ajunwwo)

sAep gz Jo wnwiuipy

‘(sj1ouno) AjlunwiwoD pue UMO| JUBAS|S) puB SaljlIoYINYy [BO0T Sapn|oul SIY)
abejs uoneoldde-aid e sy nsuod paquosald }Nsuod Ajjewsoy 0y pasinbal si Jadojanaq

(2t uonoag)

uoleyNsuod
Aiojnjels

"paysiiqnd st
alojoq HDDOS YeJp dy} JO SuoIsiAcd Y} UO JUBSWIWOD O} Pa}IAUI 8] |IIM AlIoyiny |BO0T 8y |

‘uoneyNsuod Jivyj 1no Aued o} buiob ase Asy)
moy 1no Bumes {(DDoSs) uoneynsuo) Ajunwwo) jo juswsalels e asedaid 0} palinbal

(Lt uonoeg)

uol}e}Nsuod
(000S3)
uolejnsuo)
Ajunwwo)

shep gz sI Jadojanap sy} ‘AJlunwiwiod |B20] 8Y) YIM UOIIB)NSUO0D [ew.oy Buijeuspun o0y Joud 10 Juswialels el

(sbay vI3)

‘uoluido a1y} Buinssi oy Joud uoleynsuoo

$9Ip0( UOI}B}NSUO0D J8YJ0 pue S8IjLIoYINY [B20T YIIM }NSU0D ||Im alelojoadsu] ayy ‘(SNId) uoluido

sAep gz 10 wnuwiuip| ajeloyoadsu| Buiuue|d sy} wody uoluido Buidoos |3 ue sjsenbal Jadojaasp ay) a18ypn Buidoos y|3
abejg

ajessawi} Aiojnjels

Aoy

uonesijdde-aid

J9V.LS NOILVYII1ddV-3dd "IV

"SOI|E]l Ul MOYS 8.Je pue papn|oul usaq 0S|e aARY SallIoyINy |80 108))e Yyoiym sabels Aiojnjess-uou
eAs|ay s1o8foid ainjoniiseljul Jolew Joj sseooid Buiuueld ay) ul senoyINy [2007 0} 81ejal Yolym sabeis Alojnjers ay) 1o 18S Mojag sa|qe) ay |

$103royd

FANLONYLSVYANI JOrvIiN 04 SS300Ud ONINNVId FHL NI ALIHOHLNV ONINNV1d TvOO01 3HL 40 370d 3HL ‘| XIANIddV

Page 103



ajeasawi} Aiojnjels

Ajanoy

uoljeujwexsy

39V.LS NOILVNINVX3 vV

iy owyy Aiojnjels oN

(ojur paisjus aq 0} sjuswsaibe

|eba| 8jqeus 0} 066} YdOL 84} JO 90} UOHISS spuswe JoY 800Z 84} JO /) UOHISS)
sjuswoo.ibe jebs| Aiessaoau Aue 1oj Sulis)] JO Spesy daibk 0] }oas pue punois) Uowwo

Jo Juswsje)s e vaube pue sjerjobou 0} Ajioyiny (eo07 8y} yoroldde Aew Jadojorsp ay |

punoJo
uowiwoy Jo

Juswaje)s e va.by

ajelojoadsuy
Buluueld Aq jos aq M |
1O uoIssIwgns 10} 8|edsauWl]

"Juasuo9 juawdojaaap Joy uoieoldde ue Jo uoljeuUILLEXD
oy} buninp uoday joedw| (o0 Aue 0y piebal aaey jsnw ajelojoadsu| Buluue|d sy

"poday joedw] 2007 B JIWANS 0} PaIAUL 8] ||iM AjIoyIny (800 Y|

(09 uonoasg)

yodeay
10edw| 207

1saJa1ul J1ay) Joysibal
0] solued pajsalaul o} UsAIb
aq 1shw sAep gz wnwiulp

‘obejs uonjeoldde
-ald yuow ¢ ‘xoiddy

‘uoneoijdde ay) UO SMaIA [efiul JIBY) IO Jos 0} abe)s siy)
Je uonejuasaidal B e)ew 0} s8v)Nsuod paquosaid abeinoous s)elojoadsu| Buluue|d 8yl

' Aued peajsaisiul, ue Aj|eonewolne ale saijlioyiny |eo0T ‘98)Nsuod paqglosald e sy

‘pajels Alleajd aq 03 }saJalul Jo suoissalidxa
Jo} aulpeap ay "1saJslul Jisy) Jaysibal 0} saied pajsalslul 1oy sAep g Jo wnwiuiw
B MOJ||e pue Jauuew paquosald ay} ul uoneoldde ayy asiolgnd osje }snw Jadojaasp ay

*JG UON}08S Ul JNo Jos sallobeyes ay) Jo

9J0W JO 8UO UIYYIM SI oym uosiad Jayjo Aue pue sallioyiny |eooT ‘ses)nsuod paqliosald
0] uoneoljdde ayj jo ad1j0u aAIb Jsnw Jadojonap ay) ‘paydadde si uoieoldde ue aouQ

(25 % 95 uonoeg)

uonejussaiday
leniu| / 1saia)u|
Jo uonensibay

ajeasawi} Aiojnjels

Aoy

abejg
uoljeujwexsa- aid

J9OV.LS NOILVNINVX3-J¥d '€V

(Ajo311) 3sow
S| s)y9aMm g) sAep gz uey} ssa7

-ueoljdde ayj AQ N0 paLlIED UOIIB}NSUOD

ay} Jo Aoenbape ay} uo jJuswwod 0} pajIAul 8] [IIM AlLIoyiny 820 8yl awi siy) Buung
‘uoneoldde

ue jdeooe 0} Jou Jo Jay}aym apioap 0} sAep gz sey ajelojoadsu| Buluue|d ay |

(gG uonoag)

uole}NSuU0d
Ajunwwoos

Jo Aoenbape

By} UO JUBWWOo)

a|eosauwi} Aioynje}g

Aanoy

abejg aouejdosoy
| uoissiwqgng

39OV.1S dONV.Ld3DIV / NOISSINENS ¢V

Page 104



ajeosauwi} Aiojnje}g

Ajanoy

abejg
uoISI29p -}SOd

J9V.1S NOISIOFd 1SOd "9V

Syeem 9

s)oam 9 Jo poliad ay) Bulinp paji sI wioj wiep syl (q
pue mainal [eipipn( Joy wieo e Aq Jybnouq aJe sbuipessosd syl (e

31 Ajuo
Juasuo09 jJuswdojanap pajuelb Japio ue Buiuonsanb Joj Buipaadoid uiensjus Aew 1Nod

(8L 1 uonosg)
abuajiey) |ebe

SUJUOW € [euonippe
ue aAeY ||IM 8)B)S JO AIB}aloag

uolepusWWOooaY
/ UoIs|oa( a)ew o} syuow
¢ sey ajelojoadsu| buiuue|d

‘solued
pajsalajul pue sa88)Nsuod paquasald o} papiroid 8q pjnoys Juswaiels ayj jo Adoo v

"JU8sSU09 Juswdo|ansp asnjal
J0 1uelb o) Buipiosp 1o} suoseal S)i Jo Juswale)s e aledald 1Snw 8yew uoisioag 8yl

(211€01 uonoes)
Juswia)e}s uolisinag

a|eosauwi} Aiojnje}s

Ajanoy

abejs uoisioaqg

J9V.1S NOISIOEd 'SV

ajelojoadsu| Buluue|d Aqg 198
aq |Im sdal |elo 10} 8jeasawl |

‘Aiesseoau alaym suoljejussaldal
[eJ0 @YW pue suoissas BuliesH pusne 0] paliAul 84 [|Im Allloyiny 2007 8yl

(96— |6 UOIOAS)
Bulieay
1e yeads / puany

(06 uonoag)

ajelojoadsuy
Buiuue|d Aq 18s aq uoneuasaiday
[IM sdaJ usyLIm 1o} ajeasalul | “*suonejuasaldal usyLIM JWgNs 0) PaYIAUL 8] [|IM AJlIOYINY 8207 8y L USNLIM Hwgng
(88 uonoag)
Bunes|y
afe)s uoneulwex3 yjuow 9 ‘Bunesw Aleuiwiaid e pusjie o} pajaul 8q |IM AJlJoyiny [B00T By L Areuiwijald

abejg

Page 105



8002 10V Buluueld = 19V 8002
0661 10V Buluue|d Auno) pue umol = 0661 YdIL
uone)nsuo) Ajlunwwo) Jo Juswakels = DDoS

uoday j1oedw| |e207 = Y|

600z suonenbay (Juswssassy joedw| [ejuswuoliaug) Buluue|d ainjoniiselu| = sbay v|3

Juswssassy joedw| [eJuswuoIIAUT = V[T

JaplQ usesuo) juswdojorsq = 00d

'suojjejaalqqe Jo Aiesso|o

00d 8y} Ul pauysp sy

‘Adoyine Buiuue|d [BOO] BY} UO UOIIOUN) JUBSWSVIOMUS UB SISJUOD PUE SIapIo
Juasu09 Juswdojaasp 0} Buljejas siemod JusWadlous 8y} 1IN0 S}8S 1oV 8002 8Ul 0 § Led

(€21091 uonoas)

JUBWISDIOJUD
pue Buuojuow
JUBSU0D ]SO

Page 106



APPENDIX 2: MAJOR INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS CONTACT INFORMATION

Gwynt y Mor offshore windfarm

Post Gwynt y Mor Offshore Wind Farm,
RWE Npower Renewables Ltd, Port of Mostyn, Coast Road, Mostyn, Flintshire,
CH8 9HE

Tel 0845 071 4474

Email gwyntymor@rwe.com

Web - - -

construction/gwynt-y-mr/summary/

Burbo Bank Extension offshore windfarm

Post DONG Energy Burbo Bank Extension (UK) Ltd,
33 Grosvenor Place, London, SW1X 7HY
Tel 0207 811 523570207 811 5200
Email burbobankextension@dongenergy.co.uk
Web http://www.dongenergy.com/burbobankextension/Pages/index.aspx

Irish Sea Zone

offshore windfarms

Post

Centrica plc,

Millstream, Maidenhead Road, WindsorBerkshire, SL4 5GD

Tel 01753 494 000
Email ceri@centrica.com
Web http://www.centrica.com/index.asp?pageid=923&project=project8&projectstatus=f

uture

Clocaenog Forest windfarm

Post Clocaenog Forest consultation,
RWE npower renewables, Unit 22, Baglan Bay Innovation Centre, Baglan Energy
Park, Central Avenue, Port Talbot, SA12 7AX

Tel 01639 816180

Email clocaenog@npower—+enewables.com

Web http://www.rwe.com/web/cms/en/306196/rwe-innogy/sites/wind-onshore/united-

kingdom/in-development/the -proposal/

Mynydd Mynyllod windfarm

Post Scottish Power Renewables,
1 Atlantic Quay, 4th Floor, Glasgow, G2 8JB
Tel 0141 614 0450

Page 107




Email mynydd@scottishpower.com

Web http://www.mynyddmynyllodwindfarm.com/

North Wales wind farm Connections

Post North Wales wind farm connections project manager,

Scottish Power Energy Networks,
2 Prenton Way, Prenton, Merseyside, CH43 3ET

Tel No dedicated telephone number set up to date
Email No dedicated email set up to date
Web http://www.sppowersystems.co.uk/publicinformation/performance.asp

(details will be available on this webpage in due course)

National Grid North Wales grid connection

Post Freepost National Grid,
NW Connection
Tel 0800 990 3567
Email nationalgrid@northwalesconnection.com
Web http://www.nationalgrid.com/uk/Electricity/MajorProjects/North\WalesConnection/

Page 108




Agenda Item 10

PLANNING COMMITTEE
30" MAY 2012

ADDITIONAL ITEM

REPORT BY THE HEAD OF PLANNING, REGENERATION AND REGULATORY SERVICES

BURBO BANK WINDFARM EXTENSION MAJOR INFRASTRUCTURE
PROJECT

RESPONSE TO CONSULTATION UNDER SECTION 42 OF THE PLANNING
ACT 2008

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 Members are referred to the previous item on the agenda titled ‘Major Infrastructure Projects - Update Report’
which sets out the planning process for major infrastructure projects.

1.2 Denbighshire County Council have been invited to respond to the pre-application consultation on the proposed
Burbo Bank offshore windfarm extension in accordance with Section 42 of the Planning Act 2008.

1.3 This report seeks approval from Members to submit the a consultation response, which must be with the
developer by 5.00pm on the 1st June 2012.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 DONG Energy is proposing to develop an extension to the existing operational Burbo Bank offshore wind farm
(‘the Project’). The Project consists of an area of 40 sq. km and is located to the west of the existing operational
offshore wind farm within Liverpool Bay. Appendix 1 shows the indicative site plan.

2.2 The Project would consist of a maximum of 75 turbines with a maximum blade tip height of 225m and would be
located in English waters, although the offshore export cable route to shore would cross into Welsh territorial waters
and the cable route, landfall and onshore cable route would lie within the administrative area d Denbighshire County
Council.

2.3 The export cable landfall will be located on a stretch of coastline between Rhyl and Prestatyn; at this stage
several landfall locations are still being explored, but in either case, once ashore, an underground cable will run
south to south-west for approximately 11 km and the Project will connect into the wider electricity transmission
network at the National Grid’s Bodelwyddan substation (which is currently under construction) to the south of the St.
Asaph Business Park.

2.4 A new onshore substation would be built at one of two potential locations on land near to St. Asaph Business
Park.

2.5 The Project will require the following planning and development consents:

- A development consent order (DCO) under the Planning Act 2008 for the offshore elements of the Project
that are in English waters. This will be examined by the Planning Inspectorate and the Secretary of State will
have the final decision on whether to approve the application. A deemed marine licence from the Marine
Management Organisation (MMO) can be incorporated into the DCO.

Page 109



- A marine licence under the Marine and Coastal Access Act 2009 for the offshore elements of the project in
Welsh waters. The Welsh Government's Marine Consents Unit (WG MCU) is the relevant consenting
authority.

- Planning permission under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 for the onshore elements of the Project.
Denbighshire County Council will determine the application.

2.6 The Project will also be subject to Environmental Impact Assessment as well as other statutory assessments

(e.g. Appropriate Assessment and Habitats Regulations Assessment) and will require a range of additional consents
and licences (e.g. Water abstraction licence, protected species licence, notice of street works etc.).

2.7 In accordance with the provision of Section 42 of the Planning Act 2008, formal pre-application consultation with
stakeholders and the public commenced on 16 April 2012 and ends on 1 June 2012.

2.8 It is noted that the Council will not receive a planning fee to cover the cost of responding to the Section 42
consultation, however it presents an opportunity for the Council to comment on the proposal and ensure local
impacts are fully considered.

2.9 Other stakeholders such as the Countryside Council for Wales, the Environment Agency, Town and Community
Councils and members of the public will also have the opportunity to comment on the consultation documents.

3. SECTION 42 CONSULTATION DOCUMENTS

3.1 The consultation is focussed on the Preliminary Environmental Information Technical Report (‘PEI Report’). The
purpose of the PEI Report is to provide detailed information about the project and set out a preliminary overview of
how the Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) is progressing and to detail the information gathered and
assessments made so far.

3.2 The PEI Report is accompanied by a Non-Technical Summary.

3.3 Since the final layout of the Project is not fully defined at this stage, the EIA process has considered the worst
realistic scenario within the design envelope, i.e. the scenario allowed within the defined envelope of the proposals
that have the potential to be constructed and would lead to the worst levels of adverse environmental effects for that
sensitivity.

3.4 As a result of the consultation the developer (DONG Energy) is seeking to obtain comments from stakeholders
and communities on the Project, including in relation to the following:

- The proposed Project in relation to the ‘design envelope’ i.e. range of wind turbines, fou ndations etc. that are
being considered;

- The relevance of the environmental impacts being assessed with regards to various physical, biological and
human sensitivities to the Project;

- The degree of consultation undertaken thus far and, if required, what could be done to improve this;
- The amount of feedback received and information available with regards to the Project;

- The clarity of the application process and various bodies/organisations through which the relevant
consents/licences will be obtained.

4. CONSULTATION RESPONSE

4.1 Having assessing the submission, Officers have drafted a consultation response which is contained in Appendix
2.

4.2 As the offshore windfarm would be a considerable distance from the Denbighshire coastline (the nearest turbine
will be more than 15km from the Nova Centre in Prestatyn), Officers feel the offshore works will have only a limited

2

Page 110



impact on the County; so comments have therefore focused on the onshore works.

4.3 The consultation response does not form an opinion on the development but rather takes the form of an
observations report that makes reference to the relevant chapters in the PEI Report.

4.4 Officers have consulted with colleagues in other relevant sections of the Council, and comments have been
received from the Council’s Biodiversity Officer, Public Protection Technical Officer and Senior Highways Engineer,
which have informed the consultation response; Officers respectfully feel this is an adequate response at this stage.

4.4 As the onshore works will be the subject of a planning application, the consultation response includes a caveat
within the preface to clarify that comments are given without prejudice and do not constitute a formal determination
under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. The Council will therefore reserve the right to fully assess the
onshore works at the planning application stage.

4.5 Failure to submit a consultation response to DONG Energy may result in key issues being overlooked which may
result in delays at the planning application stage.

4. RECOMMENDATIONS
4.1 Members agree to the appended consultation response in Appendix 2 being submitted to DONG Energy as the

Council’s response to the form al pre-application consultation, in order to meet the timescale directed by the
developer (1 June 2012).

GRAHAM H. BOASE HEAD OF PLANNING, REGENERATION AND REGULATORY SERVICES

Page 111



APPENDIX 1: BURBO BANK EXTENSION OFFSHORE WINDFARM

Wil oyl Barik
i

" Pt of Ay

& Surte Bans - Turmes s suiln [ Swrbs Bank Exwnwse

= Burbo Bank - Cables (as beil| ¥  Burbo Bank Exmnsion - Ofishore Subsiston *

[ OMhore Wind Farms (Rooed ') ¥ Burbo Bank Extension - Onshare Substation *

I o*5shos Win Farms (Round 2) e Burbo Bank Extension - Caties iogion |
Sl L S DA sl e CH g

Data Copyright

Fmsnd 1 8 F D ddad F oy D men Gmme Sapremmos WG
B s W 05 D P Gt T B 5 Dipmeiiala § M R RS Sl dEle

Scale 1:145 919 Coordnate Syste 0SGE 36 NG

Burbo Bank Extension
offshore wind farm

Site Boundary, Cable Route
Options and Substations {indicative)

O g b 0 e
17 g Sy e T
g — g £ -
=
-

Page 112




APPENDIX 2: CONSULTATION RESPONSE ON BEHALF OF DENBIGHSHIRE COUNCIL

PLEASE SEE REPORT BELOW:

Page 113



BURBO BANK WINDFARM EXTENSION MAJOR INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECT
SECTION 42 CONSULTATION

RESPONSE TO PRELIMINARY ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION (PEI) ON BEHALF OF
DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

30 MAY 2012

1. PREFACE

Reference is made to your letter dated 16 April 2012 which gave notice of the formal pre-application consultation
period and invited comments on the Preliminary Environmental Information (PEI) in accordance with the provisions
of Section 42 of the Planning Act 2008.

Comments on behalf of Denbighshire County Council (‘the Council’) take the form of an observations report which
follows this preface. The response incorporates comments from the Council’'s Renewable Energy Planning Officer,
Senior Highways Engineer, Public Protection Technical Officer (Pollution Control) and Biodiversity Officer. Reference
is made to the relevant chapters in the PEI Technical Report; reference is made only to sections of the Report which
the Council wish to provide comment on.

As the onshore works will not form part of the Development Consent Order and will instead require planning
permission from the Council, we advise that comments specific to the onshore works contained in this response are
provided without prejudice based on the information available, and does not constitute a formal determination under
Town and Country Planning Act 1990. The Council therefore reserves the right to fully assess the onshore works at
the planning application stage.

These comments have been considered by Denbighshire County Council’s Planning Committee and constitute the
authority’s formal response to the consultation.

2. GENERAL NOTES

Layout of the Report

The PEI Report is well laid out and has a logically format, however it is a very long document (276 pages in total)
which required a significant amount of time to review; this should be taken into consideration when the documents
are submitted and interested parties should be given adequate time to review the information during the pre-
examination stage. The Non-Technical Summary is also well laid out and provides sufficient information for the
reader to familiarise themselves with the key elements of the project without being overly simplistic.

For information, in relation to other EIA developments (both NSIP and non-NSIP projects), we have previously
received comments from the public which criticise the scope of the ES Non-Technical Summary; members of the
public and local interest groups often do not have the time or resources to review the full ES and often rely on the
Non-Technical Summary as a source of information, but in many cases they have found it to be too brief or overly
simplistic, therefore we would recommend that the final Non-Technical Summary retains the level of information
presented in the PEI Non-Technical Summary. However it may also be prudent to produce a more condensed
version of the ES in, for example, the form of an executive summary.

Welsh language and planning policy

It is noted that the consultation documents have been produced in English only. Given that the project affects both
England and Wales, Welsh language consultation documents should have been made available.

It is recommended that when the application is submitted to the Planning Inspectorate, a Welsh language version of
the ES Non-Technical Summary is made available and publicity materials and public notices should also be bilingual.

In the onshore section of the Report, some reference is made to English planning policy and English statutory

undertakers (e.g. PPS9 and Natural England), however as all onshore works will be within Wales, reference to
England only policies and agencies should be removed and replaced with the relevant Welsh counterparts.

Page 114



Local supply chain

Whilst this comment in not pertinent to the PEI Report or the consents process, the Council would also wish to
enquire about the opportunities for local businesses in the supply chain should consent be achieved?

To enhance the sustainability credentials of the project and provide tangible economic benefits to host communities
who will be impacted by the Project, the Council would welcome a commitment from DONG Energy to adopt a
sustainable procurement strategy and to maximise opportunities for the local supply chain during the design,
construction and operation of the windfarm. As far as practical, products and services from within North Wales and
the North West of England should be procured and we welcome the inclusion of a local business weighting criteria in
the supply chain tender process.

3. COMMENTS ON PEI REPORT

SECTION 3: OFFSHORE WIND ENERGY AND ELECTRICITY MARKET

Section 3.1. makes reference to the Westfield project rather than the Burbo Bank Extension project (end of 2
paragraph).

SECTION 4: ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT PROCESS

Section 4.2 sets out the Rochdale Envelope Principle. For the avoidance of doubt, the report should clarify what the
‘the worst case scenario’ assessment entails; have the assessments been based on a theoretical ‘worst case

scheme’ (i.e. a scheme which would consist of 75 no. turbines with a tip height of 225 meters, even though this isn’t
a feasible arrangement), or have each of the three realistic development scenarios presented in section 7.1
(Scenario 1, Scenario 2 and Scenario 3 respectively) been individually assessed and the most significant impacts
from the three assessments reported in the PEI Report?

Section 4.7 refers to mitigation measures and states the intention is to provide specific details within the individual
chapters of the ES, however it would exceedingly useful if all proposed mitigation and enhancement measures are

collated into separate stand-alone section of the ES or in a separate Mitigation Statement, and it should be made
explicit which measures will be taken forward.

Section 4.9 details the surveys undertaken and planned. Will these surveys in their entirety be available for
prescribed consultees and interested parties to consider, and will they be available on the Project website?

SECTION 5: LEGISLATIVE CONTEXT, PLANNING AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

Table 5: Onshore consents: Reference to Natural England should be replaced with the Countryside Council for
Wales (CCW).

SECTION 6: SITE SELECTION

Section 6.6 states that ‘all cables to and from the onshore cable that are associated with this Project application are
to be buried (no additional overhead cables are required)’. However, as the voltage from the substation will need to

be stepped up to 400kV to interface with the National Grid substation, clarification is sought as to whether this single
high voltage cable will be underground, or will this section of cable be replaced with overhead lines at the value

engineering stage?
SECTION 7: PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Section 7.6 states works on the onshore substation will be carried out during the summer months. Will the onshore
export cable route also be constructed during the summer months?

Carrying out construction works during the summer months in coastal areas will have a more significant impact on
tourism than it would during the winter months. Has the time of year been factored into the recreation and tourism

impact assessment?
SECTION 8: CONSULTATION

Were community consultation materials (leaflets, flyers, display boards etc.) bilingual (English and Welsh)?

Page 115



It is noted that consultation with landowners along the onshore cable routes have been carried out. However, as the
proposed substation will be located on the St. Asaph business park, have adjoining businesses on the business park
also been consulted?

We would like to draw your attention to an issue which arose when the Council determined the planning application
for the Gwynt y Mor substation. A neighbouring business (Qioptic) had particular concerns over vibration and
security, and it would be advisable to discuss this matter with them and other adjoining businesses directly to avoid
objections at the planning application stage.

Section 8.4 sets out the provisions for further consultation. Once the application is accepted by the Planning
Inspectorate, we would encourage you to extend to period of time for interested parties to register their interest
rather than strictly adhering to the statutory 28 day minimum period, given the length and complexity of the
application documents.

SECTION 12. OFFSHORE HUMAN ENVIRONMENT

Section 12.4 summarises the Landscape & Seascape Visual Impact Assessment (LSVIA); a correction is required in
Table 39: Prestatyn, near Nova Centre view point is in Denbighshire not Flintshire.

The regeneration of Rhyl is a strategic priority for the Council, and the coastal resorts are a key component of the
visitor economy in the county and we would therefore recommend an additional view point from Rhyl promenade to
ensure the impacts are fully considered (e.g. Rhyl Aquarium which was used in the North Hoyle SLVIA). However we
do acknowledge that the Prestatyn view point noted above would be broadly representative of views from Rhyl
promenade as well.

Section 12.4.7 acknowledges that the operational windfarms (North Hoyle and Rhyl Flats) combined with the Gwynt
y Mor windfarm will be a significant source of cumulative effects in views from the viewpoints along the Welsh coast
(however the existing Burbo Bank windfarm is the most prominent offshore windfarm when viewed from the Flintshire
coast).

However, as each windfarm has a different array layout and consists of different turbine specifications which vary in
size, will the offshore windfarm seascape appear to be cohesive? This is a particular concern with regards to
onshore wind energy developments; the scale of wind turbine development in the county varies significantly, and
when different scales of development are assessed in combination, there is the potential for the windfarm landscape
to appear disjointed, resulting in more significant cumulative effects. Have the offshore SLVIA taking into account the
layout, height and form of the existing windfarms as well as the volume of turbines when considering cumulative and
in-combination effects?

Do the turbines under consideration vary significantly in size and form from the turbines within the existing Burbo
Bank array and within the other offshore windfarms? If so, will it be obvious from the coastline that the turbines differ
in size and does this affect the magnitude of effects? (e.g. will the existing windfarm and the extension look like a
single larger scheme or will it be obvious that they are two separate schemes. If it is the latter, will this result in a
more significant visual effect?).

Section 12.4.8 refers to their being limited opportunities for mitigating visual impacts, however one mitigation
measure would be to ensure the turbine specification visually compliments the existing arrays. However, it is noted
that the visual impact of the existing offshore windfarms along the North Wales coast varies significantly depending
on the climatic conditions (weather, visibility, position of the sun in the sky etc.) and we would agree that it will be
very difficult to mitigate for this given the variability of the climate, and standard turbine colours would be preferable
to blend with the existing offshore developments.

MISSING INFORMATION: ONSHORE TRAFFIC AND TRANSPORT RELATING TO OFFSHORE WORKS

The report doesn’t seem to contain any information about onshore traffic and transport movements which relates to
the offshore works. Section 15.5 concentrates on the environmental effects caused by traffic and transport which

relate to the onshore works only, however there will inevitably be onshore traffic and transport implications during the
construction of the offshore windfarm.

For example, where will the construction compound and site office for the offshore construction works be located?

(Liverpool Docks, Mostyn Docks?) How will the turbine components be transported to site, will they be transported by
sea or will some components be transported by road? What implications will this have on shipping and the road

Page 116



network? What is the number and frequency of vehicular movements to and from the construction compound during
the construction phase? Will abnormal loads be required? Etc.

Therefore additional transport impact assessments are needed which should be reported in final Environmental
Statement.

ONSHORE WORKS

Please note comments given on the onshore elements of the proposal are given without prejudice based on the
information provided and does not constitute a formal determination under Town and Country Planning Act 1990:

SECTION 13. ONSHORE PHYSICAL AND CHEMICAL ENVIRONMENT

It is noted that the impacts on geology, hydrogeolology and ground conditions and on hydrology and flood risk are
most likely to occur during the construction phase and Section 13 makes reference to the Construction
Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) as a mechanism to manage and mitigate those impacts. This would be a
key document to enable the Council to assess if measures have been put in place to adequately mitigate identified
environmental effects; it would be preferable if this document is submitted with the planning application so the
development proposal can be assessed in its entirety rather than the approval of the CEMP being subject to a pre-
commencement planning condition.

All proposed mitigation measures to reduce environmental effects during operation (e.g. surface water drainage
measures; maintenance protocols etc.) should be identified in the supporting information accompanying the planning
information.

As mentioned earlier, it would be beneficial for all mitigation and enhancement measures which are to be taken
forward to be collated into a stand-alone section of the ES, or in a separate Statement.

SECTION 14. ONSHORE BIOLOGICAL ENVIRONMENT

Par. 14.1.1 refers to Nature England, who has no jurisdiction in Wales and Par. 14.1.3. refers is to PPS9 which does
not apply in Wales. Reference should instead be made to CCW and Welsh planning policy (Planning Policy Wales
and Technical Advice Note 5). Appropriate planning policies contained in the Denbighshire UDP should also be
referenced.

The Council is happy with the proposed surveys to be carried out in 2012, but will reserve detailed judgement on the
ecological impacts until the Phase 2 ecological surveys have been carried out. However, based on information in the
PEI Report, the Council’s Biodiversity Officer has put forward the following comments:

Landfall location: From a biodiversity point of view option 1 would be preferable since it avoids the Wildlife Site;

however it is appreciated that this could be more contentious. Option 2 will be possible if scrub/gorse clearance is
undertaken outside of the bird nesting season and adequate mitigation is provided. In fact removal of some of the
scrub would be beneficial for the herb-rich grassland behind the dunes which is being taken over by scrub.

Onshore cable route: Section 14.1.3 Baseline states "The proposed cable route corridor crosses three Local
Wildlife Sites, at Ffrith Beach at the northern end of the proposed cable route, in the centre of the scheme, near the
River Clwyd, and at the southern end of the proposed cable route”.

Which wildlife site is referred to as being at the southern end of the cable route as this site isn’t identified on the
map? For information it is the River Clwyd and Adjacent Fields Wildlife Site which the cable route crosses as it
crosses the river south of Rhuddlan.

Please contact the Council’s Biodiversity Officer for more information on this site.

Grid connection point: Sub-station option B would be preferable since this avoids taking the cable through the
mitigation area for the Gwynt y Mor onshore works.

SECTION 15. ONSHORE HUMAN ENVIRONMENT
15.2 Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment

With regards to the substation, the Council had recommended additional viewpoints to inform the LVIA at
Bodelwyddan historic park, St Asaph Cathedral and Scheduled Ancient Monument’s with public access. It is not

Page 117



clear if these additional viewpoints have been incorporated into the assessment. Viewpoints used within the
assessment should be tabled in the report similar to Table 39 which lists the viewpoints for the offshore LSVIA.

Details of mitigative landscaping should be included with the planning application rather than being subject to a pre-
commencement planning condition.

15.4 Recreation, Tourism and Socio-Economics

Has time of year being factored into the assessment for construction impacts? Is in noted previously in the PEI
Report that onshore construction works are likely to be carried out during the summer months which would have a
more significant impact on tourism and recreation interests than if works were carried out in the winter. It is

recommended that construction activities in coastal areas avoid peak times of the year to mitigate the impact on the
visitor economy; if peak times cannot be avoided affected businesses should be compensated for any loss of income
they may incur.

Similarly, during operation, maintenance activities on the jointing bays should be scheduled during quiet times to
avoid disruption.

15.5 Traffic and Transport

Please refer to the point made above in relation to the offshore works; have the onshore traffic and transport
movements which relate to the offshore works been assessed?

The Welsh Government has advised that planning applications for windfarms should not be determined until such
time as a Transport Management Plan (TMP) has been agreed by all relevant highways authorities. As the planning
application for the onshore works will be ancillary development, this advice will apply. Therefore an approved TMP
should be produced (either as a stand-alone document or within the CEMP) and be submitted with the planning
application as the Council will be unable to determine the application without it.

The TMP should contain the information set out below:
Introduction - includes background including the number of abnormal loads and other vehicles.

Description of Route - detailed description of the access route to the site for all vehicles delivering abnormal loads,
HGV's delivering materials, concrete etc. identifying road types and characteristics and any improvements proposed
a condition survey of the existing highway network will also be required.

Traffic Management - methodology for moving abnormal load convoys whilst minimising delays to other traffic
including contingency plans in the event of incidents or emergencies.

Delivery Times - including timings for traffic sensitive locations; delays to negotiate any constraints.

Details of Trial Runs -the TMP to be supported by documented trial run information, witnessed/observed by the
Highway Authority and police. Document to include or refer to separately submitted full video coverage of the route.

Proposed Highway Improvements or Works - location, nature and details of all potential horizontal and vertical

constraints such as junctions, bends and steep gradients, swept path analysis of constraints. Outline design of
proposed permanent improvement works the plans should show all improvement works within the highway or third
party land.

Structures- carriageway width at all highway structures, headroom at all bridges and the proposals for assessing
the impact on highway structures, non-highway structures and embankment slopes possible effected by loads.

Proposals to ensure Public Awareness - including consultation proposals; notification for travelling public and
communities.

Site Accesses - Full details of all accesses at road crossings, including the detailed design,
layout and drainage etc. including wheel wash facilities.

Site compounds - full details of the site compound locations indicating material storage areas staff car parking,
loading and unloading facilities off the highway including wheel wash facilities.

Please refer to the attached letter from the Welsh Government for further information. To avoid delays, we would

strongly advise discussions with the relevant highways authorities take place well in advance of the planning
application stage.

10

Page 118



15.7 Noise and Vibration

The Council’s Public Protection Technical Officer has reviewed this section of the PEI Report and has put forward
the following comments:

There is mention of the Horizontal Directional Drilling (HDD) being undertaken on a 24hr basis and yet the noise
levels are likely to be greater than the 40dBLAeq,8h night time target. We would therefore request that this element
of work is undertaken during the normal working day. However, if it is absolutely necessary that the work continues
during the night time period then we would request that robust mitigation measures are used. We would also
request that we are informed of these situations.

A contact number should be provided to the public so that any nearby residents affected by noise can contact the
site and the situation can be investigated and improved, if necessary, at the time.

For information, no noise complaints have been received by the Council to date with respect to the construction of
the Gwynt y Mor substation and underground cables, therefore we recommend you consult with RWE Renewables
Ltd with respect to this scheme when devising a noise mitigation strategy.

SECTION 17. IN-COMBINATION AND CUMULATIVE EFFECTS

The Denbighshire LDP is at an advanced stage in its production and includes a strategic development site in
Bodelwydden. At the LDP Examination, the Welsh Government challenged the housing targets within the Plan which
has prompted an additional round of consultation seeking to identify potential additional housing sites in the County.
The may result in additional housing development sites being allocated in the vicinity of the site which should be
taken into consideration when assessing cumulative effects. Please refer to the Council’s website for more
information:

http://denbighddms.wisshost.net/english/default.asp

Scottish Power Energy Networks are proposing new overhead electricity lines from Clocaneog Forest to St. Asaph to
provide a grid connection to 3 no. consented windfarms within the Clocaenog Forest Strategic Search Area (SSA-A
as defined in TAN8) and the proposed Clocaenog Forest windfarm being progressed by RWE Npower Renewables.
This project is classed as a nationally significant infrastructure project as new 132kV lines and substations are
required. This project, in combination with the new National Grid substation and Gwynt y Mor substation all converge
in St. Asaph and therefore the Council would recommend the cumulative effects of these projects are assessed.

For further information of the Scottish Power Energy Networks project, please contact:
Scottish Power Energy Networks, 3 Prenton Way, Prenton, Merseyside, CH43 3ET
4. FURTHER INFORMATION

This report has been prepared by Denise Shaw - Renewable Energy Planning Officer with contributions from the
following Denbighshire County Council officers:

Mike Parker - Senior Highways Engineer
Sean Awbery — Public Protection Technical Officer (Pollution Control)
Lizzy Webster - Biodiversity Officer

Any queries should be directed to Denise Shaw in the first instance; contact details for other officers can also be
provided:

Tel: 01824 706724

Email: denise.shaw@denbighshire.gov.uk

11

Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 120



1.1.

2.1

2.2.

2.3.

2.4

2.5.

2.6.

Agenda ltem 11

PLANNING COMMITTEE
18 April 2012

REPORT BY THE HEAD OF PLANNING, REGENERATION
AND REGULATORY SERVICES

VERSION 2 OF THE PROTOCOL FOR MEMBER TRAINING

PURPOSE OF REPORT

The purpose of this report is to seek Members support for the proposed changes to
the Protocol for Member Training in Planning Matters.

BACKGROUND

The protocol was first approved at Full Council in 2008. The reason for introducing
such a protocol was to ensure that Members are kept up to date on the processes and
procedures used within the Planning system and also to keep Members informed of
any relevant changes in legislation.

As a new election period approaches, it is felt to be an opportune time to review the
protocol and ensure it is being operated in the manner it was originally intended.

Planning Officers attend regular Continual Professional Development sessions and
training sessions on new legislations and planning processes. The events arranged
for Members are an ideal opportunity for staff to pass this information on to Members
and also for Members and staff to exchange views on new processes.

The protocol has been largely successful therefore there are only minor amendments
proposed. The look of the protocol has changed. This is simply to bring this protocol
in line with all other protocols within Planning.

The first change is within paragraph 7 of the protocol. The additional criterion within
this paragraph is intended to allow Members more opportunity to fulfill their
training/development requirements. Members will often undertake a lot of work and
research when representing the Council at Planning appeals. Members also spend a
lot of time assisting constituents, or developers in Planning issues. Officers
acknowledge that the research undertaken when assisting in appeals or meetings with
developers/applicants can often be considerable. However, Members will be required
to outline the level of their involvement in writing to the Development Control and
Compliance Manager so that this can be recorded accordingly.

The second change relates to the issue of Members getting to the end of the Council
year and not having met the requirement of two sessions. Following feedback from
Members, this change has been made to ensure recognition of the fact that some
Members are regular attendees at Planning Committees and therefore gain a lot of

Reports : Version 2, Member Training

Page 121



2.7.

2.8.

2.9.

3.1.

knowledge and experience through such attendance.

An additional criterion has been included within paragraph 10 to ensure that regular
attendees of Planning Committee are given 1 no. credit for attending a minimum of 8
Planning Committees in the Council year (March/April). However, it is not intended
that Members of Planning Committee should only attend 1 no. training/development
session each Council year, it is simply acknowledging that some Members may find it
difficult to attend two sessions but should have some credit for attending Planning
Committee on a regular basis.

There has been a note added at the bottom of the protocol that is intended to clarify
the issue of whether the Members are to be prevented from voting if they do not fulfill
the requirement of 2 no. training/development sessions in each Council year.

If a local authority has an adopted protocol for member training/development, it is
likely that Members not meeting the required criteria are risking criticism from the
Local Government Ombudsman or the Inspectorate in the event of a complaint or an
appeal. Therefore it is noted that although the Member will not be prevented from

voting, there is a morale obligation on the Member to meet the required
training/development criteria.

RECOMMENDATION

That members accept the changes.

APPENDICIES
Appendix 1 - Original Member Training Protocol

Appendix 2 - Revised Member Training Protocol

Reports : Version 2, Member Training

Page 122



Protocol for Member Training on Planning Matters

(This protocol was approved at Full Council on 8 April 2008 and came into effect
thereafter)

1.

All Members of the County Council will be required to undertake training on planning
matters.

To facilitate training, a minimum of 4 no. training events will be organised by Officers
within each Council year (May to April).

In Council election years, a minimum of 6 no. training events will be organised by
Officers within each Council Year (May to April).

Members will be required to attend at least 2 no. of these organised training events
in any Council year (May to April).

All newly elected members will be required to attend the 2 no. events organised after
the commencement of the new Council and before the first Planning Committee of
that new Council year.

Existing Members with a shortfall of training in a previous Council year may attend
the 2 no. events as specified within paragraph 5 above.

It will be necessary for Members who have not attended formally arranged training
events to submit their alternative training proposals to the Head of Planning and
Public Protection for authorization by the Lead Member for Policy, Communications
and Improvements. Alternative sources of training could include:-

(i) Attendance at an event organised by the WLGA, another local Authority or an
external provider.

(i) Distance learning using an approved planning based website which have
training modules e.g. The Planning Advisory Service — www.pas.gov.uk, the
Royal Town Planning Institute — www.planningmatters.co.uk

Members attendance for training will be monitored by the Head of Planning and
Public Protection who will report on a six monthly basis to the Environment Scrutiny
Committee. Reports will normally be at the end of the Council year (March/April)
and after six months of the Council year (Nov/Dec).

Prior to the final 2 no. training events in any one Council year individual letters will

be sent to Members outlining their training records for that year with a reminder of
the agreed protocol and the forthcoming training events.

Page 123



10.

11.

Members will need to have fulfilled the training requirement for the Council year by
the 30™ April in any one year. Members who fail to fulfill the training requirements by
this date would be prohibited from voting on any planning related matters at
Planning Committee and Full Council during the following Council year until either of
the following have occurred:

a) They have attended two organised training events in the following Council year
or attended alternative events as agreed by the Head of Planning and Public
Protection and the lead Member for Policy, Communications and Improvement.

b) They have been authorised to continue to make decisions on planning matters
having been reported to Corporate Governance Committee.

For clarity Members who have not fulfilled the training requirement for the Council
year (i.e. by 30™ April) will in the following Council year be able to discuss/debate
planning related matters in Planning Committee/Full Council but will have their right
to vote on that particular matter removed until either of 10(a) or 10(b) above have
been fulfilled/complied with.

Page 124



CYNGOR
Sir Ddinbych
Denbi ghshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

PLANNING, REGENERATION AND REGULATORY SERVICES

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE TEAM

PROTOCOL FOR MEMBER TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT ON
PLANNING MATTERS

The protocol was first approved at Full Council on 8" April 2008 to ensure that
Members were kept up to date on the processes and procedures used within the
Planning system and to also keep Members informed of any relevant changes in
legislation.

1. All Members of the County Council will be encouraged to undertake training
and development sessions on planning matters.

2. To facilitate this, a minimum of 4 no. training/development events will be
organised by Officers within each Council year (May to April).

3. In Council election years, a minimum of 6 no. training/development events will
be organised by Officers. The first 2 no. events will always be held prior to the
first planning committee of the new Council.

4, All newly elected Members will be required to attend the 2 no. initial training
events organised after the commencement of the new Council and before the
first Planning Committee of that new Council year.

5. Re-elected Members with a shortfall of development events in a previous
Council year may attend the 2 no. events as specified within paragraph 4
above.

6. In each consecutive Council year (May to April), all Members will be required

to attend at least 2 no. training/development events.

7. It will be necessary for Members who have not attended Officer arranged
training events to submit their alternative training proposals to the Head of
Planning, Regeneration and Regulatory Services or the Development Control
and Compliance Manager. Alternative sources of training could include:-

(i) Attendance at an event organised by the WLGA, another local Authority

or an external provider.
(ii) Distance learning using an approved planning based website

Page 125



(i) Direct involvement in planning appeals and/or planning proposals
where the Member has demonstrated an understanding of planning
issues as agreed with the Development Control and Compliance
Manager.

8. Members attendance for training will be monitored by the Head of Planning,
Regeneration and Regulatory Services who will report on a six monthly basis
to the Corporate Governance Committee. Reports will normally be at the end
of the Council year (March/April) and after six months of the Council year
(Nov/Dec).

9. Prior to the final 2 no. training events in any one Council year letters will be
sent to Group Leaders outlining the number of events that their members need
to attend for that year with a reminder of the agreed protocol and the
forthcoming training events.

10.  Members will need to have fulfilled the training requirement for the Council
year by the 30" April in any one year. Members who fail to fulfill the training
requirements by this date would be able to discuss/debate planning related
matters but would be prohibited from voting on any planning related matters at
Planning Committee and Full Council during the following Council year, unless

a) They were Planning Committee Members in the previous Council year and
had attended a minimum of 8 Planning Committee meetings that year and
had also attended at least 1 no. training/development event.

b) They attend two organised officer events in the current Council year.

c) They have had agreement to vote at Planning Committee and Full Council
by the Head of Legal and Democratic Services and the Head of Planning,
Regeneration and Regulatory Services.

Note:

This protocol is not designed to prevent Members from voting on Planning matters at Planning
Committee and/or Full Council. The purpose of the protocol is to provide Members with appropriate
training/development opportunities.

Those Members who do not meet the training/development criteria laid down in the protocol will be
advised as such before all relevant meetings and will be advised/requested not to vote on Planning
matters.

Whether the Member chooses to vote or not under such circumstances is a matter for each individual
Member, but if they do vote, they run the risk of officers advising Corporate Governance Committee
and/or Standards Committee. They also run the risk of a third party reporting them to the Local
Government Ombudsman.

Author : Paul Mead Date : April 2012
Contact : Judith Williams Version : 2
Date to be reviewed : January 2016

Page 126



Agenda Item 12

PLANNING COMMITTEE
30" MAY 2012
ITEM NO.

REPORT BY THE HEAD OF PLANNING AND PUBLIC PROTECTION

ITEM FOR PLANNING COMMITTEE
UPDATED SCHEME OF DELEGATION - VERSION 4

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

To inform Members of minor amendments to the Scheme of Delegation. The
amendments are presented for information before being taken to Full Council for
authorisation.

2. BACKGROUND

The Scheme of Delegation is the document that sets out which decisions can be
made at officer level, or which have to go to Planning Committee.

The Scheme of Delegation is reviewed twice a year.

The amendments made at this review are as follows:

Paragraph (V4) Amendment Reason
214 additional wording...”(screening | This wording has been added for clarity as screening
and scoping opinions)” and scoping opinions for Environmental Impact

Assessments are specific types of notification.

2.1.12 Additional wording For clarity.
”..... I notes to applicants”
2.1.14 Additional paragraph This paragraph has been added to ensure that
Officers have the authority to respond to Infrastructure
a) Respond to Infrastructure Planning Commission consultations.

Planning Commission (IPC)
environmental impact
assessment (EIA) scoping
opinion consultations.

b) Respond to a developer
consultation on draft
Statements of Community
Consultation (SoCC)

c) Respond to the IPC
consultations on the
adequacy of developers pre-
application consultation

221 Additional paragraph This paragraph is intended to provide more
transparency on applications submitted by a third
Any application made regarding | party on Council owned land, where the Council
buildings or land in the stands to benefit financially from the sale or lease of

Reports : information reports: Scheme of Delegation 18-04-12 1

Page 127



Council’'s ownership by a
private company/individual,
where the Council stand to
benefit financially from the sale
or lease of the land/buildings.

the land/buildings.

2212

Additional paragraph

Any formal pre-application
(Section 42) consultation on
Infrastructure Planning
Commission (IPC) schemes
along with the formal
application made to the IPC
(Local Impact Report) and any
other formal representations at
examination stage.

This paragraph is intended to ensure that all
responses to formal pre-application consultations on
Infrastructure Planning Commission (IPC) schemes
and the Councils Local Impact Reports are taken to
Committee for authorisation. It also covers the formal
representation at examination stage.

2213 and 2.2.14

Additional paragraphs

2.2.13 Any application which
has been determined at
Committee previously but
which, in the opinion of the
Head of Planning,
Regeneration and Regulatory
Services, could represent one
of the following:-

a) a significant departure from
the adopted Development Plan,
b) an application where there
could be a significant risk of
costs awarded against the
Council at any subsequent
planning appeal, legal
challenge or Ombudsman
investigation.

2.2.14 Any returning report to
Committee will contain
additional information pertaining
to the two areas a) and/or b)
above.

Version 3 of the Scheme of Delegation allows the
Head of Planning, Regeneration and Regulatory
Services to take an application to Full Council if he
feels that it would be a significant departure from the
adopted Development Plan. It also allowed for Full
Council determination where, based upon the advice
of Officers, it was felt that there would be a strong
likelihood of an award of costs against the Council at
a subsequent planning appeal, legal challenge or
Ombudsman investigation.

The suggested wording in paragraph 2.2.13 and
2.2.14 replaces section 2.3 — Full Council Level
Decisions. The wording in the proposed scheme is
intended to allow the above cases to go back to
Planning Committee rather than Full Council for
decision should the Head of Planning, Regeneration
and Regulatory Services feel that they fall within the
relevant criteria.

The revised scheme (Version 4) is attached to this report for Members (appendix
A). A copy of the current scheme (Version 3) is also attached for reference
(appendix B). Should any Members wish to discuss the contents of the protocol
they should contact either:-

Paul Mead, Development Control and Compliance Manager — 6712
Judith Williams, Customer Service Improvement Manager — 6722.

3. RECOMMENDATION

That Members approve the contents of this report.

Reports : information reports: Scheme of Delegation 18-04-12 2

Page 128




APPENDIX A CYNGOR

Sir Ddinbych
Denbighshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

PLANNING, REGENERATION AND REGULATORY SERVICES

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE SECTION AND BUILDING
CONTROL SECTION

SCHEME OF DELEGATION

The delegation scheme enables officers within the Building Control Section and
Development Control & Planning Compliance Section of the Service to deal with certain
defined determinations without authorisation from Members.

The purpose of having such a Scheme of Delegation is to ensure an efficient, customer
focussed approach whilst maintaining the necessary democratic checks and balances
which Planning Committee and Full Council provide.

1. BUILDING CONTROL SECTION SCHEME OF DELEGATION

Building Regulations are made under Part 1 of the Building Act 1984 and are exercisable
by statutory instrument through empowerment of Local Authorities to ensure their
requirements are met.

Provisions for dealing with defective premises, dangerous buildings and demolitions are
set out in Part 3 of the Building Act in Sections 76 - 83 inclusive empowering Local
Authorities to serve notices, execute works in default and recover expenses.

The scheme will authorise the Head of Planning, Regeneration and Regulatory
Services, Building Control Manager and any Officer within the Building Control
Section so authorised by them to deal with ALL Building Regulations work as set
out in the provisions of the Building Act 1984.

2. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL & PLANNING COMPLIANCE SECTION SCHEME OF
DELEGATION

Part 1 — Officer Level Decisions
Part 2 - Committee Level Decisions

Page 129



2.1. PART 1 - OFFICER LEVEL DECISIONS

The scheme will allow the Head of Planning, Regeneration and Regulatory
Services, Development Control & Planning Compliance Manager and any
Officer within the Development Control & Planning Compliance Section so
authorised by them to determine the following types of applications, prior
determinations, notifications, approval of conditions, ancillary decisions,
amendments and compliance case under the relevant Planning Acts:-

Planning or other Applications

21.1.

2.1.2.

2.1.3.

21.4.

All types of planning or other applications on which Officers are
recommending approval where 3 or less individual written objections have
been received from different individuals raising material planning
objections.

Any application submitted by or on behalf of the Council on land in the
Council’'s ownership where the proposal relates to a specific function
exercised by the Council.

All types of planning or other application on which Officers are
recommending refusal, except for those referred to in paragraph 2.2.6
below (i.e. retrospective applications which are recommended for refusal
should be reported to Planning Committee).

All types of prior determinations, neighbouring authority notifications, the
need for Environmental Impact Assessments (screening and scoping
opinions) and other notifications.

Compliance Issues

2.1.5.

2.1.6.

2.1.7.

Compliance cases which have been investigated by a Planning
Compliance Officer and require no further action.

Compliance cases where “urgent action” is needed including the serving
of Stop Notices, Temporary Stop Notices and Injunctions (Emergency
Powers) subject to consultation with the Local Ward Member(s). Once
“urgent action” is considered necessary the signatures of the following
Council representatives will be required:

Corporate Director OR Head of Planning, Regeneration and Regulatory
Services.

Chair OR Vice Chair of Planning Committee OR Lead Member.

Compliance cases which require the serving of:
Section 215 Untidy Land Notice

Listed Building Enforcement Notices

Page 130



2.1.8.

Discontinuance Notices (Advertisement Regs)

Tree Preservation Order Notices & Notices in relation to Trees in
Conservation Areas

High Hedges Notices

Enforcement Notices relating to unauthorised Houses in Multiple
Occupation (HMOs)

Breach of Condition Notice

Urgent Works Notice
Repairs Notice

Legal action in association with breaches of Notices served under the
provisions contained in paragraph 2.1.7/2.1.8 above.

Miscellaneous

2.1.9.

2.1.10.

2.1.11.

2.1.12.

2.1.13.

2.1.14.

Decide the type of planning appeal, subject to consultation with the Local
Ward Member(s), and undertake to defend the Council’s position in
accordance with the Protocol for Member Involvement in Planning
Appeals.

To submit observations on behalf of the Council on external consultations
or draft documents.

Minor amendments to the terms of a Section 106 legal agreement where
the substance of the authorised terms has not significantly altered, subject
to informal consultation with the Local Ward Member(s).

Minor amendments to the wording of planning conditions / notes to
applicants on applications approved at Planning Committee where the
substance of the suggested condition / note to applicant has not
significantly altered, subject to informal consultation with the Local Ward
Member(s).

Minor amendments to Committee authorised Enforcement Notices where
the substance of the breach or remedy has not significantly altered,
subject to informal consultation with the Local Ward Member(s).

To submit observations on behalf of the Council on the following pre-
application stages of major renewable energy infrastructure projects:-

¢ Responding to the Infrastructure Planning Commission (IPC’s)
environmental impact assessment (EIA) scoping opinion consultation

¢ Responding to the developer’s consultation on the draft Statement of
Community Consultation (SoCC)

¢ Responding to the IPC’s consultation on the adequacy of the
developer’s pre-application consultation

Page 131



2.2. PART 2 - COMMITTEE LEVEL DECISIONS

The following sets out the types of applications which will need to be
reported to Planning Committee for formal determination and as such do not
fall within Part 1 of this scheme:-

2.21.

2.2.2.

2.2.3.

2.24.

2.2.5.

2.2.6.

2.2.7.

All types of planning or other applications on which Officers are
recommending approval where 4 or more individual written objections
have been received from different neighbours/residential properties raising
material planning objections.

All types of planning or other applications on which Officers are
recommending approval where a relevant material planning objection has
been received from a Town/Community Council or body required to be
consulted under the provisions of The Town and Country Planning
(General Development) Procedure Order.

All applications on which Officers are recommending approval which
represent a significant departure from the adopted policies and guidance
of the Development Plan.
Any application not already determined under Part 1 above which the
Ward Member, for the Ward in which the application is located, has
submitted a written request based on valid planning grounds that
application be heard at Planning Committee. The request should be made
as soon as possible after notification of receipt of the application by the
Ward Member to the Head of Planning, Regeneration and Regulatory
Services and/or the Development Control & Planning Compliance
Manager.
Any application submitted by, on behalf of, or on land in the ownership of:
A County Councillor,
The Chief Executive
Corporate Director
Head of Service
Member of staff of Planning, Regeneration and Regulatory Services
A close relative of any of the above
Any retrospective planning or other application which is recommended for
refusal where enforcement action is also recommended, unless the

enforcement/compliance action falls within paragraph 2.1.7 above.

Any application submitted by or on behalf of the Council on land in the
Council’'s ownership where the proposal does not relate to a specific

Page 132



2.2.8.

2.2.9.

2.2.10.

2.211.

2212

2213

2214

function exercised by the Council.

Any application to remove or vary a planning condition which has been
specifically imposed by Members at Planning Committee or Full Council.

Any application to vary or modify any fundamental terms of a Section 106
legal agreement which is linked to a planning permission given at Planning
Committee.

Any other application, compliance case or determination which the Head
of Service or Development Control & Planning Compliance Manager
considers necessary to report to Planning Committee due to interest or
circumstance.

Any application made regarding buildings or land in the Council’s
ownership by a private company/individual, where the Council stand to
benefit financially from the sale or lease of the land/buildings.

Any formal pre-application (Section 42) consultation on Infrastructure
Planning Commission (IPC) schemes along with the formal application
made to the IPC (Local Impact Report) and any other formal
representations at examination stage.

Any application which has been determined at Committee previously but
which, in the opinion of the Head of Planning, Regeneration and
Regulatory Services, could represent one of the following:-

a) a significant departure from the adopted Development Plan.

b) An application where there could be a significant risk of costs awarded
against the Council at any subsequent planning appeal, legal
challenge or Ombudsman investigation.

Any returning report to Committee will contain additional information
pertaining to the two areas a) and/or b) above.

Page 133



FOR CLARITY REGARDING THE DEVELOPMENT CONTROL & PLANNING
COMPLIANCE SCHEME OF DELEGATION:

Letters of representation will only be taken into account for the purposes of defining
whether an application falls within Part 1 or Part 2 of the Scheme of Delegation if they
are signed and addressed.

Anonymous letters of representation will not be taken into account for the purposes of
defining whether an application falls within Part 1 or Part 2 of the Scheme of Delegation.

Petitions containing names/signatures only will be counted as one single representation
for the purposes of defining whether an application falls within Part 1 or Part 2 of the
Scheme of Delegation.

Petitions containing clearly written names along with associated addresses will be
defined for the purposes of whether an application falls within Part 1 or Part 2 of the
Scheme of Delegation as if each name was a separate representation.

All electronic submissions will only be taken into account for the purposes of defining
whether an application falls within Part 1 or Part 2 of the Scheme of Delegation if they
contain an individuals name and associated address.

“Close relative” is defined as spouses/partners, parents, children, brothers and sisters.

“Significant Departure” is defined as any proposal which, if approved or refused,
would harm the fundamental intentions of a Policy in the Development Plan.

For “Bodies required to be consulted under Procedure Order” please refer to
latest Procedure Order

Author : Paul Mead Date adopted at Full Council :

Contact : Judith Williams Version : 4

Date to be reviewed : 01/04/13

Page 134



APPENDIX B CYNGOR

Sir Ddinbych
Denbighshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

PLANNING AND PUBLIC PROTECTION

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE SECTION AND
BUILDING CONTROL SECTION

SCHEME OF DELEGATION

The delegation scheme enables officers within the Building Control Section and
Development Control & Planning Compliance Section of the Service to deal with certain
defined determinations without authorisation from Members.

The purpose of having such a Scheme of Delegation is to ensure an efficient, customer
focussed approach whilst maintaining the necessary democratic checks and balances
which Planning Committee and Full Council provide.

1. BUILDING CONTROL SECTION SCHEME OF DELEGATION

Building Regulations are made under Part 1 of the Building Act 1984 and are
exercisable by statutory instrument through empowerment of Local Authorities to
ensure their requirements are met.

Provisions for dealing with defective premises, dangerous buildings and demolitions
are set out in Part 3 of the Building Act in Sections 76 - 83 inclusive empowering
Local Authorities to serve notices, execute works in default and recover expenses.

The scheme will authorise the Head of Planning and Public Protection, Building
Control Manager and any Officer within the Building Control Section so
authorised by them to deal with ALL Building Regulations work as set out in
the provisions of the Building Act 1984.

2. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL & PLANNING COMPLIANCE SECTION SCHEME OF
DELEGATION

Part 1 — Officer Level Decisions

Part 2 - Committee Level Decisions
Part 3 — Full Council Level Decisions

Page 135



2.1.

PART 1 - OFFICER LEVEL DECISIONS

The scheme will allow the Head of Planning and Public Protection,
Development Control & Planning Compliance Manager and any Officer
within the Development Control & Planning Compliance Section so
authorised by them to determine the following types of applications,
prior determinations, notifications, approval of conditions, ancillary
decisions, amendments and compliance case under the relevant
Planning Acts:-

Planning or other Applications

2.1.1.

2.1.2.

2.1.3.

21.4.

All types of planning or other applications on which Officers are
recommending approval where 3 or less individual written
objections have been received from different individuals raising
material planning objections.

Any application submitted by or on behalf of the Council on land in
the Council’'s ownership where the proposal relates to a specific
function exercised by the Council.

All types of planning or other application on which Officers are
recommending refusal, except for those referred to in paragraph
2.2.6 below (i.e. retrospective applications which are recommended
for refusal should be reported to Planning Committee).

All types of prior determinations, neighbouring authority
notifications, the need for Environmental Impact Assessments and
other notifications.

Compliance Issues

2.1.5.

2.1.6.

21.7.

Compliance cases which have been investigated by a Planning
Compliance Officer and require no further action.

Compliance cases where “urgent action” is needed including the
serving of Stop Notices, Temporary Stop Notices and Injunctions
(Emergency Powers) subject to consultation with the Local Ward
Member(s). Once “urgent action” is considered necessary the
signatures of the following Council representatives will be required:
Corporate Director OR Head of Planning and Public Protection.
Chair OR Vice Chair of Planning Committee OR Lead Member.

Compliance cases which require the serving of:
Section 215 Untidy Land Notice

Page 136



2.1.8.

Listed Building Enforcement Notices
Discontinuance Notices (Advertisement Regs)

Tree Preservation Order Notices & Notices in relation to Trees in
Conservation Areas

High Hedges Notices

Enforcement Notices relating to unauthorised Houses in Multiple
Occupation (HMOs)

Breach of Condition Notice
Urgent Works Notice
Repairs Notice

Legal action in association with breaches of Notices served under
the provisions contained in paragraph 2.1.7/2.1.8 above.

Miscellaneous

2.1.9.

2.1.10.

2.1.11.

2.1.12.

2.1.13.

Decide the type of planning appeal, subject to consultation with the
Local Ward Member(s), and undertake to defend the Council’s
position in accordance with the Protocol for Member Involvement in
Planning Appeals.

To submit observations on behalf of the Council on external
consultations or draft documents.

Minor amendments to the terms of a Section 106 legal agreement
where the substance of the authorised terms has not significantly
altered, subject to informal consultation with the Local Ward
Member(s).

Minor amendments to the wording of planning conditions on
applications approved at Planning Committee where the substance
of the suggested condition has not significantly altered, subject to
informal consultation with the Local Ward Member(s).

Minor amendments to Committee authorised Enforcement Notices
where the substance of the breach or remedy has not significantly
altered, subject to informal consultation with the Local Ward
Member(s).

Page 137



2.2.

PART 2 - COMMITTEE LEVEL DECISIONS

The following sets out the types of applications which will need to be
reported to Planning Committee for formal determination and as such
do not fall within Part 1 of this scheme:-

2.2.1.

2.2.2.

2.2.3.

224

2.2.5.

2.2.6.

All types of planning or other applications on which Officers are
recommending approval where 4 or more individual written objections
have been received from different neighbours/residential properties
raising material planning objections.

All types of planning or other applications on which Officers are
recommending approval where a relevant material planning
objection has been received from a Town/Community Council or
body required to be consulted under the provisions of The Town and
Country Planning (General Development) Procedure Order.

All applications on which Officers are recommending approval which
represent a significant departure from the adopted policies and
guidance of the Development Plan.

Any application not already determined under Part 1 above which the
Ward Member, for the Ward in which the application is located, has
submitted a written request based on valid planning grounds that
application be heard at Planning Committee. The request should be
made as soon as possible after notification of receipt of the
application by the Ward Member to the Head of Planning and Public
Protection and/or the Development Control & Planning Compliance
Manager.

Any application submitted by, on behalf of, or on land in the
ownership of:

A County Councillor,

The Chief Executive

Corporate Director

Head of Service

Member of staff of Planning & Public Protection Service

A close relative of any of the above

Any retrospective planning or other application which is
recommended for refusal where enforcement action is also

recommended, unless the enforcement/compliance action falls within
paragraph 2.1.7 above.

Page 138



2.2.7. Any application submitted by or on behalf of the Council on land in
the Council’s ownership where the proposal does not relate to a
specific function exercised by the Council.

2.2.8. Any application to remove or vary a planning condition which has
been specifically imposed by Members at Planning Committee or
Full Council.

2.2.9. Any application to vary or modify the terms of a Section 106 legal
agreement which is linked to a planning permission given at Planning
Committee.

2.2.10. Any other application, compliance case or determination which the
Head of Service or Development Control & Planning Compliance
Manager considers necessary to report to Planning Committee due
to interest or circumstance.

Page 139



2.3.

PART 3 — FULL COUNCIL LEVEL DECISIONS

The following sets out the applications which will need to be referred
to Full Council for determination:-

2.3.1. Any application determined at Planning Committee which would
represent a significant departure from the adopted Development
Plan.

2.3.2. Any application or compliance case determined or deferred by
Planning Committee where, based upon the advice of Officers, it is
felt there would be a strong likelihood of an award of costs against
the Council at any subsequent planning appeal, legal challenge or
Ombudsman investigation.

Page 140



FOR CLARITY REGARDING THE DEVELOPMENT CONTROL & PLANNING
COMPLIANCE SCHEME OF DELEGATION:

Letters of representation will only be taken into account for the purposes of defining
whether an application falls within Part 1 or Part 2 of the Scheme of Delegation if
they are signed and addressed.

Anonymous letters of representation will not be taken into account for the purposes
of defining whether an application falls within Part 1 or Part 2 of the Scheme of
Delegation.

Petitions containing names/signatures only will be counted as one single
representation for the purposes of defining whether an application falls within Part 1
or Part 2 of the Scheme of Delegation.

Petitions containing clearly written names along with associated addresses will be
defined for the purposes of whether an application falls within Part 1 or Part 2 of the
Scheme of Delegation as if each name was a separate representation.

All electronic submissions will only be taken into account for the purposes of defining
whether an application falls within Part 1 or Part 2 of the Scheme of Delegation if
they contain an individuals name and associated address.

“Close relative” is defined as spouses/partners, parents, children, brothers and
sisters.

“Significant Departure” is defined as any proposal which, if approved or refused,
would harm the fundamental intentions of a Policy in the Development Plan.

“Bodies required to be consulted under Procedure Order” include — Highways,
Environment Agency, Health and Safety Executive, Secretary of State for Wales,
CADW and Amenity Bodies (on Scheduled Ancient Monuments, Listed Building or
Conservation Area applications only), Coal Authority and Theatres Trust.

Author : Paul Mead Date adopted at Full Council : 07/12/10

Contact : Judith Williams Version : 3

Date to be reviewed : 01/12/11

Page 141



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 142



	Agenda
	6 MINUTES
	Voting
	mins180412

	7 APPLICATIONS FOR PERMISSION FOR DEVELOPMENT
	1 Llys Deri rpt
	2 Bryn Morfydd rpt
	3 Tanyfron rpt
	4 20cBryntirion drive rpt
	5 Cefndy rpt
	6 Bryntirion fm rpt
	7 Bryntiorion Fm rpt2

	8 PLANNING APPEAL: ST. DAVID'S RESIDENTIAL HOME, EAST PARADE, RHYL
	9 MAJOR INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS:UPDATE REPORT
	10 BURBO BANK WINDFARM EXTENSION MAJOR INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECT
	11 VERSION 2 OF THE PROTOCOL FOR MEMBER TRAINING
	Protocol for Training 1
	Draft Version 2 of Member Training Protocol

	12 UPDATED SCHEME OF DELEGATION - VERSION 4
	Scheme of Delegation - Appendix A
	Scheme of Delegation - Appendix B


